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PART |
Preliminary Note Concerning Forward-Looking Statements

This report contains statements about the futupeetations, activities and events that constitatevérd-looking statements. Forwalmbking
statements express our beliefs, assumptions aret&tipns of our future financial and operatingf@enance and growth plans, taking i
account information currently available to us. Thetatements are not statements of historical Tdet. words “believe,” “may,” “should,”
“anticipate,” “estimate,” “expect,” “intend,” “obfive,” “seek,” “plan,” “strive” or similar words, or the negatives of these wordsntify
forward-looking statements.

Forwardiooking statements involve risks and uncertairifies may cause our actual results to differ matgrieom the expectations of futu
results we expressed or implied in any forwbkroking statements. These risks and uncertainfesbe difficult to predict and may be ou
our control. Factors that could contribute to difeces in our results include, but are not limitedieterioration in the financial condition
borrowers resulting in significant increases imldasses and provisions for those losses; chamgéeiinterest rate environment, which 1
reduce our margins or impact the value of secstitieans, deposits and other financial instrumecttginges in loan underwriting, cre
review or loss reserve policies associated witmenuc conditions, examination conclusions, or raguly developments; general econc
or business conditions, either nationally, reginat locally in the communities we serve, may berse than expected, resulting in, am
other things, a deterioration in credit qualityaoreduced demand for credit; the results of regnfatxaminations; any matter that would c:
us to conclude that there was impairment of angtagscluding intangible assets; the continued iseref key management personnel;
ability to attract, motivate and retain qualifiech@oyees; factors that increase the competitivequnee among depository and other finai
institutions, including product and pricing pressyrthe ability of our competitors with greateraficial resources to develop and introc
products and services that enable them to compete successfully than us; the impact of governmegsdrictions on entities participati
in the Capital Purchase Program of the U.S. Departrof the Treasury; inability to comply with regtdry capital requirements and to se:
any required regulatory approvals for capital awiolegislative or regulatory developments, inahgdichanges in laws concerning ta
banking, securities, insurance and other aspectleofinancial services industry; and fiscal andegomental policies of the United Ste
federal government.

Other risks are detailed in Item 1A. “Risk Factoo$this Form 10K all of which are difficult to predict and many which are beyond o
control.

Forward-looking statements are not guarantees rdbqpmeance or results. A forwaldoking statement may include the assumptions ee:
underlying the forwardeoking statement. We have made our assumptiondasets in good faith and believe they are reasen®i® cautio
you however, that estimates based on such assumpiiobases frequently differ from actual reswdts] the differences can be material.
forwarddooking statements included in this report spedl as of the date of the report. We do not intemdipdate these statements ur
applicable laws require us to do so.

Iltem 1. Business
Overview

We are a bank holding company headquartered inskdig, Kentucky. We are the eighth largest indefsart banking organization domicil

in the state of Kentucky based on total assetsoudir our wholly-owned subsidiary PBI Bank, we opers8 fullservice banking offices
twelve counties in Kentucky. Our markets includetropolitan Louisville in Jefferson County and th&rounding counties of Henry ¢
Bullitt, and extend south along the Interstate 6&idor to Tennessee. We serve south central Keptand southern Kentucky from bank
offices in Butler, Green, Hart, Edmonson, Barrergrk®n, Ohio, and Daviess Counties. We also haveffiae in Lexington, the seco
largest city in Kentucky. PBI Bank is both a trafial community bank with a wide range of commdreiad personal banking produs
including wealth management and trust services,aandn-line bank which delivers competitive depps@iducts and services through an on-
line banking division operating under the name sféncia. As of December 31, 2012, we had tot&ltasd $1.2 billion, total loans of $89!
million, total deposits of $1.1 billion and stocktiers’ equity of $47.2 million.

History

We were organized in 1988, and historically conddaiur banking business through separate commhbaitiks under the common contro
J. Chester Porter, our chairman emeritus, and Mari@ouvette, our chairman and chief executive cgffi In 2005, we completec
reorganization in which we consolidated our sulasidibanks into a single bank. On December 31, 20@5renamed our consolida
subsidiary PBI Bank to create a single brand namneofir banking operations throughout our marketav¥e completed our initial pub
offering in September 2006.




On November 21, 2008, we issued to the U.S. Trgasurexchange for cash consideration of $35.0iom]l(i) 35,000 shares of Fixed R
Cumulative Perpetual Preferred Stock, Series Ahwitiquidation preference of $1,000 per share (8eries A Preferred Stock”and (ii) ¢
warrant to purchase up to 330,561 shares of ounmmstock for $15.88 per share.

In 2010, we completed a $32.0 million private plaeat to accredited investors. Following completidrthe transactions involved, Pol
Bancorp had issued (i) 2,465,569 shares of comrtamk s(ii) 317,042 shares of Noleting Cumulative Mandatorily Convertible Perpe
Preferred Shares, Series C (“Series C PreferrezkJtand (jii) warrants to purchase 1,163,045 sharenonvoting common stock at a pri
of $11.50 per share. See Item 7., Management'suBsson and Analysis of Financial Condition and Resaf Operation — Capital.

On June 24, 2011, PBI Bank entered into a consetdrowith the Federal Deposit Insurance CorporafitiDIC") and the Kentuck
Department of Financial Institutions (“KDFI"J.he consent order requires the Bank to improvastet quality, reduce its loan concentrati
and maintain a minimum Tier 1 leverage ratio of & a minimum total risk based capital ratio of 12%

On September 21, 2011, Porter Bancorp enteredaimuoitten agreement with the Federal Reserve Bdrfkt.oLouis. Porter Bancorp me
formal commitments to use its resources to sene saurce of strength for PBI Bank, to assist taekBin addressing weaknesses ident
by the FDIC and the KDFI, to pay no dividends withprior written approval, to pay no interest otatdinated debentures or principal
trust preferred securities without written approwadd to submit a plan to maintain sufficient calpit

In October 2012, the Bank entered into a new Cdr®eder with the FDIC and KDFI again agreeing toimtein a minimum Tier 1 levera
ratio of 9% and a minimum total risk based capitdio of 12%. The Bank also agreed that if it skddoé unable to reach the required ca
levels, and if directed in writing by the FDIC, ththe Bank would within 30 days develop, adopt mmolement a written plan to sell or me
itself into another federally insured financialtingion or otherwise immediately obtain a suffitiecapital investment into the Bank to fu
meet the capital requirements. The new Consentr@ide requires the Bank to continue to adheréegtans implemented in response tc
June 2011 Consent Order, and includes the substgmibvisions of the June 2011 Consent Order.

Our Markets

We operate in markets that include the four largégs in Kentucky — Louisville, Lexington, Owersb and Bowling Green and in othe
communities along the [-65 corridor.

= Louisville/Jefferson, Bullitt and Henry Counties: Our headquarters are in Louisville, the largesy @it Kentucky and tr
twentyseventh largest city in the United States. The &vlie metropolitan area includes the consoliddtedisville/Jefferso
County and 12 surrounding Kentucky and Southermahad counties with an estimated 1.3 million residdn 2011. We als
have banking offices in Bullitt County, south ofuisville, and Henry County, east of Louisville. Gix banking offices in the
counties also serve the contiguous counties of &reshelby and Oldham to the east and northealsbwisville. The are&
employers are diversified across many industrigsinclude the air hub for United Parcel Service ), two Ford assemb
plants, General Elect’s Consumer and Industrial division, Humana, NoHealthcare, Brow-Forman and YUM! Brand:

= Lexington/Fayette County: Lexington, located in Fayette County, is the sectardest city in Kentucky with an estima
countywide population of over 302,000 in 2011. Ington is the financial, educational, retail, hegdife and cultural hub f{
Central and Eastern Kentucky. It is known worldwide its Bluegrass horse farms and Keeneland RaeekT and proud!
boasts of itself as “The Horse Capital of the Wdrlt is also the home of the University of KentuckgdaTransylvani
University. The are’s employers include Toyota, Lexmark, IBM Global\Begs and Valvoline

= Southern Kentucky: This market includes Bowling Green, the third latgeity in Kentucky, located about 60 miles norf
Nashville, Tennessee. Bowling Green, located inrré&fa County, is the home of Western Kentucky Ursitgrand is th
economic hub of the areaThis market also includes thriving communitieshie tontiguous Barren County, including the cit
Glasgow. The combined population of Warren and &acounties was approximately 158,000 in 2011. Mejoployers i
Barren and Warren Counties include GM’s Corvetanphnd several other automotive facilities and. RBnnelleys regione
printing facility.

= Owenshoro/Daviess County:Owensboro, located on the banks of the Ohio RieKentuckys fourth largest city. Davie
County had an estimated countywide population giraxmately 97,000 in 2011. The city is called atifeal city, with over 2
annual community celebrations that attract visitoosn around the world, including its world famoBar-B-Q Festival whic
attracts over 80,000 visitors giving Owensboro ggition as “The Bar-B-Q Capital of the Worldt.is an industrial, medic:
retail and cultural hub for Western Kentucky aned #inea employers include Owensboro Medical Systemas Gas, US Ba
Home Mortgage and Toyotets




= South Central Kentucky: South of the Louisville metropolitan area, we haaaking offices in Butler, Edmonson, Green, +
and Ohio Counties, which had a combined populatioapproximately 78,000 in 2011. This region in&adstable communi
markets comprised primarily of agricultural andvézs-based businesses. Each of our banking officesasetimarkets has
stable customer and core deposit b

Our Products and Services

We meet our customerdanking needs with a broad range of financial petglland services. Our lending services include esthte
commercial, mortgage and consumer loans to smathédiumsized businesses, the owners and employees of Husseesses, and ot
executives and professionals. We complement oulingnoperations with an array of retail and comnaddeposit products. In addition,
offer our customers drivitrough banking facilities, automatic teller maasnnight depository, personalized checks, credds; debit card
internet banking, electronic funds transfers thtod@CH services, domestic and foreign wire transfénavelers’checks, cash managemi
vault services, loan and deposit sweep accountdaghdbox services Through our trust division, we offer personalstrservices, employ
retirement plan services and personal financialratitement planning services.

Employees

At December 31, 2012, the Company had 278 tfule equivalent employees. Our employees are nbjestto a collective bargaini
agreement, and management considers the Compatgt®nship with employees to be good.

Competition

The banking business is highly competitive, andewgerience competition in our market from many ofireancial institutions. Competitic
among financial institutions is based upon interagts offered on deposit accounts, interest retasged on loans, other credit and sel
charges relating to loans, the quality and scopéefservices offered, the convenience of bankauglifies and, in the case of loans
commercial borrowers, relative lending limits. Wempete with commercial banks, credit unions, saviagd loan associations, mortg
banking firms, consumer finance companies, seegrlirokerage firms, insurance companies, moneyahfukds and other mutual funds
well as super-regional, national and internatidimancial institutions that operate offices witluar market area and beyond.

There are a number of banks that offer servicekisixely over the internet and other banks marketrtinternet services to their custon
nationwide. Many of the larger banks have greatarket presence and greater financial resourcesatiantheir internet banking servic
Additionally, new competitors and competitive fastcare likely to emerge, particularly in view ofethhapid development of interi
commerce. On the other hand, we believe that mastomers prefer to be able to conduct their bankimgsactions at local banking offic
We believe that these findings support our stratégcision to complement our traditional commuihisnk with our uniquely branded onl
bank to offer customers the benefits of both tradél and internet banking services.

Supervision and Regulation

Consent Order and Formal Written Agreement.On June 24, 2011, PBI Bank entered into a ConseterQvuith the FDIC and the Kentuc
Department of Financial Institutions. PBI Bank agtdo obtain the written consent of both agenceferie declaring or paying any futi
dividends. As a practical matter, PBI Bank will et able to pay dividends to Porter Bancorp forftreseeable futureThe consent ord
also establishes benchmarks for the Bank to impitsvasset quality, reduce its loan concentratiang, maintain a minimum Tier 1 lever:
ratio of 9% and a minimum total risk based capisgib of 12%. At December 31, 2012, the BanKier 1 leverage ratio declined to 5.4%
its total risk-based capital ratio declined to 9,8%hich are below the minimums of 9.0% and 12.0%uned by the Banis Consent Order. .
December 31, 2012, Porter Bancorp’s leverage vedi® 4.5% and its total ridkased capital ratio was 9.8%. We are continuingedfarts tc
strengthen our capital levels and comply with tlemg&&nt Order as outlined in the written capitahmabmitted by the Bank to its regula
in December 2012.

On September 21, 2011, we entered into a formattemriagreement with the Federal Bank of St. LoBistter Bancorp made forn
commitments in the agreement to use its financidl management resources to serve as a sourceenftstrfor the Bank and to assist
Bank in addressing weaknesses identified by theCFidd the KDFI, to pay no dividends without priatitten approval, to pay no interes!
principal on subordinated debentures or trust prefesecurities without written approval, and tdmit an acceptable plan to maint
sufficient capital.

In October 2012, the Bank entered into a new Cdr®eder with the FDIC and KDFI again agreeing toimtain a minimum Tier 1 levera
ratio of 9% and a minimum total risk based capisgio of 12%. The Bank also agreed that if it sddog unable to reach the required ca
levels, and if directed in writing by the FDIC, ththe Bank would within 30 days develop, adopt mmglement a written plan to sell or me
itself into another federally insured financial tihgtion or otherwise obtain a capital investmemibithe Bank sufficient to fully meet t
capital requirements.




We expect to continue to work with our regulataward capital ratio compliance as outlined in thé@ten capital plan previously submit!
by the Bank. The new Consent Order also requiresBéink to continue to adhere to the plans impleeteint response to the June 2
Consent Order, and includes the substantive pamsgsof the June 2011 Consent Ordes.of December 31, 2012, the capital ratios reql
by the Consent Order were not met.

Bank and Holding Company Laws, Rules and Regulatioh The following is a summary description of the rele laws, rules at
regulations governing banks and bank holding corggamhe descriptions of, and references to, theitgts and regulations below are t
summaries and do not purport to be complete. Treerigitions are qualified in their entirety by reface to the specific statutes
regulations discussed.

The Dodd-Frank Act. On July 21, 2010, the Dodd-Frank Wall Street Refamd Consumer Protection Act of 2010 (“Dodd-Frardt”Awas
signed into law. The DodBrank Act imposes new restrictions and an exparidedework of regulatory oversight for financial fitistions
including depository institutions. Because the D&ddnk Act requires various federal agencies to fidoproad range of regulations v
significant discretion, many of the details of tiew law and the effects it will have on the Compars/ not known at this time.

The DoddFrank Act represents a comprehensive overhaulefittancial services industry within the United t8ta There are a numbel
reform provisions that are likely to significantijpact the ways in which banks and bank holding gamies, including the Company,
business. For example, the DoHhnk Act changes the assessment base for fedgpakit insurance premiums by modifying the de|
insurance assessment base calculation to be basaddepository institutios’ consolidated assets less tangible capital instéatbposits
permanently increases the standard maximum amdudeosit insurance per customer to $250,000 arndnds the unlimited depao
insurance on non-interest bearing transaction adsothrough January 1, 2013. The Ddeldnk Act also imposes more stringent ca
requirements on bank holding companies by, amohgradhings, imposing leverage ratios on bank hgldiompanies and prohibiting n
trust preferred security issuances from countingias | capital. The Doddrank Act also repeals the federal prohibition @ payment «
interest on demand deposits, thereby permittingosigqry institutions to pay interest on businesmisaction and other accounts. The
codifies and expands the Federal Resergeurce of strength doctrine, which requires #tlabank holding companies serve as a sour
financial strength for its subsidiary banks. Otpesvisions of the Doddrrank Act include, but are not limited to: (i) thesation of a ne
financial consumer protection agency that is emped/¢o promulgate new consumer protection reguiatend revise existing regulation:
many areas of consumer protection; (ii) enhancgdlation of financial markets, including derivatsvand securitization markets; (iii) refc
related to the regulation of credit rating agenc{@g the elimination of certain trading activitidy banks; and (v) new disclosure and ¢
requirements relating to executive compensationcanplorate governance.

Many provisions of the Dodd-Frank Act will not beplemented immediately and will require interprietatand rule-making by feder:
agencies. The Company is monitoring all relevantises of the Dodd=rank Act to ensure continued compliance with land regulation
While the ultimate effect of the Doderank Act on the Company cannot currently be deted) the law is likely to result in increa
compliance costs and fees paid to regulators, aldtigpossible restrictions on the Company’s operet

Porter Bancorp. Porter Bancorp is registered as a bank holding emypinder the Bank Holding Company Act of 1956amended, and
subject to supervision and regulation by the Badr@overnors of the Federal Reserve System. As,sueimust file with the Federal Rese
Board annual and quarterly reports and other in&ion regarding our business operations and thiméss operations of our subsidiaries.
are also subject to examination by the Federal iRedgoard and to operational guidelines establidhethe Federal Reserve Board. We
subject to the Bank Holding Company Act and otleetefal laws on the types of activities in which mvay engage, and to other supervi
requirements, including regulatory enforcementaamdifor violations of laws and regulations.

Acquisitions. A bank holding company must obtain Federal Res8&ward approval before acquiring, directly or indihg, ownership ¢
control of more than 5% of the voting stock or@llsubstantially all of the assets of a bank, nmgrgir consolidating with any other bz
holding company and before engaging, or acquiriegrapany that is not a bank but is engaged in icen@nbanking activities. Federal I
also prohibits a person or group of persons froguaing “control” of a bank holding company without notifying the Eeal Reserve Boa
in advance, and then only if the Federal Resenerddoes not object to the proposed transactioa.FEueral Reserve Board has establi
a rebuttable presumptive standard that the acguisitf 10% or more of the voting stock of a bankdivtg company would constitute
acquisition of control of the bank holding compahyaddition, any company is required to obtain @pproval of the Federal Reserve B«
before acquiring 25% (5% in the case of an acqtiivat is a bank holding company) or more of ang<laf a bank holding compasyvoting
securities, or otherwise obtaining control or arfrolling influence” over a bank holding company.




Permissible ActivitiesA bank holding company is generally permitted unther Bank Holding Company Act to engage in or aegdirect o
indirect control of more than 5% of the voting @&of any bank, bank holding company or company@ed in any activity that the Fede
Reserve Board determines to be so closely relatedriking as to be a proper incident to the businébanking.

Under current federal law, a bank holding compamy mlect to become a financial holding company,cwhinables the holding compan
conduct activities that are “financial in naturedttivities that are “financial in naturaéhclude securities underwriting, dealing and me
making; sponsoring mutual funds and investment @nigs; insurance underwriting and agency; merchanking activities; and activiti
that the Federal Reserve Board has determined ¢tbely related to banking. No regulatory appravill be required for a financial holdil
company to acquire a company, other than a bardawings association, engaged in activities thatfiaencial in nature or incidental
activities that are financial in nature, as detesi by the Federal Reserve Board. We have notditedlection to become a financial holc
company.

U.S. Treasury Capital Purchase ProgranOn November 21, 2008, pursuant to the U.S. Deyart of the Treasury’s (the “U.S. Treasyry”
Capital Purchase Program (the “CPP”), establismetuthe Emergency Economic Stabilization Act dd@(¢‘EESA”), Porter Bancorp issu
and sold to the U.S. Treasury in an offering exefrgon registration under the Securities Act of 198B35,000 shares of Porter Bancap’
Fixed Rate Cumulative Perpetual Preferred StockeS&\, no par value and liquidation preferenced$@,per share ($35 million aggrec
liquidation preference) (the “Series A Preferredc®t) and (ii) a warrant (the “Warranttp purchase 330,561 shares (adjusted for
dividends) of Porter Bancorp’s common stock, aeaercise price of $15.88 per share (adjusted farkstlividends), subject to certain anti-
dilution and other adjustments for an aggregatehmase price of $35 million in cash. The securieschase agreement, dated Novembe
2008, pursuant to which the securities issued & UWhS. Treasury under the CPP were sold, limitsphgment of dividends on Por
Bancorps common stock to the quarterly dividend levehattime of the transaction without prior approvitte U.S. Treasury, limits Por
Bancorps ability to repurchase shares of its common sfagth certain exceptions, including the repurchaseur common stock to offs
share dilution from equitpased compensation awards) and grants registratibis to the holders of the Series A PreferredciStahe
Warrant and the common stock of Porter Bancorpetasbued upon any exercise of the Warrant. The Tr&sury has notified us tha
intends to sell at auction the shares of Seriegefered Stock issued by the Company. We do notvkrad this time, the U.S. Treasusy’
timeline for such a sale.

The American Recovery and Reinvestment Act (“ARR®3s enacted on February 17, 2009. ARRA imposdainegxecutive compensati
and corporate governance obligations on all curaextfuture CPP recipients, including Porter Bapcantil the institution has redeemed
preferred stock. On June 15, 2009, under the atyhgranted to it under EESA and ARRA, the U. Sedsury issued an interim final r
under Section 111 of EESA, as amended by ARRA,rdgg compensation and corporate governance réstricthat would be imposed
CPP recipients, effective June 15, 2009. As a @ePient with currently outstanding CPP obligatiome are subject to the compensation
corporate governance restrictions and requiremsgttdorth in the interim final rule. The restranis and requirements provided for in
implementing regulations are generally as followls:required us to establish an independent congtemscommittee, (2) required us
adopt a corporate policy on luxury or excessive eexiitures; (3) requires our compensation committeeconduct semannual risl
assessments to assure that our compensation amantgedo not encourage “unnecessary and excessigg ar the manipulation of earnin
to increase compensation; (4) requires us to reocotiplawback”any bonus, retention award or incentive compensattéad by us to a sen
executive officer or any of our next 20 most higldgmpensated employees, if the payment was basdthamcial statements or ott
performance criteria that are later found to beemally inaccurate; (5) prohibits us from makingyeeance payments or “golden parachutes”
to any of our senior executive officers or nextfimnost highly compensated employees; (6) prohilstérom paying or accruing bonus
retention awards or incentive compensation, exéeptertain longterm stock awards, to our five most highly compéstteemployee
(7) prohibits us from providing tax grosps to any of our senior executive officers or n28t most highly compensated employ
(8) requires us to provide enhanced disclosuresofugsites to the FDIC and the U.S. Treasury; églires us to disclose to the FDIC anc
U.S. Treasury the use and role of compensationuttamis; (10) requires our chief executive offieerd chief financial officer to provi
period certifications about our compensation peastiand compliance with the interim final rule; dfid) requires us to provide an anr
non-binding shareholder vote, or “say-on-pgybposal, to approve the compensation of our naexedutives, consistent with regulati
promulgated by the Securities and Exchange Comomis€)n January 12, 2010, the SEC adopted finallagguos setting forth the paramet
for such sayen pay proposals for public company CPP participahhe U.S. Treasury has notified us that it ingetal sell at auction tl
shares of Series A Preferred Stock issued by thapaay. We do not know the U.S. Treasartimeline for that sale. If the U.S. Treas
completes such a sale, most of the compensatitnictess described above will no longer applytie Company and the Bank.




Capital Adequacy RequirementThe Federal Reserve Board has adopted a system tuskbased capital guidelines to evaluate the ce
adequacy of bank holding companies. Under the ¢jn&ke specific categories of assets are assigifieniet risk weights, based generally
the perceived credit risk of the asset. Thesewisights are multiplied by corresponding asset liarto determine a “risk-weightedsse
base. The guidelines require a minimum total haked capital ratio of 8.0%. At least half of th&al capital must be composed of comi
equity, retained earnings, senior perpetual prefestock issued to the U. S. Treasury under the @@Rjualifying perpetual preferred st
and certain hybrid capital instruments, less ceritaangible assets (“Tier 1 capital”). The rema@nchay consist of certasubordinated det
certain hybrid capital instruments, qualifying peéd stock and a limited amount of the allowarareldan losses (“Tier 2 capital”J.otal
capital is the sum of Tier 1 and Tier 2 capital. B® considered well-capitalized under the tiglsed capital guidelines, an institution n
maintain a total capital to total risk-weightedetsgatio of at least 10% and a Tier 1 capitabtaltriskweighted assets ratio of 6% or gree
We are under a Consent Order with our primary r@gus as previously discussed. Please see “Sujpenasd Regulationabove for ot
capital requirements.

In addition to the riskbased capital guidelines, the Federal Reserve Basgd a leverage ratio as an additional tool tduata the capit:
adequacy of bank holding companies. The leveratie issa companys Tier 1 capital divided by its average total cdidsded assets. Cert:
highly rated bank holding companies may maintamiaimum leverage ratio of 3.0%, but other bank l@idcompanies may be requirec
maintain a leverage ratio of 4.0%.

The federal banking agencies’ riblsed and leverage ratios are minimum supervistigsrgenerally applicable to banking organizatitnae
meet certain specified criteria, assuming that thaye the highest regulatory rating. Banking orgatidns not meeting these criteria
expected to operate with capital positions wellebthe minimum ratios. The federal bank regulatggncies may set capital requirem
for a particular banking organization that are kigthan the minimum ratios when circumstances wéarigederal Reserve Board guideli
also provide that banking organizations experiemdimternal growth or making acquisitions will bepexted to maintain strong cap
positions substantially above the minimum superyisevels, without significant reliance on intanigilassets.

Dividends.Under Federal Reserve policy, bank holding comasi®uld pay cash dividends on common stock onfyobincome availabl
over the past year and only if prospective earnmatgntion is consistent with the organizatoexpected future needs and financial condi
The policy provides that bank holding companiesuthmot declare a level of cash dividends that umitees the bank holding compasy’
ability to serve as a source of strength to itskbamsubsidiaries.

Porter Bancorp is a legal entity separate andndistrom PBI Bank. The majority of our revenue rismi dividends paid to us by PBI Ba
PBI Bank is subject to laws and regulations thaitlthe amount of dividends it can pay. If, in tyginion of a federal regulatory agency
institution under its jurisdiction is engaged ini®rabout to engage in an unsafe or unsound peadtie agency may require, after notice
hearing, that the institution cease such praciibe. federal banking agencies have indicated thghgalividends that deplete an institution’
capital base to an inadequate level would be amfensnd unsound banking practice. Under the Fedgegbsit Insurance Corporat
Improvement Act (FDICIA), an insured institution ynaot pay any dividend if payment would cause iberome undercapitalized or i
already is undercapitalized. Moreover, the Fed@eserve and the FDIC have issued policy statenpeatsding that bank holding compan
and banks should generally pay dividends only égtierent operating earnings. A bank holding conyparay still declare and pay a divide
if it does not have current operating earninghi@ bank holding company expects profits for thérentear and the bank holding comp
obtains the prior consent of the Federal ReseregePBancorp and PBI Bank must obtain the priattem consent of each of their prim
regulators prior to declaring or paying any futdrédends.

Under Kentucky law, dividends by Kentucky banks rbaypaid only from current or retained net profésfore any dividend may be decla
for any period (other than with respect to preféistock), a bank must increase its capital surpjuat least 10% of the net profits of the b
for the period until the ban&’capital surplus equals the amount of its statgyital attributable to its common stock. Moreovhg Kentuck
Department of Financial Institutions must apprdve declaration of dividends if the total divideridsbe declared by a bank for any calel
year would exceed the bé's total net profits for such year combined withrétained net profits for the preceding two yebass any require
transfers to surplus or a fund for the retiremdngreferred stock or debt. We are also subjedi¢oktentucky Business Corporation Act, wt
generally prohibits dividends to the extent thesutein the insolvency of the corporation from daln@e sheet perspective or in the corpor:
becoming unable to pay its debts as they comeRBEBank did not pay any dividends in 2012.

Prior to November 21, 2011, unless Porter Bancedeemed all of the Series A Preferred Stock issudige U.S. Treasury on November
2008 or unless the U.S. Treasury transferred alptieferred securities to a third party, the coheéthe U.S. Treasury was required for Pc
Bancorp to declare or pay any dividend or makedisfyibution on common stock other than (i) regujaarterly cash dividends of not m
than the per share dividend amount at the tim&éefigssuance of the Series A Preferred Stock, astedj for any stock split, stock divide
reverse stock split, reclassification or similaansaction, (ii) dividends payable solely in shanéscommon stock and (iii) dividends
distributions of rights or junior stock in connegtiwith a shareholders’ rights plan.




Imposition of Liability for Undercapitalized Subigides. Bank regulators are required to take “prompt cdivecaction”to resolve problen
associated with insured depository institutions sehocapital declines below certain levels. In theen¢van institution becom
“undercapitalized,’it must submit a capital restoration plan. The wdpiestoration plan will not be accepted by thgutators unless ea
company having control of the undercapitalizediingbn guarantees the subsidiay¢ompliance with the capital restoration plan o
certain specified amount. Any such guarantee fromepository institutiors holding company is entitled to a priority of pagmh ir
bankruptcy.

The aggregate liability of the holding company ofumdercapitalized bank is limited to the lesseb%f of the institutiors assets at the time
became undercapitalized or the amount necessacguse the institution to be “adequately capitalizdthe bank regulators have grei
power in situations where an institution becomegnigicantly” or “critically” undercapitalized or fails to submit a capital restion plan. Fc
example, a bank holding company controlling suchnatitution can be required to obtain prior Fetl&aserve Board approval of propo
dividends, or might be required to consent to asobidation or to divest the troubled institutionather affiliates.

Source of Financial Strengthinder Federal Reserve policy, a bank holding comjmexpected to act as a source of financial gtreto, an
to commit resources to support, its bank subsigarihis support may be required at times whererdbsuch a policy, the bank hold
company may not be inclined to provide it. In aidit any capital loans by the bank holding compinis bank subsidiaries are subordii
in right of payment to deposits and to certain othdebtedness of the bank subsidiary. In the egéatbank holding compang/bankruptcy
any commitment by the bank holding company to &ifeldbank regulatory agency to maintain the capitaiubsidiary banks will be assun
by the bankruptcy trustee and entitled to a pyasftpayment. The Federal Reserve’s “Source ofiied Strength’policy was codified in tk
Dodd-Frank Act.

PBI Bank. PBI Bank, a Kentucky chartered commercial bankpigject to regular bank examinations and otherrsigien and regulation
both the FDIC and the Kentucky Department of Fimantnstitutions (*KDFI”). Kentucky’'s banking statess contain a “super-parity”
provision that permits a wethted Kentucky banking corporation to engage in laauyking activity which could be engaged in by sama!
bank operating in any state; a state bank, a thrifavings bank operating in any other state; fadaral chartered thrift or federal savi
association meeting the qualified thrift lendert twsd operating in any state could engage, providedKentucky bank first obtains a le
opinion specifying the statutory or regulatory gesons that permit the activity.

Capital RequirementsSimilar to the Federal Reserve Board’'s requiremémtdank holding companies, the FDIC has adopiskHrase!
capital requirements for assessing state non-mebdgks’ capital adequacy. The FDIC's risksed capital guidelines require that all b
maintain a minimum ratio of total capital to toték-weighted assets of 8.0% and a minimum ratidief 1 capital to total riskveightec
assets of 4.0%. To be well-capitalized, a banktrhage a ratio of total capital to total rigleighted assets of at least 10.0% and a ratioe
1 capital to total risk-weighted assets of 6.0%.

PBI Bank has agreed with its primary regulatorsn&intain a ratio of total capital to total rigskeighted assets of at least 12.0% and a ra
Tier 1 capital to total assets of 9%. As of Decengife 2012, PBI Bank’s ratio of total capital tdabrisk-weighted assets was 9.8% ant
ratio of Tier 1 capital to total assets was 5.4%hhunder the ratios required by the Consent Order.

The FDIC also requires a minimum leverage rati@.686 of Tier 1 capital to total assets for the kbigftrated banks and an additional cus
of approximately 100-200 basis points for all othanks. The leverage ratio operates in tandemtw@&h=DIC’s riskbased capital guidelin
and places a limit on the amount of leverage a lsankundertake by requiring a minimum level of talfb total assets.

Prompt Corrective ActiorPursuant to the Federal Deposit Insurance Act (A&2RIthe FDIC must take prompt corrective action to hesthe
problems of undercapitalized institutions. FDIC ukgions define the levels at which an insureditaton would be consideredwell
capitalized,” “adequately capitalized,” “undercafited,” “significantly undercapitalized” and “ddally undercapitalized.” A “well-
capitalized” bank has a total risk-based capitibraf 10.0% or higher; a Tier 1 riskased capital ratio of 6.0% or higher; a leveragm rof
5.0% or higher; and is not subject to any writtgneement, order or directive requiring it to maimta specific capital level for any cap
measure. An “adequately capitalized” bank has @ tigk-based capital ratio of 8.0% or higher; arTl riskbased capital ratio of 4.0%
higher; a leverage ratio of 4.0% or higher (3.0%igher if the bank was rated a composite 1 imitst recent examination report and is
experiencing significant growth); and does not niketcriteria for a well-capitalized bank. A bask‘undercapitalizedif it fails to meet an
one of the ratios required to be adequately capidl A depository institution may be deemed tarbe capitalization category that is lo\
than is indicated by its actual capital positioit ileceives an unsatisfactory examination ratiftge degree of regulatory scrutiny increases
the permissible activities of a bank decreaseshadank moves downward through the capital categoDepending on a barklevel o
capital, the FDIC's corrective powers include:
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e requiring a capital restoration ple

< placing limits on asset growth and restriction otivéties;

« requiring the bank to issue additional voting drestcapital stock or to be acquire
* placing restrictions on transactions with affilisit

e restricting the interest rate the bank may pay epodits;

< ordering a new election of the b¢s board of directors

e requiring that certain senior executive officerglmectors be dismisse
»  prohibiting the bank from accepting deposits framrrespondent bank
e requiring the bank to divest certain subsidiar

« prohibiting the payment of principal or interestsubordinated debt; ar
< ultimately, appointing a receiver for the ba

In the event an institution is required to submitagital restoration plan, the institution’s holginompany must guaranty the subsidiary’
compliance with the capital restoration plan upateertain specified amount. Any such guarantee feodepository institutiors’ holding
company is entitled to a priority of payment in kamptcy. The aggregate liability of the holdingngeany of an undercapitalized ban!
limited to the lesser of 5% of the institutisrassets at the time it became undercapitalizéteaamount necessary to cause the institution
“adequately capitalized.” The bank regulators hgweater power in situations where an institutiomdmees “significantly” or “critically”
undercapitalized or fails to submit a capital restion plan. For example, a bank holding compangtroding such an institution can
required to obtain prior Federal Reserve Board agdrof proposed dividends, or might be requireddnsent to a consolidation or to diy
the troubled institution or other affiliates.

Deposit Insurance AssessmeiThe deposits of PBI Bank are insured by the Degasiirance Fund (DIF) of the FDIC up to the linsts
forth under applicable law and are subject to thpodit insurance premium assessments of the DIE.FOHC imposes a riskased depos
premium assessment system, which was amended ptitsuhe Federal Deposit Insurance Reform Act@2 (the “Reform Act”).Undel
this system, as amended, the assessment rates fiwsuaed depository institution vary accordinghe level of risk incurred in its activitie
To arrive at an assessment rate for a bankingutisti, the FDIC places it in one of four risk q@deies determined by reference to its ca
levels and supervisory ratings. The assessmentschtedule can change from time to time, at therelimn of the FDIC, subject to cert:
limits.

On November 12, 2009, the FDIC amended the final adopted on May 22, 2009 to restore losses t®tRe The new rule required insul
institutions to prepay on December 30, 2009, ameséd quarterly riskased assessment for the fourth quarter of 200%caradl 2010, 201!
and 2012. An institution’s assessment is calculatethking the institutiors actual September 30, 2009 assessment and adjitstimarterl
by an estimated 5% annual growth rate through titeaf 2012. Further, the FDIC incorporated a umifd basis point increase effect
January 1, 2011. On December 30, 2009, PBI Bangaile$7.9 million of FDIC insurance premiums forl®0through 2012. The ent
amount of the prepaid assessment was recordegrapaid expense. As of December 31, 2009, and quaentter thereafter, each institutio
to record an expense, or a charge to earningstsfauarterly assessment invoiced on its quarteidgement and an offsetting credit to
prepaid assessment until the asset is exhaustddkeddmber 31, 2012, our prepaid assessment wasstrda

The Dodd-Frank Act imposes additional assessmerdscasts with respect to deposits. Under the Dedaohk Act, the FDIC is directed
impose deposit insurance assessments based orasstb rather than total deposits, as well asnggkérmanent the increase of def
insurance to $250,000 and providing for full insw@ of noninterest bearing transaction accounts beginningeBéer 31, 2010, for tv
years. In February 2011, the FDIC adopted a finkd on the deposit insurance assessment systemulenes effective as of April 1, 201
and revises the assessment system to comply widhdBmank and also includes a revised assessment rategs with the goal

differentiating insured depository institutions whose greater risk to the DIF. The first assesssnentier the new rule were payable in
third quarter of 2011.

Safety and Soundness StandardsThe FDIA requires the federal bank regulatogerzies to prescribe standards, by regulatior
guidelines, relating to internal controls, informat systems and internal audit systems, loan dootatien, credit underwriting, interest r
risk exposure, asset growth, asset quality, easnistpck valuation and compensation, fees and ignahd such other operational

managerial standards as the agencies deem appeo@Bisidelines adopted by the federal bank regulagencies establish general stanc
relating to internal controls and information sysse internal audit systems, loan documentatiorgiciederwriting, interest rate expost
asset growth and compensation, fees and benefigeneral, the guidelines require, among otheigthiappropriate systems and practict
identify and manage the risk and exposures spdcifiethe guidelines. The guidelines prohibit exoesg£ompensation as an unsafe
unsound practice and describe compensation as sxeewhen the amounts paid are unreasonable orogisgionate to the servic
performed by an executive officer, employee, dect principal stockholder. In addition, the agescadopted regulations that authorize
do not require, an agency to order an institutioat thas been given notice by an agency that ibtssatisfying any of such safety ¢



soundness standards to submit a compliance plaaftdf being so notified, an institution failssebmit an acceptable compliance plan or
in any material respect to implement an acceptetapliance plan, the agency must issue an ordectitig action to correct the deficier
and may issue an order directing other actionsheftypes to which an undercapitalized institutisrsiibject under thepfompt correctiv
action” provisions of FDIA. See “Prompt Correctifetions” above. If an institution fails to comply with suah order, the agency may s
to enforce such order in judicial proceedings anitnipose civil money penalties.




Branching. Kentucky law permits Kentucky chartered banks taldish a banking office in any county in KentuckyKentucky bank me
also establish a banking office outside of Kentudkell capitalized Kentucky banks that have beenparation at least three years and
satisfy certain criteria relating to, among oth@ngs, their composite and management ratings, @stgblish a banking office in Kentuc
without the approval of the KDFI upon notice to BFI and any other state bank with its main officeated in the county where the r
banking office will be located. Branching by alhet banks requires the approval of the KDFI, whestrascertain and determine that
public convenience and advantage will be served modhoted and that there is reasonable probalmfitthe successful operation of
banking office.

The transaction must also be approved by the FRI@ch considers a number of factors, including fiicial history, capital adequa
earnings prospects, character of management, nédus community and consistency with corporate @w

Historically, an out-ofstate bank was permitted to establish banking esfin Kentucky only by merging with a Kentucky baile novc
branching into Kentucky by an out-of-state bank was permitted. This difficulty for out-aftate banks to branch in Kentucky limited
ability of a Kentucky bank to branch into many statas several states have reciprocity requirenfienisterstate branching. The Doddank
Act permits de novo interstate branching by nafidrzaks and insured state banks by amending the “gipt-in” election. Applications f
out-ofstate de novo branches would be approved if, utidetaw of the state in which the branch is todmated, a state bank charteret
such state would be permitted to establish thedbran

Insider Credit TransactionsThe restrictions on loans to directors, executiiicers, principal shareholders and their relatatkriest
(collectively referred to herein as “insidergdntained in the Federal Reserve Act and Regul@iapply to all insured depository institutit
and their subsidiaries. These restrictions inclilés on loans to one borrower and conditions tmaitst be met before such a loan ca
made. There is also an aggregate limitation otoahs to insiders and their related interests. @heans cannot exceed the institut®iota
unimpaired capital and surplus.

Automated Overdraft Payment Regulati The Federal Reserve and FDIC have recently enactiesimer protection regulations relate
automated overdraft payment programs offered bgniiral institutions. In November 2009, the Fed&aserve amended its Regulation
prohibit financial institutions from charging comsars fees for paying overdrafts on automated teHachine and ontme debit car
transactions, unless a consumer consents, ormpts the overdraft service for those types ofgeantions. The Regulation E amendments
require financial institutions to provide consumeith a notice that explains the financial insiibnts overdraft services, including the f
associated with the service and the consumer’'sehoi

In November 2010, the FDIC supplemented the Reiguld8 amendments by requiring FDEDpervised institutions to implement additic
changes relating to automated overdraft paymergrpros by July 1, 2011. The most significant of éhelsanges require financial instituti
to monitor overdraft payment programs for “excessiv chronic” customer use and undertake “meanirayfid effective” followup actior
with customers that overdraw their accounts moaa ix times during a rolling 12wonth period. The additional guidance also impaizely
limits on overdraft charges, requires institutidasreview and modify chec&learing procedures, prominently distinguish actdalance
from available overdraft coverage amounts and reguncreased board and management oversight iegargerdraft payment programs.

Consumer Protection LawBBI Bank is subject to consumer laws and regulatitiat are designed to protect consumers in trénsaawitt
banks. While the list set forth herein is not exdiaue, these laws and regulations include the Tiuthending Act, the Truth in Savings A
the Electronic Funds Transfer Act, the Expeditedd=uAvailability Act, the Equal Credit Opportunifyct, the Fair Housing Act, the R«
Estate Settlement and Procedures Act, the FairitOReghorting Act, and the Federal Trade Commisgiot) among others. References t
summaries of these laws is subject to the full sxd implementation of such laws. These laws agdlations mandate certain disclos
requirements and regulate the manner in which @i@uinstitutions must deal with customers whenrtgkdeposits or making loans to s
customers.




Privacy. Federal law currently contains extensive customigapy protection provisions. Under these provisioa financial institution mu
provide to its customers, at the inception of thustomer relationship and annually thereafter, thaitution’s policies and procedul
regarding the handling of customersnpublic personal financial information. Thesevsimns also provide that, except for certain lgo
exceptions, an institution may not provide suctspeal information to unaffiliated third parties ess the institution discloses to the custc
that such information may be so provided and thstaruer is given the opportunity to opt out of suli$closure. Federal law makes
criminal offense, except in limited circumstancespbtain or attempt to obtain customer informatadra financial nature by fraudulent
deceptive means.

Community Reinvestment AThe Community Reinvestment Act (“CRAPequires the FDIC to assess our record in meetiagtedit neec
of the communities we serve, including low- and ematie-income neighborhoods and persons. The FDd€sessment of our record is
available to the public. The assessment also is gfathe Federal Reserve Boasdtonsideration of applications to acquire, merg
consolidate with another banking institution ortitdding company, to establish a new banking officéo relocate an office.

Bank Secrecy AcThe Bank Secrecy Act of 1970 (“BSAWas enacted to deter money laundering, establghlatry reporting standards
currency transactions and improve detection andstigation of criminal, tax and other regulatorglations. BSA and subsequent laws
regulations require us to take steps to preventsieeof PBI Bank in the flow of illegal or illicihoney, including, without limitation, ensuri
effective management oversight, establishing sopolities and procedures, developing effective nmoimty and reporting capabilitie
ensuring adequate training and establishing a celngmsive internal audit of BSA compliance actigitien recent years, federal regula
have increased the attention paid to complianch thié provisions of BSA and related laws, with jgafar attention paid toKnow Your
Customer”practices. Banks have been encouraged by regulatershance their identification procedures privatcepting new customers
order to deter criminal elements from using thekioagnsystem to move and hide illegal and illicitiaities.

USA Patriot Act.The USA Patriot Act of 2001 (the “Patriot Act”) dams antimoney laundering measures affecting insured depy
institutions, brokedealers and certain other financial institutionee TPatriot Act requires financial institutions toglement policies at
procedures to combat money laundering and the dingnof terrorism, including standards for verifgicustomer identification at acco
opening, and rules to promote cooperation amoranfiral institutions, regulators and law enforcenemtities in identifying parties that nr
be involved in terrorism or money laundering, amangs the Secretary of the Treasury broad authtwigstablish regulations and to imp
requirements and restrictions on financial insiitos’ operations. In addition, the Patriot Act requires federal bank regulatory agencie
consider the effectiveness of a financial institn antimoney laundering activities when reviewing bank gees and bank holding comps
acquisitions.

Temporary Liquidity Guarantee Progrartinder the FDICS Temporary Liquidity Guarantee Program (TLGP), Bi2IC guaranteed U.
depository institutions’ transaction accounts aedain qualifying senior unsecured debt. We paotited in the TLGF Transaction Accou
Guarantee Program (TAGP), which provided that afiimterest bearing transaction accounts maintaindtBatBank were insured in full |
the FDIC, regardless of the standard maximum dépusirance amounts. Although the guarantee ofintanest bearing transaction accc
deposits under the TLGP ended on June 30, 201Mdkd-Frank Act provided for unlimited FDIC depasisurance coverage on noreres
bearing transaction accounts at all insured irtstitg, regardless of participation in the TLGP,ilufdgnuary 1, 2013.

Effect on Economic Environment. The policies of regulatory authorities, includifgetmonetary policy of the Federal Reserve Boardg
a significant effect on the operating results ohlb&olding companies and their subsidiaries. Amtrg means available to the Fed
Reserve Board to affect the money supply are oparkeh operations in U.S. government securitiespngba in the discount rate on men
bank borrowings and changes in reserve requiremeydainst member bank deposits. These means areiusedying combinations

influence overall growth and distribution of bamahs, investments and deposits, and their use ffegt anterest rates charged on loan
paid for deposits.

Federal Reserve Board monetary policies have nadliedffected the operating results of commerciahhs in the past and are expecte
continue to do so in the future. The nature offeitmonetary policies and the effect of such padida our business and earnings and thc
our subsidiaries cannot be predicted.

Recently Enacted and Future Legislation. Various laws, regulations and governmental prograffiscting financial institutions and 1
financial industry are from time to time introducedCongress or otherwise promulgated by regulasmggncies. Such measures may ch
the operating environment of Porter Bancorp andsitsidiaries in substantial and unpredictable way®e nature and extent of fut
legislative, regulatory or other changes affecfingncial institutions is very unpredictable atsthime.
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We cannot predict what other legislation or ecormpdlicies of the various regulatory authoritieghtibe enacted or adopted or what ¢
regulations might be adopted or the effects therdeafure legislation and policies and the effeltrdéof might have a significant influence
overall growth and distribution of loans, investrieeand deposits and affect interest rates chargetbans or paid on time and savi
deposits. Such legislation and policies have hsigmificant effect on the operating results of coenoial banks in the past and are expect
continue to do so in the future.

Available Information

We file reports with the SEC including our annugpart on Form 10-K, quarterly reports on Form 10ecQ@rent event reports on Formks-
and proxy statements, as well as any amendmerit®se reports. The public may read and copy anniadg we file with the SEC at t
SEC's Public Reference Room at 100 F Street, NE, Washiin DC 20549. The public may obtain informationtbe operation of the Puk
Reference Room by calling the SEC at 1-800-%B30. The SEC maintains an internet site that @osmteeports, proxy and informati
statements and other information regarding issthetsfile electronically with the SEC at http://wwsgc.gov. Our annual report on Form 10-
K, quarterly reports on Form 10-Q, current reporisForm 8K, and amendments to those reports filed or fuedspursuant to section 13
or 15(d) of the Exchange Act are accessible atasd @n our web site at http://www.pbibank.coomder the Investors Relations section,
they are electronically filed with or furnishedttte SEC. A shareholder may also request a copyioAanual Report on Form 1K-free of
charge upon written request to: Chief Financial@®ff, Porter Bancorp, Inc., 2500 Eastpoint Parkvayisville, Kentucky 40223.

Item 1A. Risk Factors

An investment in our common stock involves a nundfaisks. Realization of any of the risks desatilielow could have a material adve
effect on our business, financial condition, resol operations, cash flow and/or future prospects.

We are subject to a Consent Order with the FDIC andhe KDFI and a formal agreement with the Federal Rserve that restrict the
conduct of our operations and may have a materialdverse effect on our business.

Our good standing with bank regulatory agenciesf fsindamental importance to the continuation of businesses. In June 2011, PBI E
agreed to a Consent Order with the FDIC and KDFivirich the Bank agreed, among other thingsintprove asset quality, reduce ¢
concentrations, and maintain a minimum Tier 1 lagerratio of 9% and a minimum total risk basedteapatio of 12%.The Consent Ord
was included in our Current Report on 8-K filedJame 30, 2011.

On September 21, 2011, we entered into a Writtereéygent with the Federal Reserve Bank of St. LoRigtsuant to the Agreement,
made formal commitments to, among other things,ausefinancial and management resources to seneesasirce of strength for the B:
and to assist the Bank in addressing weaknessesfiglé by the FDIC and the KDFI, to pay no dividisnwithout prior written approval,
pay no interest or principal on subordinated delrestor trust preferred securities without prioitten approval, and to submit an accept
plan to maintain sufficient capital.

In October 2012, the Bank entered into a new Cdr®eder with the FDIC and KDFI again agreeing toimtain a minimum Tier 1 levera
ratio of 9% and a minimum total risk based capistio of 12%. The Bank also agreed that if it sddoé unable to reach the required ca
levels, and if directed in writing by the FDIC, ththe Bank would within 30 days develop, adopt mmalement a written plan to sell or me
itself into another federally insured financialtingion or otherwise immediately obtain a suffitiecapital investment into the Bank to fu
meet the capital requirements. The new Consentr@ide requires the Bank to continue to adheréegtans implemented in response tc
June 2011 Consent Order, and includes the substgmtbvisions of the June 2011 Consent Ordég.did not meet the capital ratios requ
by the Consent Order as of December 31, 2012.

Bank regulatory agencies can exercise discretiogrvan institution does not meet minimum regulat@pital levels and the other terms
consent order. The agencies may initiate changesanagement, issue mandatory directives, imposeetary penalties or refrain frc
formal sanctions, depending on individual circumsgs. Any action taken by bank regulatory agenuiesd damage our reputation and t
a material adverse effect on our business. Com#iavith the Consent Order also increases our dpgrakpense, and adversely affects
financial performance.
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We have made commitments to the banking regulator® raise additional capital. Our inability to increase our capital to the level:
required by our bank regulatory agreements could hae a material adverse effect on our business.

We recorded a net loss to common shareholders3#38illion in 2012. The net loss for 2012 was dueart to provision for loan losses
$40.3 million, and $10.5 million of expense relatedther real estate owned.

Our losses, driven by asset impairments, nonpeifgioan costs, and other real estate owned expehasge reduced our capital below
levels agreed upon with our banking regulators. lgVhie believe we have recognized the probable $oss@ur portfolio, the continuit
weakness in the real estate market makes it diffioudetermine the degree to which additional peming loans will deteriorate to weakel
credit status. Further credit deterioration coasult in additional losses and a reduction in ehjetvels.

In its consent order with the FDIC and the KDFI,IBnk has agreed to maintain a ratio of total apd total riskweighted assets of at le
12.0% and a ratio of Tier 1 capital to total aseét8%. As of December 31, 2012, PBI Bank’s rafidatal capital to total riskweighted asse
was 9.8% and its ratio of Tier 1 capital to totssets was 5.4%, both below the ratios requiredhéyonsent order.

We have agreed with and submitted to the FDIC KB&| and the Federal Reserve Bank of St. Louisaa ftb restore our capital ratios
levels that comply with our regulatory agreemelife. are evaluating various specific initiatives norease our regulatory capital and rec
our total assets. Strategic alternatives inclugesting of branch offices, selling loans and rajsiapital by selling stock.

Our ability to raise additional capital will depead, among other things, conditions in the capitatkets at that time, which are outside of
control, and our financial performandecluding the management of our revenue, expetsesls of average assets, credit quality, and §
of other real estate owneWe may not have access to capital on acceptahiester at all. Our inability to raise additionalpdal or
acceptable terms when needed could have a maddsialse effect on our businesses, financial cardénd results of operations. In addit
if we are unable to comply with our regulatory ¢apirequirements, it could result in more stringenforcement actions by the bi
regulatory agencies, which could damage our rejoutaind have a material adverse effect on our legsin

Our ability to pay cash dividends on our common andpreferred stock and pay interest on the junior subrdinated debentures tha
relate to our trust preferred securities is currenty restricted. Our inability to resume paying dividends and distributions on thes
securities may adversely affect our common sharetuagrs.

We historically paid quarterly cash dividends om common stock until we suspended dividend paymienBctober 2011. Effective with t
fourth quarter of 2011, we began deferring caskddivds on the Series A Preferred Stock held byutige Treasury and interest payment
the junior subordinated notes relating to our tprsferred securities. Deferring interest paymentshe junior subordinated notes resulte
a deferral of distributions on our trust preferssaturities We will be prohibited from paying cash dividendsamr common stock until su
time as we have paid all deferred dividends onSmries A Preferred Stock and all deferred distidimst on our trust preferred securities.

If we defer interest payments on our trust prefersecurities for 20 consecutive quartes® must pay all deferred interest and res
quarterly interest payments or we will be in defaulf we miss six quarterly dividend payments on tlegi&s A preferred stock, whethel
not consecutive, the U.S. Treasury will have tlghtrio appoint two directors to our board of diogstuntil all accrued but unpaid divide!
have been paid. Dividends on the Series A prefestedk and deferred distributions on our trust gmefd securities are cumulative
therefore unpaid dividends and distributions witclale and compound on each subsequent paymentItiate. become subject to a
liquidation, dissolution or winding up of affairsplders of the trust preferred securities and ti@ders of the preferred stock will be enti
to receive the liquidation amounts to which theg antitled including the amount of any accrued angdaid distributions and dividen
before any distribution to the holders of commamtkt

Our business has been and may continue to be advelg affected by current conditions in the financialmarkets and by economi
conditions generally.

Although the economic slowdown that the United &dtas experienced since 2008 has begun to rezedséhe markets have gener
improved, businesses across a wide range of indsistontinue to face serious difficulties due te ldick of consumer spending and the lac
liquidity in the global credit markets. Ongoing Weass in business and economic conditions genevalpecifically in our markets has h
and could continue to have one or more of the falig adverse effects on our business:
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A decrease in the demand for loans and other ptedund services offered by t

A decrease in the value of collateral securingloans;

An impairment of certain intangible assets, suchaxe deposit intangibles; a

An increase in the number of customers who becoetiaquent, file for protection under bankruptcy &awer default on the
loans.

The general business environment has had an adeffiext on our business during the past four yeAtthough the general busin
environment has shown some improvement, there eamlassurance that such improvement can be sedtain addition, the improvem
of certain economic indicators, such as real estaset values and rents and unemployment, maybe&iween geographic markets and

continue to lag behind improvement in the overabromy. These economic indicators typically affiaet real estate and financial serv
industries, in which we have a significant numbércastomers, more significantly than other econosectors. Furthermore, we hav
substantial lending business that depends upoaklitigy of borrowers to make debt service paymemtdoans. Should unemployment or

estate asset values fail to recover for an extepéeidd of time, or if economic conditions worsenremain volatile, our business, finan
condition or results of operations could be adJgraBected.

A large percentage of our loans are collateralizety real estate, and prolonged weakness in the reastate market may result in losse
and adversely affect our profitability.

Approximately 89.3% of our loan portfolio as of Resber 31, 2012, was comprised of commercial anideesal loans collateralized by r
estate. Adverse economic conditions since 2008 Haeecased demand for real estate which has depresal estate values in our mark
Persistent weakness in the real estate market amrtnue to significantly impair the value of ocwllateral and our ability to sell t
collateral upon foreclosure. The real estate caiidtin each case provides an alternate sourcepafyment in the event of default by
borrower and may deteriorate in value during theetthe credit is extended. If real estate valuetirdefurther, it will become more likely tr
we would be required to increase our allowancddan losses. If during a period of reduced realtestalues, we are required to liquidate
collateral securing a loan to satisfy the debtawincrease our allowance for loan losses, it coukterially reduce our profitability a
adversely affect our financial condition.

We have a significant percentage of real estate cstnuction and development loans, which carry a higér degree of risk. Persister
weakness in the residential construction and commeial development real estate markets has increasdéke non-performing assets ir
our loan portfolio and our provision expense for I@ses on loans. These impacts have had, and coutthtinue to have a materia
adverse effect on our capital, financial conditiorand results of operations.

Approximately 7.8% of our loan portfolio as of Dedeer 31, 2012, consisted of real estate constrnuetial development loans. These I
generally carry a higher degree of risk than ltergr financing of existing properties because repayt depends on the ultimate comple
of the project and usually on the sale of the priypéf we are forced to foreclose on a projecbpito its completion, we may not be abli
recover the entire unpaid portion of the loan omaay be required to fund additional money to corteptee project or hold the property for
indeterminate period of time. Any of these outcommey result in losses and adversely affect ouritatuifity.

Residential construction and commercial developrmeat estate activity in our markets continues ¢oalfected by challenging econol
conditions. Prolonged weakness in these sectorsleaayto additional valuation adjustments on oanlportfolios and real estate owne!
we continue to reassess the fair value of our penfierming assets, the loss severity of loans faweand the fair value of real estate ow:
We also may realize additional losses in connectith our disposition of nomperforming assets. A weak real estate market chuttiel
reduce demand for residential housing, which, in,taould adversely affect real estate developraadtconstruction activities. Consequel
the longer the current economic conditions pertist,more likely they are to adversely affect thditg of residential real estate develo
borrowers to repay these loans and the value qfgpty used as collateral for such loans. Thesemnanconditions and market factors h
negatively affected some of our larger loans, causiur total netharge offs to increase and requiring us to sigaifily increase o
allowance for loan losses. If adverse economic itimmg persist, these trends could continue to amrdny further increase in our non-
performing assets and related increases in ouriggoovexpense for losses on loans could negatigéfigct our business and could hay
material adverse effect on our capital, financ@idition and results of operations.

Our decisions regarding credit risk may not be accrate, and our allowance for loan losses may not mufficient to cover actual losse
which could adversely affect our business, financi@ondition and results of operations.

We maintain an allowance for loan losses at a lexebelieve is adequate to absorb probable incda®sks in our loan portfolio based
historical loan loss experience, specific problerank, value of underlying collateral and othervate factors. If our assessment of tt
factors is ultimately inaccurate, the allowance nmay be sufficient to cover actual future loan &ssswhich would adversely affect
operating results. Our estimates are subjective,their accuracy depends on the outcome of futuemts. Changes in economic, operg
and other conditions that are generally beyondcoutrol could cause actual loan losses to incre@mggficantly. In addition, bank regulatc
agencies, as an integral part of their supervisongtions, periodically review the adequacy of allowance for loan losses. Regulal
agencies have from time to time required us toeiase our provision for loan losses or to recogaittditional loan chargeffs when thei
judgment has differed from ours. Any of these ¢éveould have a material negative impact on ouraip®y results
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Our levels of additional classified loans and mpamforming assets may increase in the foreseeahleefif economic conditions remain w
and cause more borrowers to default. Further, ahagevof the collateral underlying a given loan, #mglrealizable value of such collateral
foreclosure sale, are likely to decline if the reatate markets remain weak, making us less liteelgealize a full recovery if a borrow
defaults on a loan. Any additional increases inlethel of our non-performing assets, loan chasffe-or provision for loan losses, or 1
inability to realize the full value of underlyingltateral in the event of a loan default, could atdgely affect our business, financial condit
and results of operations and the trading priceunfsecurities.

We have had difficulty maintaining effective interral controls over loan grading.

As of December 31, 2011, management determinedtlratontrols regarding the determination of loasdgs were not operating effectivi
Specifically, our internal control process surromgdioan grades, which consists of a combinatiorintérnal and external loan revi
activities, identified and corrected the gradestfa majority of loans that were not initially geaticorrectly. However, we determined

such loan review did not sufficiently cover all tsasubject to potential grading error during 20Wle expanded the scope of our contro
cover the remainder of the portfolio and adjustad alowance for loan losses as of December 311 20ltake the additional findings i
consideration. Although the Company has determasedf December 31, 2012 that this weakness hasreesediated, it is possible that
could have additional internal control weaknesthis area in future periods.

If we experience greater credit losses than anticgied, our operating results may be adversely affeet.

As a lender, we are exposed to the risk that ostoooers will be unable to repay their loans aceaydo their terms and that any collat
securing the payment of their loans may not bei@afft to assure repayment. Credit losses are @mtién the business of making loans
could have a material adverse effect on our opegatsults. Our credit risk with respect to oull estate and construction loan portfolio
relate principally to the creditworthiness of bavars and the value of the real estate serving@agisgfor the repayment of loans. Our cri
risk with respect to our commercial and consumean Iportfolio will relate principally to the generateditworthiness of businesses
individuals within our local markets.

We make various assumptions and judgments aboutllextability of our loan portfolio and provide allowance for estimated credit los
based on a number of factors. We believe that dawance for credit losses is adequate. Howeveouif assumptions or judgments
wrong, our allowance for credit losses may not bificgent to cover our actual credit losses. We rhaye to increase our allowance in
future in response to the request of one of oung@ry banking regulators, to adjust for changingditions and assumptions, or as a rest
any deterioration in the quality of our loan polido The actual amount of future provisions forditdosses cannot be determined at this
and may vary from the amounts of past provisions.

We continue to hold and acquire a significant amounof OREO properties, which could increase operatig expenses and result
future losses to the Company.

During recent years, we have acquired a signifieambunt of real estate as a result of foreclosul®yaeed in lieu of foreclosure that is lis
on our balance sheet as other real estate owneB@QPRThis increase in our OREO portfolio has ilased the expenses we have incurr
manage and dispose of these properties, which saegincludes funding construction required tolfeate sale. We expect that our opera
results in 2013 will continue to be adversely affelcby expenses associated with OREO, includingramee and taxes, completion and re
costs, as well as by the funding costs associaitbdassets that are tied up in OREO.

Properties in our OREO portfolio are recorded atldwer of the recorded investment in the loansafbich the properties previously ser
as collateral or “fair value,Which represents the estimated sales price of tbpepties on the date acquired less estimatechgetiosts
Generally, in determining “fair valuean orderly disposition of the property is assumextept where a different disposition strateg
expected. Significant judgment is required in eating the fair value of OREQO, and the period ofeimithin which such estimates can
considered current may change during periods oketaolatility, such as we have experienced sir@@gs2

Any further decreases in market prices of realtestaour market areas may lead to additional ORE{e downs, with a correspondi
expense in our income statement. We evaluate ORBfegy values periodically and write down the ging value of the properties if a
when the results of our evaluations require it.
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In response to market conditions and other econdeaxiors, we may utilize alternative sale strategither than orderly disposition as pal
our OREO disposition strategy, such as bulk sdfethis event, as a result of the significant juegts required in estimating fair value

the variables involved in different methods of disition, the net proceeds realized from such dedesactions could differ significantly frc
appraisals, comparable sales, and other estimatss to determine the fair value of our OREO proeertin addition, our disposition
OREO through alternative sales strategies couladanihe fair value of comparable OREO properti@saiaing in our portfolio.

Our profitability depends significantly on local emnomic conditions.

Because most of our business activities are corduntcentral Kentucky and most of our credit expess in that region, we are at risk fr
adverse economic or business developments affettiingarea, including declining regional and lobakiness and employment activity
downturn in real estate values and agriculturavaiets and natural disasters. To the extent thereéKentucky economy remains weak,
rates of delinquencies, foreclosures, bankruptmigslosses in our loan portfolio will likely incis&a Moreover, the value of real estate or ¢
collateral that secures our loans could be advweefédcted by the economic downturn or a localinatural disaster. The economic down
has had a negative impact on our financial resuitt may continue to have a negative impact on osinbss, financial condition, results
operations and future prospects.

Our small to medium-sized business portfolio may hze fewer resources to weather the downturn in theaenomy.

Our portfolio includes loans to small and mediumesi businesses and other commercial enterprigaall &nd mediunsized business
frequently have smaller market shares than thempsgditors, may be more vulnerable to economic domst often need substantial additic
capital to expand or compete and may experiencstauntial variations in operating results, any ofalibmay impair a borrowes’ ability tc
repay a loan. In addition, the success of a smmath@diumsized business often depends on the managememistaled efforts of one or tv
persons or a small group of persons, and the ddahbility or resignation of one or more of thgm¥sons could have a material adv
impact on the business and its ability to repayloan. A continued economic downturn could haveaaenpronounced negative impact on
target market, which could cause us to incur sulbisecredit losses that could materially harm operating results.

Our profitability is vulnerable to fluctuations in interest rates.

Changes in interest rates could harm our finammaldition or results of operations. Our resultsopérations depend substantially on
interest income, the difference between interesteghon interest-earning assets (such as invessra@entloans) and interest paid on interest:
bearing liabilities (such as deposits and borrosjndnterest rates are highly sensitive to manyofac including governmental monet
policies and domestic and international economid @olitical conditions. Factors beyond our contrstich as inflation, recessi
unemployment and money supply may also affect@sterates. If our interest-earning assets maturepsice more quickly than our interest-
bearing liabilities in a given period as a resdlidecreasing interest rates, our net interest ircomay decrease. Likewise, our net inte
income may decrease if interest-bearing liabilitieeture or reprice more quickly than intereatning assets in a given period as a res
increasing interest rates.

Fixed-rate loans increase our exposure to inteadstrisk in a rising rate environment becauseré@stdearing liabilities would be subject
repricing before assets become subject to reprididgustablerate loans decrease the risk associated with ckangeterest rates but invol
other risks, such as the inability of borrowersntake higher payments in an increasing interestaat@onment. At the same time, for sect
loans, the marketability of the underlying collalemay be adversely affected by higher interegtstain a declining interest rate environm
there may be an increase in prepayments on loatie d®rrowers refinance their loans at lower egérates, which could reduce net inte
income and harm our results of operations.

If we cannot obtain adequate funding, we may not bable to meet the cash flow requirements of our degitors and borrowers, or mee
the operating cash needs of the Company to fund qoorate expansion or other activities.

Our liquidity policies and limits are establishey the Board of Directors of PBI Bank, with opergtilimits set by the Asset Liabili
Committee (“ALCO"), based upon analyses of theorati loans to deposits and the percentage of afsmied with norcore or wholesa
funding. The ALCO regularly monitors the overatjdidity position of PBI Bank and the Company towesthat various alternative strateq
exist to cover unanticipated events that couldcafliquidity. Liquidity is the ability to meet castow needs on a timely basis at a reasor
cost. If our liquidity policies and strategies dowork as well as intended, then we may be unabfaake loans and to repay deposit liabil
as they become due or are demanded by customeesAIBO follows established board approved polices monitors guidelines
diversify our wholesale funding sources to avoideantrations in any ongarket source. Wholesale funding sources includiei@ fund
purchased, securities sold under repurchase agntemmen-core brokered deposits, and Federal Hovaa Bank (“FHLB")advances that €
collateralized with mortgage-related assets.
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We maintain a portfolio of securities that can Isedias a secondary source of liquidity. There #nercavailable sources of liquidi
including additional collateralized borrowings suab FHLB advances, the issuance of debt securdied,the issuance of preferrec
common securities in public or private transactidhsve were unable to access any of these fundmgces when needed, we might nc
able to meet the needs of our customers, whichdcadVersely impact our financial condition, ourulés of operations, cash flows and
level of regulatory-qualifying capital.

We may need to raise additional capital in the futte by selling capital stock. Future sales or othedilution of our equity may adversely
affect the market price of our common stock.

We are not restricted from issuing additional comratock, including securities that are convertibte or exchangeable for, or that repre
the right to receive, common stock. The issuancadditional shares of common stock or the issuafiamnvertible securities would dilt
the ownership interest of our existing common shalders. The market price of our common stock calédline as a result of such
offering as well as other sales of a large blocklwres of our common stock or similar securitiethe market after such an offering, or
perception that such sales could occur.

Our stock has traded from time-ioae at a price below our book value per share ofdingly, a sale of common shares at or below tock
price would be dilutive to current shareholders.

As a bank holding company, we depend on dividendsd distributions paid by our banking subsidiary.

Porter Bancorp is a legal entity separate andntistrom PBI Banks and our other subsidiaries. @rincipal source of cash flow, from whi
we would fund any dividends paid to our sharehadkas historically been dividends Porter Bancegeives from PBI Bank. Regulations
the FDIC and the KDFI govern the ability of PBI Bato pay dividends and other distributions to ug] aegulations of the Federal Res
govern our ability to pay dividends or make othistributions to our shareholders. In its consedeomwith the FDIC and the KDFI, PBI Ba
agreed not to pay dividends to us without the prmmsent of those regulators. During 2011, Por@d8rp contributed $13.1 million to F
Bank. The contribution, which was made to strengtR8l Banks capital in an effort to help it comply with itapital ratio requiremer
under the consent order, also substantially deecedise liquid assets of Porter Bancorp. Liquid &ssiecreased from $20.3 million
December 31, 2010, to $4.9 million at December2®1,1, and to $3.5 million at December 31, 2012c&iRBI Bank is unlikely to be ir
position to pay dividends to Porter Bancorp for theeseeable future, cash inflows for Porter Bapa@me limited to earnings on investr
securities, sales of investment securities, aretast on its deposits held at PBI Bank. These dkiws, along with the liquid assets hel
December 31, 2012, are needed to cover ongoingatipgrexpenses of Porter Bancorp, which have bednced and are budgeted at !
million for 2013. Parent company liquidity could eproved by raising capital. See the “Supervidrorter Bancorp-DividendsSection o
Item 1. “Business” and the “Dividends” section té#rh 5. “Market for Registrarg’Common Equity, Related Stockholder Matters asdd
Purchases of Equity Securities” of this Annual Répa Form 10-K.

We may not pay dividends on your common stock and evhave agreed with the Federal Reserve to obtairsitvritten consent befor:
declaring or paying any future dividends.

Holders of shares of our common stock are onlytledtito receive such dividends as our board ofcttirs may declare from funds leg:
available for such payments. Although we have hisatly declared cash dividends on our common steak currently do not pay a ci
dividend and we are not required to do so. Alsszabse we have issued preferred stock to the Ueasiliry under its Capital Purch
Program (“CPP")pur ability to increase our dividend or to repusd@ur common stock is limited for so long as asgusities issued unc
such program remain outstanding, as discussectateyrdetail in the “Dividends” section of Item‘Blarket for Registrans Common Equit
Related Stockholder Matters and Issuer Purchasgsgjaity Securities” of this Annual Report on Fori®-K. There can be no assurance
we will pay dividends to our shareholders in théufe, or if dividends are paid, that we will inceeaour dividend to historical levels
otherwise. Our ability to pay dividends to our &feiders is not only subject to limitations impossdthe terms of the CPP, but alsc
limitations and guidance issued by the Federal Rese~or example, under Federal Reserve guiddracg holding companies generally
advised to consult in advance with the Federal Redeefore declaring dividends, and to stronglysider reducing, deferring or eliminat
dividends, in certain situations, such as whenataw or paying a dividend that would exceed eawifor the fiscal quarter for which 1
dividend is being paid, or when declaring or payaglividend that could result in a material adverkange to the organizatientapita
structure. In addition, Porter Bancorp has agreith the Federal Reserve to obtain its written cahgegior to declaring or paying any futi
dividends. As a practical matter, Porter Bancommned pay dividends for the foreseeable future.
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We may not be able to realize the value of our talwsses and deductions.

Due to our losses, we have a net operating losg-t@amward of $15.0 million, credit loss carfgrwards of $692,000, and other net defe
tax assets of $28.2 million. In order to realize tenefit of these tax losses, credits and dechgtioe will need to generate substantial ta
income in future periods. We established a 100%atain allowance for all deferred tax assets in12@hould the Company issue new sh
to raise additional capital, a change in contralldadbe triggeredas defined by Section 382 of the Internal RevenadeC which coul
negatively impact or limit the ability to utilizeuo net operating loss carry-forwards, credit loascforwards, and other net deferred
assets.

Our issuance of securities to the U.S. Department ¢he Treasury may limit our ability to return capi tal to our shareholders and i
dilutive to our common shares. In addition, the divdend rate increases substantially after five yearg we do not redeem the shares t
that time.

On November 21, 2008, we sold $35 million of semiferred stock to the U.S. Treasury as part®fChpital Purchase Program establi
under the Emergency Economic Stabilization Act 602 Unless we are able to redeem the preferk 4ty November 21, 2013, 1
dividends on this capital will increase substahtial that point, from 5% (approximately $1.75 moifl annually) to 9% (approximately $3
million annually). Depending on market conditiomsdeour financial performance at the time, this éase in dividends could significar
impact our capital, liquidity and earnings avaitatd common shareholders.

The terms of the transaction with the U.S. Treadamit our ability to pay dividends and repurchase shares. We will not be able to pay
dividends on our common stock unless and until veecairrent on our dividend payments on the prefesteares. Effective with the fou
quarter of 2011, we began deferring the paymemegéilar quarterly cash dividends on this prefestatk. These restrictions may have
adverse effect on the market price of our commookst

The U.S. Treasury has the unilateral ability to chage some of the restrictions imposed on us by viréuof our sale of securities to it.

In addition to the restrictions our ability to pdwidends or repurchase our stock, our preferredkspurchase agreement with the |
Treasury authorizes the U.S. Treasury to unildieehend the agreement to the extent required nopbowith any future changes in fede
statutes. Following our November 21, 2008 issuasfceenior preferred stock to the U.S. Treasurg, dgreement was amended to im|
restrictions on the conduct of our business, indgdrestrictions on the compensation we can pagexecutive officers and corpor.
governance requirements. These restrictions ccaleé hn adverse impact on the conduct of our busimascould any additional amendm
in the future that impose further requirementsroead existing requirements.

Our chairman and chairman emeritus together have sfficient voting power to elect or remove our direcbrs, to determine the vote o
any matter that requires shareholder approval, andotherwise control our company. In exercising theirvoting power, they may ac
according to their own interests, which may be adwse to your interests.

As of December 31, 2012, J. Chester Porter andaMarBouvette together beneficially owned approxeha6,072,216 shares, or 50.6%
our outstanding common stock. Mr. Porter has naadengements that provide for Ms. Bouvette to netaiting control of his common stc
in the event of death or incapacity. Ms. Bouvetis made similar arrangements that provide for angittiere including Mr. Porter and two
her siblings to retain voting control of her commstock in the event of death or incapacity. Accogtli, Mr. Porter and Ms. Bouve
currently have the power to exercise control ouar lwusiness and affairs and to determine the owtcofrany matter submitted to a vote
our shareholders, including the election and remof/a majority of our board of directors, any arderent of our articles of incorporati
(including any amendment that changes the rightsuofcommon stock) and any merger, consolidatiosate of all or substantially all of ¢
assets. Mr. Porter and Ms. Bouvette could takeoastor make decisions in their silferest that are opposed to your best interedtsy
could remove directors who take actions or makés®ts they oppose but are favored by our otheretidders. They may be less receg
to the desires communicated by shareholders. Neithearticles of incorporation, our bylaws, norrfiecky law requires the vote of m
than a simple majority of our outstanding shareza@hmon stock to approve a matter submitted forestedder approval, subject to

general statutory requirement that any transadtiamhich one or more directors have a direct oirguxt interest (other than as a shareho
must be “fair"to the corporation. Mr. Porter and Ms. Bouvetteehavevel of concentrated control that could disage others from initiatir
any potential merger, takeover or other changenofrol transaction that may otherwise give youdpportunity to realize a premium over
then-prevailing market price of our common stock.a¥result, the market price of our common stoeakdbe adversely affected.
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We are a “controlled company” within the meaning of the NASDAQ corporate governane rules because J. Chester Porter and Mar
L. Bouvette together own more than 50% of our solelass of voting stock. As a controlled company, owontrolling shareholders havi
greater power to make decisions in their own selfiterest and against the interests of other sharehaers, and investors and othe
shareholders will have fewer procedural and substaive protections against the exercise of this power

A “controlled company” may elect not to comply witke following NASDAQ corporate governance rulebjeh require that:

e a majority of its board of directors consists“imidependent directors,hich the NASDAQ rules define as persons who art
either officers or employees of the company ancehav relationships that, in the opinion of the ldoair directors, would interfe
with the exercise of independent judgment in cagyout their responsibilities as directc

e decisions regarding the compensation paid to ekecofficers are made either by a compensation citteencomposed entirely
independent directors or by a majority of the inglegent directors; ar

e nominations for election to the board of directare made either by a nominating committee compeseiely of independe
directors with a written charter addressing the withe€’' s purpose and responsibilities or by a majoritthefindependent directol

Although a majority of our directors are indepertddimectors, Mr. Porter and Ms. Bouvette, togethave the voting power to remc
directors who oppose actions or decisions theyrfaMo. Porter and Ms. Bouvette also have the power td elecajority of directors who &
not independent directors. Our board may electigpeshse with the nominating and governance comendteany time without sharehol
consent. Accordingly, our shareholders have fewecgdural and substantive protections than shatehobf companies subject to all of
NASDAQ corporate governance requireme

Higher FDIC deposit insurance premiums and assessmts could significantly increase our non-interest pense.

Our deposits are insured by the FDIC up to legaité and, accordingly, we are subject to FDIC dépnsurance assessments. High leve
bank failures over the past three years and ineseimsthe statutory deposit insurance limits haneeased resolution costs to the FDIC
put pressure on the DIF. In order to maintain argfrfunding position and restore the reserve ratfadke DIF, the FDIC increased assessi
rates on insured institutions, charged a specedsssnent to all insured institutions as of June2B09 and required banks to prepay t
year¢ worth of premiums on December 30, 2009. If ther additional financial institution failures, we mbg required to pay even hig
FDIC premiums than the recently increased levelsthe FDIC may charge additional special assessnéntrther, the FDIC recen
increased the DIF’s target reserve ratio to 2.@emrof insured deposits following the Dodd-Frardt’é elimination of the 1.5 percent cag
the DIF’s reserve ratio. Additional increases in our asses$ rate may be required in the future to achtbigtargeted reserve ratio. Th
recent increases in deposit assessments and amg fatreases, required prepayments or speciatsmsats of FDIC insurance premit
may adversely affect our business, financial comdior results of operations.

Additionally, pursuant to the Doderank Act, the FDIC amended its regulations regaydissessment for federal deposit insurance tc
such assessments on the average total consolidaseds of the insured institution during the assess period, less the average tanc
equity of the institution during the assessmentiogePrior to this change, we were assessed onfjeposit balances. The FDIC adopted a
implementing this change, as well as adopting &eelriskbased assessment calculation in February 2011FDhe has also proposed a r
tying assessment rates of FDIC-insured institutitmshe institutions employee compensation programs. The exact nafhdecumulativ
effect of these recent changes are not yet knowinthey are expected to increase the amount ofiprasnwe must pay for FDIC insuran
Any such increase may adversely affect our busjriessicial condition or results of operations.

We face strong competition from other financial insitutions and financial service companies, which add adversely affect our result:
of operations and financial condition.

We compete with other financial institutions inratting deposits and making loans. Our competitioattracting deposits comes princip:
from other commercial banks, credit unions, saviagd loan associations, securities brokerage filnssirance companies, money ma
funds and other mutual funds. Our competition irkimg loans comes principally from other commerdiahks, credit unions, savings |
loan associations, mortgage banking firms and aoesufinance companies. In addition, competition farsiness in the Louisvil
metropolitan area has grown in recent years asgasaim banking law have allowed several banks terghe market by establishing n
branches. Likewise, competition is increasing i dther growing markets we have targeted, which atersely affect our ability to exec
our plans for expansion. Moreover, our advantagenfhaving operated a nationally recognized onliaaking division since 1999 m
diminish, as nearly all of our competitors now offmline banking and may become more successfattiacting online business over time
they become more experienced.
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Competition in the banking industry may also limitr ability to attract and retain banking clieée maintain smaller staffs of associates
have fewer financial and other resources than targtitutions with which we compete. Financialtingions that have far greater resou
and greater efficiencies than we do may have skneeketplace advantages resulting from their ghit:

offer higher interest rates on deposits and lowtarest rates on loans than we ¢
offer a broader range of services than we

maintain more branch locations than we do;

mount extensive promotional and advertising campa

In addition, banks and other financial institutiomsh larger capitalization and other financialeamhediaries may not be subject to the ¢
regulatory restrictions as we are and may haveestaending limits than we do. Some of our curremmercial banking clients may st
alternative banking sources as they develop nemdsrédit facilities larger than we can accommodHtae are unable to attract and re
customers, we may not be able to maintain growthaam results of operations and financial conditiaay otherwise be negatively impacted.

We depend on our senior management team, and the expected loss of one or more of our senior executiv could impair out
relationship with customers and adversely affect aubusiness and financial results.

Our future success significantly depends on theicoead services and performance of our key managep@sonnel. Our future performa
will depend on our ability to motivate and retalmese and other key officers. The Ddédnk Act, legislation governing participants ire
U.S. Treasurys CPP program and the policies of bank regulatggneies have placed restrictions on our executivepensation practice
Such restrictions and standards may further impactompanys ability to compete for talent with other busiressand financial institutio
that are not subject to the same limitations asmee The loss of the services of members of our senmmagement or other key officers
our inability to attract additional qualified pers@l as needed could materially harm our business.

Our reported financial results depend on managemerg selection of accounting methods and certain assyptions and estimates.

Our accounting policies and assumptions are fundéah& our reported financial condition and reswf operations. Our management r
exercise judgment in selecting and applying manhese accounting policies and methods so they lyowith generally accepted account
principles and reflect managemenfudgment of the most appropriate manner to reportfinancial condition and results. In some c;
management must select the accounting policy ohadeto apply from two or more alternatives, anywiich may be reasonable under
circumstances, yet may result in our reporting migltg different results than would have been répdrunder a different alternative.

Certain accounting policies are critical to presenbur reported financial condition and resultbe¥ require management to make diffic
subjective or complex judgments about mattersdhatuncertain. Materially different amounts couédrbported under different conditions
using different assumptions or estimates. Thedealriaccounting policies include the allowance &wedit losses, intangible assets,
income taxes. Because of the uncertainty of estismatvolved in these matters, we may be requiredotmne or more of the followin
significantly increase the allowance for creditsles and/or sustain credit losses that are signtficdigher than the reserve provid
recognize significant impairment on our other igidate assets or significantly increase our accinedme taxes.

While management continually monitors and improvesour system of internal controls, data processing syems, and corporate wid
processes and procedures, we may suffer losses froperational risk in the future.

Management maintains internal operational contrafg] we have invested in technology to help usge®darge volumes of transactic
However, we may not be able to continue procesairige same or higher levels of transactions. ifsygtems of internal controls should
to work as expected, if our systems were to be ursad unauthorized manner, or if employees weitivert the system of internal contr
significant losses could occur.

We process large volumes of transactions on a taiys and are exposed to numerous types of opeahtisk, which could cause us to in
substantial losses. Operational risk resulting fioadequate or failed internal processes, peoplé,systems includes the risk of fraud
employees or persons outside of our company, tleeution of unauthorized transactions by employeesrs relating to transacti
processing and systems, and breaches of the ihtmmiaol system and compliance requirements. Tibisof loss also includes potential le
actions that could arise as a result of the opmratideficiency or as a result of noncompliancénajpplicable regulatory standards.
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We establish and maintain systems of internal djparal controls that provide management with timahd accurate information about
level of operational risk. While not foolproof, #®systems have been designed to manage operatsdnal appropriate, cost effective lev
We have also established procedures that are @ekitgnensure that policies relating to conducticetnd business practices are folloy
Nevertheless, we experience loss from operatiasklfrom time to time, including the effects of epional errors, and these losses ma
substantial.

Our information systems may experience an interrugbn or security breach.

Failure in or breach of our operational or secusigtems or infrastructure, or those of our thiadty vendors and other service provid
including as a result of cyber attacks, could gisur businesses, result in the disclosure or seigid confidential or proprietary informati
damage our reputation, increase our costs and dasses. As a large financial institution, we dapen our ability to process, record
monitor a large number of customer transactiona eontinuous basis. As customer, public and reguylaxpectations regarding operatic
and information security have increased, our opmrat systems and infrastructure must continue ¢osafeguarded and monitored
potential failures, disruptions and breakdowns. Business, financial, accounting, data processystems or other operating systems
facilities may stop operating properly or becomsatied or damaged as a result of a number of fatetuding events that are wholly
partially beyond our control. For example, theralddbe sudden increases in customer transactiaxmagl electrical or telecommunicatic
outages; natural disasters such as earthquakaadtmes, and hurricanes; disease pandemics; evésitg drom local or larger scale politis
or social matters, including terrorist acts; ans,described below, cyber attacks. Although we hawsiness continuity plans and ot
safeguards in place, our business operations maygbersely affected by significant and widespreiadugtion to our physical infrastructt
or operating systems that support our businessksusiomers.

Information security risks for financial institutie have generally increased in recent years in Ipachuse of the proliferation of n
technologies, the use of the Internet and teleconirations technologies to conduct financial tratisas, and the increased sophistica
and activities of organized crime, hackers, testeriactivists, and other external parties. As chailgove, our operations rely on the se
processing, transmission and storage of confidenfiarmation in our computer systems and netwolksaddition, to access our products
services, our customers may use personal smartphtaiet PGS, and other mobile devices that are beyond ouraiosystems. Although v
believe we have robust information security procedwand controls, our technologies, systems, nésyv@nd our customerslevices ma
become the target of cyber attacks or informategusty breaches that could result in the unautiedrirelease, gathering, monitoring, mis
loss or destruction of our customeceenfidential, proprietary and other informationtbat of our customers, or otherwise disrupt thanass
operations of ourselves, our customers or othed fharties.

Third parties with which we do business or thailitate our business activities, could also be sesrof operational and information sect
risk to us, including from breakdowns or failurdgiteir own systems or capacity constraints. Aljlotio date we have not experienced
material losses relating to cyber attacks or otfi@rmation security breaches, there can be norassa that we will not suffer such losse
the future. Our risk and exposure to these matearains heightened because of, among other thingsvolving nature of these threats
the prevalence of Internet and mobile banking. Msec threats continue to evolve, we may be requicedxpend significant additior
resources to continue to modify or enhance oureptiste measures or to investigate and remediata@rdogmation security vulnerabilitie
Disruptions or failures in the physical infrasture or operating systems that support our busisearsd customers, or cyber attack
security breaches of the networks, systems or dswuigat our customers use to access our produdtseamices could result in custor
attrition, regulatory fines, penalties or intervent reputational damage, reimbursement or othenpemsation costs, and/or additic
compliance costs, any of which could materiallyerdely affect our business, results of operatiariBancial condition.

We operate in a highly regulated environment and, a result, are subject to extensive regulation anslpervision that could adversel
affect our financial performance and our ability to implement our growth and operating strategies.

We are subject to examination, supervision and cehmmsive regulation by federal and state regulagencies, which is described ur
“Iltem 1 — Business—Supervision and RegulatidRegulatory oversight of banks is primarily intendegrotect depositors, the federal dey
insurance funds, and the banking system as a whotegur shareholders. Compliance with these réiguisiis costly and may make it m
difficult to operate profitably.
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Federal and state banking laws and regulationsrgawemerous matters including the payment of divitie the acquisition of other banks
the establishment of new banking offices. We misi eneet specific regulatory capital requireme@tsr failure to comply with these lav
regulations and policies or to maintain our capiégjuirements could affect our ability to pay desdls on common stock, our ability to g
through the development of new offices and ouritghiib make acquisitions. These limitations mayverg us from successfully implement
our growth and operating strategies.

In addition, the laws and regulations applicablebtmks could change at any time, which could sicgiftly impact our business &
profitability. For example, new legislation or régfion could limit the manner in which we may contlour business, including our ability
attract deposits and make loans. Events that mayhane a direct impact on us, such as the bankyupténsolvency of a prominent U
corporation, can cause legislators and bankinglaéans and other agencies such as the Financiadukting Standards Board, the SEC,
Public Company Accounting Oversight Board and vssitaxing authorities to respond by adopting androposing substantive revisions
laws, regulations, rules, standards, policies anterpretations. The nature, extent, and timinghaf &doption of significant new laws ¢
regulations, or changes in or repeal of existingsland regulations may have a material impact anbosiness and results of operati
Changes in regulation may cause us to devote suladtadditional financial resources and managentiem to compliance, which m
negatively affect our operating results.

Changes in banking laws could have a material advee effect on us.

We are subject to changes in federal and state ésmsell as changes in banking and credit regulatiand governmental economic
monetary policies. We cannot predict whether anghe$e changes may adversely and materially affecthe current regulatory environm
for financial institutions entails significant potél increases in compliance requirements andcésteal costs. Federal and state bar
regulators also possess broad powers to take sspenactions as they deem appropriate. These wigpey actions may result in higt
capital requirements, higher insurance premiumsliamthtions on our activities that could have atenml adverse effect on our business
profitability.

Recent legislation regarding the financial servicemdustry may have a significant adverse effect oaur operations.

The Dodd-Frank Act was signed into law on July 2010. The Doddrrank Act will implement significant changes to tbeS. financie
system, including among others:

e new requirements on banking, derivative and investnactivities, including the repeal of the protidn on the payment of inter
on business demand accounts, and debit card iategehfee requirement

e the creation of a new Consumer Financial PratacBureau (“CFPB"Wwith supervisory authority, including the powerdonduc
examinations and take enforcement actions withemst financial institutions with assets of $1didm or more and impleme
regulations that will affect all financial institans;

e provisions affecting corporate governance and exszigompensation of all companies subject to #porting requirements of t
Securities and Exchange Act of 1934, as amendet

e a provision that would require bank regulatorsébrainimum capital levels for bank holding comparnikat are as strong as th
required for their insured depository subsidiarmshject to a grandfather clause for holding congsawith less than $15 billion
assets as of December 31, 2C

Many provisions in the Dodd-Frank Act remain subjecregulatory rulenaking and implementation, the effects of which raseyet knowr
As a result, it is difficult to gauge the ultimatapact of certain provisions of the Doddlank Act because the implementation of
concepts is left to regulatory agencies. For example CFPB is given the power to adopt new reguilatto protect consumers and is gi
control over existing consumer protection regulaiadopted by federal banking regulators. The CR&Bbegun the rulexaking process b
it is not known at this time when any rules will tialized and implemented.

The provisions of the DodBrank Act and any rules adopted to implement thpysgisions as well as any additional legislativeregulaton
changes may impact the profitability of our busmastivities and costs of operations, require Wethange certain of our business pract
materially affect our business model or affect méten of key personnel, require us to raise addéiaegulatory capital, including additio
Tier 1 capital, and could expose us to additiomslts (including increased compliance costs). Tleskother changes may also require |
invest significant management attention and ressuto make any necessary changes and may advaffedy our ability to conduct o
business as previously conducted or our resultpefations or financial condition.

21




Item 1B. Unresolved Staff Comments

Not applicable

Item 2. Properties

PBI Bank has 18 fulkervice banking offices. The following table shotlue location, square footage and ownership of gmoperty. Wi
believe that each of these locations is adequatslyred. Data processing and support operatian$oaated in the Main office in Louisvi

and the Glasgow office building on Columbia Avendeust services and operations are located inCtmpbell Lane office in Bowlir
Green.

Markets Square Footage  Owned/Leasec
Louisville/Jefferson, Bullitt and Henry Counties

Main Office: 2500 Eastpoint Parkway, Louisvi 30,00( Ownec
Eminence Office: 645 Elm Street, Eminel 1,50C Ownec
Hillview Office: 11998 Preston Highway, Hillvie' 3,50( Ownec
Pleasureville Office: 5440 Castle Highway, Pleasille 10,00( Ownec
Shepherdsville Office: 340 South Buckman StreegpBlerdsville 10,00( Ownec
Conestoga Office: 155 Conestoga Parkway, Shephied 3,90( Ownec
Lexington/Fayette County

Lexington Office: 2424 Harrodsburg Road, Suite 1G$xington 8,50( Lease!
South Central Kentucky

Brownsville Office: 113 East Main, Brownsvil 8,50( Ownec
Greensburg Office: 2(-04 North Main Street, Greensbt 11,00( Ownec
Horse Cave Office: 210 East Main Street, Horse ( 5,00( Ownec
Morgantown Office: 112 West Logan Street, Morgarmic 7,50( Ownec
Munfordville Office: 949 South Dixie Highway, Munfdville 9,00( Ownec
Northside Office: 1300 North Main Street, Beavent 3,20( Ownec
Wal-Mart Office: 1701 North Main Street, Beaver D. 50C Leasel
Owensboro/Daviess County

Owensboro Office: 1819 Frederica Street, Owens 3,00 Ownec
Southern Kentucky

Fairview Office: 1042 Fairview Avenue, Suite A, Blavg Green 3,00( Lease!
Campbell Lane Office: 751 Campbell Lane, Bowlinge&m 7,50( Ownec
Glasgow Office: 1006 West Main Street, Glas¢ 12,00( Ownec
Other Properties

Office Building: 701 Columbia Avenue, Glasgt 19,00( Ownec
Item 3. Legal Proceedings

In the normal course of operations, we are defetsdisnvarious legal proceedingd/e record contingent liabilities resulting from iola
against us when a loss is assessed to be probathl¢ha amount of the loss is reasonably estimafdsessing probability of loss &
estimating probable losses requires analysis ofiphelfactors, including in some cases judgmentsualthe potential actions of third pe
claimants and courts. Recorded contingent liabgitare based on the best information availableaatubl losses in any future period
inherently uncertainin the opinion of management, there is no knowll@goceeding pending which an adverse decisiondvoe expecte
to result in a material adverse change in our lessiror consolidated financial position. See Foet2dt, “Contingenciesih the Notes to ol
consolidated financial statements for additionahifieegarding ongoing legal proceedings and othatters.

Item 4. Mine Safety Disclosures

Not applicable

22




PART II
Item 5. Market for Registrant’s Common Equity, Related Stockholder Matters and Isuer Purchases of Equity Securitie
Market Information
Our common stock is traded on the NASDAQ Global kéaunder the ticker symbol “PBIB'The following table presents the high and

sales prices for our common stock reported on tASDIAQ Global Market for the periods indicateddarket prices and dividends paid h
been restated to reflect stock dividends.

2012
Market Value
Quarter Ende: High Low Dividend
Fourth Quarte $ 1.9¢ % 0.7¢ 3 0.0C
Third Quartel 2.2 1.4¢ 0.0C
Second Quarte 2.4C 1.5C 0.0C
First Quarte 3.0t 1.6¢ 0.0C
2011
Market Value
Quarter Ende: High Low Dividend
Fourth Quarte $ 35C $ 1.9t % 0.0C
Third Quartel 5.01 2.9¢ 0.0C
Second Quarte 8.17 4.7z 0.01
First Quarte 10.72 7.8¢ 0.01

As of January 31, 2013, we had approximately 1$fdreholders, including 361 shareholders of reemd approximately 660 benefic
owners whose shares are held in “street” name ¢yrisies broker-dealers or other nominees.

COMPARISON OF 5 YEAR CUMULATIVE TOTAL RETURN"
AmongPorerBancorp, Inc, the MASDAQ Composite Index, and the NASDAQ Bank Index

3120 -
3100
S50 -
860 -
£40 -

520 -

g0 - I i ] |
12107 12i08 12i09 12110 12111 12112

—B— Porter Bancorp, Inc —-4—-NASDAQ Composite -—-2--- NASDAQ Bank

*2100 invested om 12/31407 in stock or index, including reinvestm ent of dividends.
Fiscal year ending December 31.
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Dividends

We will not be able to pay dividends on our comnstock for the foreseeable future. We historicalydpquarterly cash dividends on
common stock until we suspended dividend paymen@ciober 2011.

As a bank holding company, Porter Bancerpbility to declare and pay dividends depends emam federal regulatory consideratic
including the guidelines of the Federal Reserveurgigg capital adequacy and dividends. Porter Bgnbas agreed with the Federal Res
to obtain its written consent prior to declaringpaying any future dividends.

Our principal source of revenue with which to payidends on our common stock is the dividends Bk Bank may declare and pay tc
out of funds legally available for payment of dierdls. PBI Bank must obtain the prior written comsahits primary regulators prior
declaring or paying any future dividends. In aduditio this current restriction, various laws apgiiile to PBI Bank also limit its payment
dividends to us. A Kentucky chartered bank may atech dividend of an amount of the banket profits as the board deems appropriate
approval of the KDFI is required if the total of dividends declared by the bank in any calendar g&ceeds the total of its net profits for
year combined with its retained net profits for fireceding two years, less any required transtesutplus or a fund for the retiremen
preferred stock or debt. As a practical matter, B&hk will not be able to pay dividends to us toe foreseeable future.

Effective with the fourth quarter of 2011, we begteferring cash dividends on our Series A prefestedk held by the U.S. Treasury .
interest payments on the junior subordinated notdsting to our trust preferred securities. Dafgrinterest payments on the jur
subordinated notes resulted in the deferral ofilligions on our trust preferred securities. We wilt be able to pay cash dividends on
common stock in the future until we have paid altraed and unpaid dividends on our Series A prefiestock and all deferred distributit
on our trust preferred securities. Dividends oa 8eries A preferred stock and deferred distrilmstion our trust preferred securities
cumulative and therefore unpaid dividends and ibistions will accrue and compound on each subsdqagment date. If we become sub
to any liquidation, dissolution or winding up offaifs, holders of the trust preferred securitied #ren holders of the preferred stock wil
entitled to receive the liquidation amounts to whibey are entitled including the amount of anyraed and unpaid distributions ¢
dividends, before any distribution can be madééoholders of our common stock.

Purchase of Equity Securities by Issuer

The Company did not repurchase any shares in 2012.
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ltem 6. Selected Financial Date

The following table summarizes our selected histrconsolidated financial data from 2008 to 20¥8u should read this information
conjunction with Item 7. “Management’s Discussiordanalysis of Financial Condition and Results gfe@ations” and Item 8.Financia
Statements and Supplementary Data.”

Selected Consolidated Financial Data

As of and for the Years Ended December 3:

(Dollars in thousands except per share date 2012 2011 2010 2009 2008
Income Statement Data:
Interest incomt $ 57,72¢ $ 73,55 $ 86,407 $ 94,46¢ $ 100,10°
Interest expense 15,77+ 22,03¢ 28,84 40,41. 52,88:
Net interest incom 41,95t 51,51¢ 57,56¢ 54,05« 47,22¢
Provision for loan losse 40,25( 62,60( 30,10( 14,20( 5,40(
Nor-interest incoms 9,59( 7,83 11,58: 7,094 6,86¢
Nonr-interest expense 44,29: 104,27: 46,47¢ 30,45¢ 27,75]
Income (loss) before income tax (32,999 (107,529 (7,430 16,49: 20,931
Income tax expense (benefit) (65) (21¢) (3,046 5,42¢ 6,927
Net income (loss (32,939 (107,30) (4,389 11,06¢ 14,01(
Less:
Dividends on preferred stor (1,750 (1,750 (1,810 (1,750 (199
Accretion on Series A preferred stc (179 (277 277 (17¢) (20
(Earnings) loss allocated to participating secesiti 1,42¢ 4,08( 184 (97) (94)
Net income (loss) available to comm $ (33,43 $ (105,159 $ (6,187 $ 9,04t $ 13,70
Common Share Data (1):
Basic earnings (loss) per common st $ (2.8 $ (8.9¢) $ (0.60) $ 1.0C $ 1.51
Diluted earnings (loss) per common sh (2.85) (8.99) (0.60) 1.0C 1.51
Cash dividends declared per common sl 0.0C 0.0z 0.4¢ 0.7¢ 0.7:
Book value per common shg 0.74 3.74 12.7¢ 14.61 14.1¢
Tangible book value per common sh 0.5¢ 3.54 10.3: 11.4¢ 11.1¢
Balance Sheet Data (at period end
Total asset $ 1,162,633 $ 145542, $ 1,72395 $ 1,83509 $ 1,647,85
Debt obligations
FHLB advance: 5,604 7,11¢€ 15,02: 82,98( 142,77¢
Junior subordinated debentu 25,00( 25,00( 25,00( 25,00( 25,00(
Subordinated capital no 6,97¢ 7,65( 8,55( 9,00( 9,00(
Average Balance Data
Average asse! $ 1,34156 $ 1,659,955 $ 1,74764: $ 1,714,123 $ 1,572,559
Average loan: 1,033,32 1,243,47. 1,353,29! 1,371,03. 1,324,65!
Average deposit 1,217,08. 1,434,46. 1,459,04. 1,385,57. 1,250,61.
Average FHLB advance 6,32¢ 15,31t 47,80( 106,25¢ 138,95¢
Average junior subordinated debentu 25,00( 25,00( 25,00( 25,00( 25,00(
Average subordinated capital ne 7,30¢ 8,20¢ 8,941 9,00( 4,52¢
Average stockholde’ equity 75,67¢ 159,43« 188,01! 168,75:. 131,70¢

(1) Common share data has been adjusted to réflécitock dividends effective December 14, 2010, évalver 19, 2009 and Novem
10, 200¢.
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Iltem 7. Management’s Discussion and Analysis ofifrancial Condition and Results of Operation

Managemens discussion and analysis of financial conditiod eesults of operations analyzes the consolidateah¢ial condition and resu
of operations of Porter Bancorp, Inc. and its whalvned subsidiary, PBI Bank. Porter Bancorp, iaa Louisville, Kentuckybased bar
holding company which operates 18 full-service lagkoffices in twelve counties through its whobywned subsidiary, PBI Bank. C
markets include metropolitan Louisville in JeffensGounty and the surrounding counties of Henry Botitt, and extend south along 1
Interstate 65 corridor to Tennessee. We serve smentral Kentucky and southern Kentucky from bagkaifices in Butler, Green, Ha
Edmonson, Barren, Warren, Ohio, and Daviess Caurlfiee also have an office in Lexington, the sedangest city in Kentucky. The Ba
is both a traditional community bank with a widenga of commercial and personal banking products aananline bank which delive
competitive deposit products and services througbraline banking division operating under the narth&scencia.

Historically, we have focused on commercial and om@rcial real estate lending, both in markets whegehave banking offices and ot
growing markets in our region. Commercial, commedrogal estate and real estate construction loaosuated for 58.6% of our total Ic
portfolio as of December 31, 2012, and 60.5% a3asfember 31, 2011. Commercial lending generallglpeces higher yields than resider
lending, but involves greater risk and requiresem@gorous underwriting standards and credit quafibnitoring.

Overview

The following discussion should be read in conjiorctvith our consolidated financial statements accompanying notes and other schec
presented elsewhere in the report.

For the year ended December 31, 2012, we reportezt boss of $32.9 million compared with net lo§s$207.3 million for the year end
December 31, 2011. After deductions for dividendspreferred stock, accretion on preferred stockl allocating losses to participat
securities, the net loss to common shareholdersd&@s! million for the year ended December 31, 2@bPnpared with net loss to comn
shareholders of $105.2 million for the year endextdénber 31, 2011. Basic and diluted loss per comshane were $(2.85) for the y
ended December 31, 2012, compared with loss pemmonshare of $(8.98) for 2011.

Our financial performance in 2012 continued to bgatively impacted by the Bank’s high level of nerfprming loans and other real estate
owned. Asset quality remediation, capital restoratand lowering the risk profile of the Compamg aur major objectives for 2013.

Non-performing loans were 10.52% of total loans, andpsoforming assets stood at 11.89% of total asgdiecember 31, 2012. We rerr
diligent in the management of our portfolio and sirdving to improve credit quality by working thughout our markets with our clients
balance selective new customer acquisition, custeerwice for our existing clients and prudent nsknagement.

Significant developments for the year ended Decer@be2012 were:

e John T. Taylor joined the management team in JslP@sident of Porter Bancorp and CEO of PBI Bavik. Taylor is a season
banking veteran with deep and broad experience um Kentucky markets, community banking, and problersse
resolution. Additionally, John R. Davis joined th@nagement team in August and was appointed Chelit Officer of PBI Ban
with responsibility for establishing and executthg credit quality policies and overseeing credinanistration for the organizatio

e In October 2012, PBI Bank entered into a new Con€eder with the FDIC and KDFI. Under the new ordéxe Bank agreed
maintain the capital levels required by the Jun&l2érder and also agreed should the capital levatide reached, and if directec
writing by the FDIC, the Bank would develop a pkanimmediately raise sufficient capital, or to setl merge itself into anoth
FDIC insured institution. The new Consent Ordeo atxjuires the Bank to continue to adhere to thagimplemented in respons:
the June 2011 Consent Order, and includes theanthat provisions of the June 2011 orc

e In order to comply with the capital requirementstiofé Consent Order, management and the Board @&cns are evaluatil
appropriate strategies for increasing the Compangpital. These include, among other things, ssipte public offering or priva
placement of common stock to new and existing $trdders. We have engaged SandleNéll & Partners, LP to act as ¢
financial advisor and to assist our Board in thialeation ando assist in evaluating our options for the redeéompof our Series .
preferred stock issued to the US Treasury in 20@&uthe Capital Purchase Progr:
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Total assets decreased 20.1% to $1.2 billion aeBéer 31, 2012 compared with $1.5 billion at th&12@ea-end.
Loans decreased 20.9% to $899.1 million compardi $d.1 billion at December 31, 20

Deposits declined 19.5% to $1.1 billion comparethviil.3 billion at December 31, 2011. Certificafedeposit balances declin
$263.8 million to $760.6 million at December 31120 from $1.0 billion at December 31, 2011. Loangaeds received from {
repayment of our commercial real estate and coctgdruand development loans were used primarilyetteem maturing certifical
of deposit during the year. Demand deposits ine@a& 9% to $114.3 million during 2012 compared wihl1.1 million &
December 31, 201:

Net interest margin decreased to 3.31% for 2012pewed with 3.40% for 2011. The decrease in margiwéen periods was ¢
primarily to a reduction in interest earning assptémarily loans, coupled with lower rates on th@ssets and elevated racerua
loan levels. Average loans decreased 16.9% tol$illiéh in 2012 compared with $1.2 billion in 201

Non-performing loans increased $1.2 million to $94.6lion at December 31, 2012, compared with $93.4ionilat December 3
2011. The increase was primarily in the commerogll estate segment of our portfolio, partiallysetf by decreases in -
construction and development, and 1-4 family residéreal estate segments. Nparforming assets increased from $134.8 mi
at December 31, 2011, to $138.3 million at Decen3ig2012

Provision for loan losses decreased $22.4 millim@012 compared with 2011 as the result of shropkive loan portfolio and low
net loan chargeffs of $36.1 million, or 3.50% of average loans 2012, compared with $44.3 million, or 3.56% oéeage loans ft
2011. Although lower than the prior year, our psim for loan losses was elevated in 2012 by degfyachange during the th
quarter of 2012 related to classified loans whi@expect to more quickly remediate by litigatiorfaneclosure. For loans subjec
this expectation, we applied an additional faineatliscount ranging from 10% to 33% to the undegdydollateral in our impairme
analysis estimates as resolution of this naturemgiy results in receiving lower values for resiage collateral in a more aggres:
sales environment. This resulted in a provisionléan loss of approximately $5.1 million relatedthese loans. Additionally, t
provision for loan losses was negatively impactgdhe high level of loan chargaffs in our historical loss experience factors, et
we use to estimate the general component of conwvalice for loan losses as well as additional doaahgs within the loan portfolit

We continue to execute on our strategy to reducecommercial real estate and construction and deweént loans. We reduc
construction and development loans by $31.2 milior$70.3 million, or 82% of total riskased capital, at December 31, 2
compared with $101.5 million, or 85% of total risksed capital, at December 31, 2011. Namer occupied commercial real es
loans, construction and development loans, andi4fauttily residential real estate loans as a groupweduced by $103.5 million
$311.1 million, or 362% of total risk-based capittl December 31, 2012 compared with $414.6 millar 349% of total riskase!
capital, at December 31, 20!

Loans past due 389 days increased from $17.3 million at December2B11 to $38.2 million at December 31, 2012 arah$opas
due 6089 days increased from $3.9 million at December28iL1, to $20.3 million at December 31, 2012. Ehieereases we
primarily in the commercial real estate, constiuttiand development, and multimily residential real estate segments of
portfolio.

Foreclosed properties were $43.7 million at Decan®ie 2012, compared with $41.4 million at Decembkr2011. The Compa
acquired $33.5 million of OREO and sold $24.2 nilliof OREO during 2012. In addition, fair value texilowns of $7.7 millio
were recorded during 2012 to reflect declining ealas evidenced by new appraisals and reduced tingrkeices in connection wi
our sales strategies. Our ratio of nmerforming assets to total assets increased t@d atPDecember 31, 2012, compared with ¢
at December 31, 201

These items are discussed in further detail througthis “Management’s Discussion and AnalysisioBFRcial Condition and Results of
Operations” Section.

Going Concern Considerations and Future Plans

The consolidated financial statements have beepaped on a going concern basis, which contempliesealization of assets and
satisfaction of liabilities in the normal courselnfsiness for the foreseeable future. Howevergthats and circumstances described ir
discussion create an uncertainty about the Compahjlity to continue as a going concern.
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For the year ended December 31, 2012, we repoekhbss to common shareholders of $33.4 milliohisToss was attributable primarily
$40.3 million of provision for loan losses experne to continued decline in credit trends in ourtfpbo that resulted in net chargefs of
$36.1 million, OREO expense of $10.5 million reswtfrom fair value writedowns driven by new appraisals and reduced markgtiices
net loss on sales, and ongoing operating expensealgd had lower net interest margin due to lowerage loans outstanding, loans re-
pricing at lower rates, and the level of nperforming loans in our portfolio. Net loss to commshareholders of $33.4 million, for the y
ended December 31, 2012, compares with net lossnwnon shareholders of $105.2 million for year enBecember 31, 2011.

During the year ended December 31, 2011, we redaadeet loss to common shareholders of $105.2anilliThis loss was attributable t
$23.8 million goodwill impairment charge, the edigtiment of a $31.7 million valuation allowance aur deferred tax assets, OREO exp
of $47.5 million related to valuation adjustmergfiecting our change in strategy related to cer@REO properties, fair value writtewns
related to new appraisals received for propertighé portfolio during 2011, net loss on the sdI®BEO properties, and increase in carr
costs associated with carrying these higher levkbssets. We also recorded a provision for loasde expense of $62.6 million due to
continued decline in credit trends within our polit.

In June 2011, the Bank entered into a Consent Qvidbrthe FDIC and KDFI in which the Bank agreeohang other things, tomprove ass:
quality, reduce loan concentrations, and maintaimramum Tier 1 leverage ratio of 9% and a minimtatal risk based capital ratio of 12
The Consent Order was included in our Current Repo8-K filed on June 30, 201l October 2012, the Bank entered into a new Cd
Order with the FDIC and KDFI, again agreeing to m&in a minimum Tier 1 leverage ratio of 9% andiaimum total risk based capital ra
of 12%. The Bank also agreed that if it should behle to reach the required capital levels, ardirécted in writing by the FDIC, then 1
Bank would within 30 days develop, adopt and immaima written plan to sell or merge itself into #res federally insured financ
institution or otherwise immediately obtain a stiffnt capital investment into the Bank to fully rhtiee capital requirements.

We expect to continue to work with our regulataward capital ratio compliance as outlined in théten capital plan submitted by the B
in December 2012. The new Consent Order also regjtire Bank to continue to adhere to the planseémehted in response to the June :
Consent Order, and includes the substantive pangsof the June 2011 Consent Ordére new Consent Order was included in our Cu
Report on 8-K filed on September 19, 2012. As ofémaber 31, 2012, the capital ratios required byGbesent Order were not met.

In order to meet these capital requirements, ther@of Directors and management are continuingveduate strategies to achieve
following objectives:

e Increasing capital through a possible public offgror private placement of common stock to new exidting shareholders. \
have engaged Sandler O'Neill & Partners, LP toaacour financial advisor and to assist our Boarthis evaluation antb assist i
evaluating our options for the redemption of ouri€e A preferred stock issued to the US Treasurg@08 under the Capi
Purchase Prograr

e Continuing to operate the Company and Bank in & saifd sound manner. This strategy will require¢auseduce our lendir
concentrations, remediate r-performing loans, and reduce other noninterestresgéhrough the disposition of ORE

e Continuing with succession planning and adding weses to the management team. John T. Taylor wased President and Cl
for PBI Bank and appointed to our board of direstior July 2012. Additionally, John R. Davis wapainted Chief Credit Offic
of PBI Bank in August 2012, with responsibility festablishing and executing the credit quality giedi and overseeing cre
administration for the organizatio

e Evaluating our internal processes and proceddissibution of labor, and worlew to ensure we have adequately and appropr
deployed resources in an efficient manner in theeot environment. To this end, we believe the aspmity exists for th
centralization of key processes which will leadnbproved execution and cost savin

e Executing on our commitment to improve credit giyadind reduce loan concentrations and balance skke
0 We have reduced the size of our loan portfolio i§igemtly from $1.3 billion at December 31, 2010 $d4.1 billion a
December 31, 2011, and $899.1 million at Decemier 2912. We have significantly improved our staffing in

commercial lending area which is now led by JohrDRvis, who joined the management team in Augug22énd no\
serves as Chief Credit Office
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0 Our Consent Order calls for us to reduceammstruction and development loans to not more #& of total riskbase!
capital. We were not in compliance at Decembe2B12 with construction and development loans regisg 82% of tot:
risk-based capital. These loans totaled $70.3anjllor 82% of total rislbbased capital, at December 31, 2012 and $.
million, or 85% of total ris-based capital, at December 31, 2C

0 Our Consent Order also requires us to redumeowner occupied commercial real estate loans, cectgin an
development loans, and multi-family residentiall regstate loans as a group, to not more than 250%taf riskbase:
capital. While we have made significant improvetsever the last year, we were not in compliandé wiis concentratic
limit at December 31, 2012. These loans totaletl$B million, or 362% of total riskased capital, at December 31, 2
compared with $414.6 million, or 349% of total -based capital, at December 31, 2C

0 We are working to reduce non-owner occup@troercial real estate loans, construction and deweént loans, and multi-
family residential real estate loans by curtailimgw construction and development lending and nem+awmer occupie
commercial real estate lending. We are also réggiprincipal reductions from amortizing creditdgmay-downs from ot
customers who sell properties built for resale. Wéee reduced the construction loan portfolio fré&99.5 million
December 31, 2010 to $70.3 million at December2B1,2. Our norewner occupied commercial real estate loans ded
from $293.3 million at December 31, 2010 to $188iBion at December 31, 201

e Executing on our commitment to sell other realtestavned and reinvest in quality income producisgets

0 The remediation process for loans secured by tatee has led the Bank to acquire significant wél OREO in 201:
2011, and 2010. The Bank acquired $33.5 milligt,.$ million, and $90.8 million of OREO during 2012011, and 201
respectively

0 We have incurred significant losses in disposingd&EQO. We incurred losses totaling $9.3 milli®42.8 million, an
$13.9 million in 2012, 2011, and 2010, respectivdlpm sales and fair value writtewns attributable to declini
valuations as evidenced by new appraisals and ¢ftanges in our sales strateg

0 To ensure that we maximize the value we receivenuipe sale of OREO, we continue to evaluate sgheerunities an
channels. We are targeting multiple sales oppamsnand channels through internal marketing dmel use of broker
auctions, and technology sales platforms. Proc#Fedsthe sale of OREO totaled $22.5 million durR@l2, $26.0 in 201
and $25.0 million in 201(

0 At December 31, 2011, the OREO portfolio consigsit@5% construction, development, and land ass&tecember 3.
2012, this concentration had declined to 51%. Thisonsistent with our reduction of constructidayelopment and ott
land loans, which have declined to $70.3 millionDeicember 31, 2012, compared to $101.5 million etdnber 3:
2011. Over the past year, the composition of oRREO portfolio has shifted to be more heavily wegghttoward
commercial real estate properties with a cash fipwortunity and %4 family residential properties, which we have fduc
be more liquid than construction, development, &rdl assets. Commercial real estate propertieesept 35% of tt
OREO portfolio at December 31, 2012, compared wiifi% at December 31, 2011.41family residential properti
represent 12% of the OREO portfolio at Decembe2812, compared with 7% at December 31, 2I

e Evaluating other strategic alternatives, such astle of assets or branch
Bank regulatory agencies can exercise discretioenwéin institution does not meet the terms of a emnsrder. Based on individi
circumstances, the agencies may issue mandatagtigies, impose monetary penalties, initiate charigenanagement, or take more ser

adverse actions.

These financial statements do not include any adgists that may result should the Company be urtalilentinue as a going concern.
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Application of Critical Accounting Policies

Our accounting and reporting policies comply witA&R and conform to general practices within thekdag industry. We believe that of ¢
significant accounting policies, the following mawolve a higher degree of management assumptindsjigments that could result
materially different amounts to be reported if citiods or underlying circumstances were to change.

Allowance for Loan Losses- PBI Bank maintains an allowance for loan lossegeiet to be sufficient to absorb probable incurcesti
losses existing in the loan portfolio, and the bloairdirectors evaluates the adequacy of the alhoedor loan losses on a quarterly basis
evaluate the adequacy of the allowance using, antimgy things, historical loan loss experience,vkm@nd inherent risks in the portfol
adverse situations that may affect the borrosvability to repay, estimated value of the undedytollateral and current economic condit
and trends. The allowance may be allocated fociBpdoans or loan categories, but the entirevaflace is available for any loan that
managemens$ judgment, should be charged off. The allowanessists of specific and general components. Theifspeomponent relates
loans that are individually classified as impair&ithe general component is based on historical édagerience adjusted for environme
factors. We develop allowance estimates basedctralaloss experience adjusted for current econaroiditions and trends. Allowar
estimates are a prudent measurement of the rigkeiioan portfolio which we apply to individual lesbased on loan type. If the mix .
amount of future chargeff percentages differ significantly from those wsptions used by management in making its detetinimawe ma:
be required to materially increase our allowancddan losses and provision for loan losses, whimhid adversely affect our results.

Other Real Estate Owned- Other real estate owned (OREOQ) is real estate eamjuas a result of foreclosure or by deed in li¢
foreclosure. It is classified as real estate ownetil such time as it is sold. When propertyégi@red as a result of foreclosure or by des
lieu of foreclosure, it is recorded at its fair ietrvalue less estimated cost to sell. Any wditevn of the property at the time of acquisitio
charged to the allowance for loan losses. Subsggaductions in fair value are recorded as imterest expense. To determine the fair v
of OREO for smaller dollar single family homes, eensult with internal real estate sales staff axtdreal realtors, investors, and apprais
If the internally evaluated market price is belour ainderlying investment in the property, appraeriarite-downs are recorded. For lar
dollar commercial real estate properties, we obgairew appraisal of the subject property in coriaratith the transfer to other real es
owned. We do not obtain updated appraisals orageyly basis after the receipt of the initial agpal. Rather, we internally review the
value of the other real estate owned in our padfoh a quarterly basis to determine if a new ajptds warranted based on the spe
circumstances of each property. We obtain updatpdaisals each year on the anniversary of ownersgtigss a sale is imminent.

Goodwill and Intangible Assets— We evaluate goodwill and intangible assets thathasefinite useful lives for impairment at leashaally
and more frequently if circumstances indicate thralue may not be recoverable. We evaluate goodwilimpairment by comparing the f
value of the reporting unit to the book value af tleporting unit. If the fair value, net of goodw#xceeds book value, then goodwill is
considered to be impaired. We evaluated goodwilirfgpairment during the second quarter of 2011 beeaur common stock, which tra
publicly on the NASDAQ, experienced a significanbpl in value throughout the months of May and J2@&L. Our stock trended downw
during the first quarter of 2011 and continued denard throughout the months of May and June 201&. Sthck closed on June 30, 201
$4.98 per share and has regularly traded at a narrice less than book value per common share $iveeeecond quarter of 2010.

We evaluated the potential negative impact on #daevof our common stock from being removed from Russell 3000 Index during Ji
2011, the trend of lower earnings in 2011 compdredhistorical performance due to the continuing aetpon earnings from loan I
provisions, norperforming loans, and foreclosed properties, ameémeregulatory agreements entered into by the @osnpOur goodwi
impairment testing completed during the fourth ¢eraof 2010 included, among other things, futurgjgetions of earnings at levels exceel
actual results for 2011. The level of loan lossvigions and the cost of foreclosed propertiesinantto exceed our prior expectations a
work through issues with our non-performing loavels and other real estate owned portfolio.

The fair value of our goodwill was determined afitig our market capitalization based upon recemimon stock price levels. We a
considered market comparison transactions andagremiums for institutions of a similar size gmetformance. Based on this analysis
determined that our goodwill was impaired and rdedran impairment charge of $23.8 million in theaer ended June 30, 2011. "
impairment charge had no impact on the Compangtsdity, cash flows, or regulatory capital ratios.

Intangible assets that are not amortized are etetlufar impairment at least annually by comparihg tair values of those assets to t
carrying values. Other identifiable intangible assinat are subject to amortization are amortizaedan accelerated basis over the y
expected to be benefited, which we believe is Hry:éNe review these amortizable intangible agsetisnpairment if circumstances indic
their value may not be recoverable based on a cosapaof fair value to carrying value. Based on aanual review, management does
believe our intangible assets are impaired at Dbeei31, 2012.
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Stock-based Compensatior- Compensation cost is recognized for stock optiorts restricted stock awards issued to employeegdbar
the fair value of these awards at the date of gi&fet utilize a BlackScholes model, which requires the input of highilsjective assumptior
such as volatility, risk-free interest rates andd#nd payeut rates, to estimate the fair value of stockansj while the market price of
Companys common stock at the date of grant is used fdrictsd stock awards. Compensation cost is re@eghover the required serv
period, generally defined as the vesting period. &wards with graded vesting, compensation costdegnized on a straighibe basis ove
the requisite service period for the entire award.

Valuation of Deferred Tax Asset— We evaluate deferred tax assets for impairment guaaterly basis. We established a 100% defeax
valuation allowance of $31.7 million in Decembed2®ased upon the analysis of our past performandeour expected future performai

We considered all evidence currently availablethbpositive and negative, in determining, basedthmn weight of that evidence, -
likelihood that the deferred tax asset would bdized. During that review, we determined that kel of our recent historical losses,
level of our nonperforming assets, our inability to meet our fosted levels of earnings in 2011, our intent to dpBeyment of dividends «
our subordinated debentures and Series A Pref&tedk, and our nooempliance with the capital requirements of our € Orde
outweighed our forecasted taxable earnings levaistfe near and long term. As such, we establishelD0% deferred tax valuat
allowance. When evaluating our deferred tax asketsealizability during 2012, we concluded thafudl valuation allowance was s
necessary at December 31, 2012, due to the adaliiosses incurred during the year. A return tdifability would enable us to reduce
valuation allowance and thereby offset income tgxease that would otherwise be recognized. Exainimaof our income tax returns
changes in tax law may impact our deferred taxtags® liabilities as well as our provision for @mge taxes.

Contingencies— In the normal course of operations, we are defetsdin various legal proceeding®Ve record contingent liabilities resulti
from claims against us when a loss is assesseé podbable and the amount of the loss is reasoresimnable. Assessing probability of |
and estimating probable losses requires analysisutifple factors, including in some cases judgreeatiout the potential actions of third p:
claimants and courts. Recorded contingent liabgitare based on the best information availableaatubl losses in any future period
inherently uncertain.

Results of Operations

The following table summarizes components of incameé expense and the change in those componerg®Xarcompared with 2011

For the
Years Ended December 31, Change from Prior Period
2012 2011 Amount Percent
(dollars in thousands)
Gross interest incon $ 57,72¢ $ 73,55¢ $ (15,82%) (21.5%
Gross interest expen 15,77« 22,03¢ (6,265) (28.9
Net interest incom 41,95¢ 51,51t (9,560 (18.6)
Provision for credit losse 40,25( 62,60( (22,35() (35.9)
Nonr-interest incom 6,354 6,76¢ (412 (6.1
Gains on sale of securities, 1 3,23¢ 1,10¢ 2,12¢ 192.1
Other than temporary impairment on securi (472) 41 (100.0
Nonr-interest expens 44,29: 104,27: (59,98) (57.5)
Net income (loss) before tax (32,999 (107,52) 74,52¢ (69.9)
Income tax expense (bene! (65) (21¢) 15z (70.2)
Net income (loss (32,93) (107,30 74,37" (69.9)
Dividends on preferred stox (1,750 (1,750 — —
Accretion on Series A preferred stc (179 (277) 2 11
Earnings allocated to participating securi 1,42¢ 4,08( (2,65)) (65.0
Net income (loss) available to common sharehol (33,43) (105,15¢) 71,72 (68.2)

Net loss of $32.9 million for the year ended Decentil, 2012, decreased $74.4 million from net tfs8107.3 million for 2011. Net loss
common shareholders of $33.4 million for the yeadtlesl December 31, 2012, decreased $71.7 millian fiet loss to common shareholc

of $105.2 million for 2011. This decrease in netslavas attributable primarily to lower provisiorr foan losses expense, decreased nor
interest expense associated with our OREO, ancehigdt gain on sales of securities, partially dffselower net interest income. In additi

the 2011 results included a one-time goodwill imp&int charge of $23.8 million.
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The following table summarizes components of incame expense and the change in those componerg8Xarcompared with 2010:

For the
Years Ended December 31, Change from Prior Period
2011 2010 Amount Percent
(dollars in thousands)
Gross interest incon $ 73,55¢ $ 86,400 $ (12,857) (14.9%
Gross interest expen 22,03¢ 28,84 (6,802 (23.6€)
Net interest incom 51,51¢ 57,56¢ (6,05)) (10.5)
Provision for credit losse 62,60( 30,10( 32,50( 108.(
Nonr-interest incom 6,76¢ 7,027 (267) (3.7
Gains on sale of securities, 1 1,10¢ 5,152 (4,049 (78.5)
Other than temporary impairment on securi (47) (597) 55€ (93.])
Nonr-interest expens 104,27: 46,47¢ 57,79t 124.:
Net income (loss) before tax (107,524 (7,430 (100,099 1347.:
Income tax expense (bene! (21¢) (3,046 2,82¢ (92.9)
Net income (loss (107,30) (4,389 (102,92) 2347."
Dividends on preferred stox (1,750 (1,810 60 (3.3
Accretion on Series A preferred stc (277 (277) — —
Earnings allocated to participating securi 4,08( 184 3,89¢ 2117.
Net income (loss) available to common sharehol (105,159 (6,187 (98,967 1599.¢

Net loss of $107.3 million for the year ended Deben8B1, 2011, increased $102.9 million from neg lo§$4.4 million for 2010. Net loss
common shareholders of $105.2 million for the yeaded December 31, 2011, increased $99.0 millimm fnet loss to common shareholc
of $6.2 million for 2010. This decrease in earningss attributable primarily to a orniere goodwill impairment charge of $23.8 milli
establishment of a deferred tax asset valuatioowalhce of $31.7 million, increased provision foardolosses expense, and rioteres
expenses associated with our OREO.

Goodwill was determined to be impaired during teeasid quarter of 2011 as the result of operatisges and a significant drop in valu
our common stock which trades on NASDAQ. The defittax asset is dependent on future levels ofnirecdGiven our net loss for the .
two years, and evaluation of other positive andatieg evidence, we established a 100% valuatimwalhce for our deferred tax asset in
fourth quarter of 2011. Provision for loan losseganse increased $32.5 million, or 108.0%, in camspa with 2010 as a result of an incre
in non-performing loans, and an increase in neh lohargeoffs to $44.3 million, or 3.56% of average loans #8911, compared wi
$22.2 million, or 1.64% of average loans for 20Nbn-interest income decreased $261,000, or 3.7%, irpacison with 2010 primarily as
result of decreased service charges on deposituatoGains on sales of investment securitiesedsed $4.0 million, or 78.5%
comparison with 2010 due to fewer sales of seesriiuring the year.

Non-interest expense increased $57.8 million, or 1%24.B comparison with 2010 primarily as a resultaobnetime goodwill impairmer
charge of $23.8 million, increased expense relttedther real estate owned, increased loan caleaixpense, and borrowing prepayn
fees. Income tax benefit decreased $2.8 millian928%, as the result of the establishment of $8&.7 million deferred tax valuati
allowance.

Net Interest Income— Our net interest income was $42.0 million for teayended December 31, 2012, a decrease of $9i6nndr 18.6%
compared with $51.5 million for the same period2Bil1. Net interest spread and margin were 3.16863a81%, respectively, for 20:
compared with 3.24% and 3.40%, respectively, fdt120Average nonaccrual loans were $90.8 milliod $67.4 million in 2012 and 20
respectively. The decrease in net interest incorag pvimarily the result of lower average earninges coupled with lower rates on th
assets. In addition, net interest income and rnietast margin were adversely affected by $4.9 omliind $4.0 million of interest lost on non-
accrual loans during 2012 and 2011, respectively.

Our average interegtarning assets were $1.28 billion for 2012, conmgavieh $1.53 billion for 2011, a 16.5% decreasénarily attributabli
to lower average loans and interest bearing deposith financial institutions, partially offset byigher average investme
securities. Average loans were $1.03 billion f6l2, compared with $1.24 billion for 2011, a 16.9%crease. Average interest bes
deposits with financial institutions were $62.1lmi in 2012, compared with $127.1 million in 20H.51.1% decrease. Average investr
securities were $173.1 million for 2012, comparethw148.5 million for 2011, a 16.6% increase. @nial interest income decreased 21
to $57.7 million for 2012, compared with $73.6 ioitl for 2011. The change was due primarily to lowéerest rates on and lower volumi
loans and interest bearing deposits with finanotitutions, and lower interest rates on investnsecurities.
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Our average interestearing liabilities decreased by 17.5% to $1.1#dbilfor 2012, compared with $1.39 billion for 201Qur total intere:
expense decreased by 28.4% to $15.8 million fo2206@mpared with $22.0 million during 2011, duenatiily to lower interest rates paid
and lower volume of certificates of deposit, NOWlanoney market deposits. Our average volume d¢ificates of deposit decreased 18
to $912.1 million for 2012, compared with $1.12ibit for 2011. The average interest rate paid atifates of deposit decreased to 1.t
for 2012, compared with 1.65% for 2011, as theltedfucontinued repricing of certificates of deposit at maturity tmler interest rates. C
average volume of NOW and money market depositiatsadecreased 10.5% to $153.0 million for 201Zmared with $171.0 million fi
2011. The average interest rate paid on NOW andesnonarket deposit accounts decreased to 0.4290fb2, compared with 0.85%
2011.

Our net interest income was $51.5 million for tleayended December 31, 2011, a decrease of $8idmmédr 10.5%, compared with $5
million for the same period in 2010. Net interggtead and margin were 3.24% and 3.40%, respegtiicel2011, compared with 3.38% ¢
3.59%, respectively, for 2010. Average nonaccleehs were $67.4 million and $54.0 million in 20drid 2010, respectively. The decrea:
net interest income was primarily the result of éovaverage earning assets. In addition, net irttémeeme and net interest margin w
adversely affected by $4.0 million and $2.7 milliohinterest lost on nomecrual loans during 2011 and 2010, respectivelgoAaverag
interest bearing liabilities as a percentage ofriggt earning assets increased from 89.6% in 20D 3% in 2011 due to lower capi
Nonaccrual loans increased significantly in therfloguarter of 2011

Our average interegiarning assets were $1.53 billion for 2011, congbarith $1.62 billion for 2010, a 5.2% decreaseinanily attributabl
to lower average loans and investment securifegrage loans were $1.24 billion for 2011, compaséith $1.35 billion for 2010, an 8.1
decrease. Average investment securities were $18lion for 2011, compared with $159.9 millionrf@010, a 7.1% decrease. Our t
interest income decreased 14.9% to $73.6 million2fall, compared with $86.4 million for 2010. THeange was due primarily to lov
interest rates on and lower volume of loans andstment securities.

Our average intereftearing liabilities decreased by 4.4% to $1.39dvilifor 2011, compared with $1.45 billion for 20X0ur total intere:
expense decreased by 23.6% to $22.0 million fod26@mpared with $28.8 million during 2010, duenpatily to lower interest rates paid
certificates of deposit, and a lower volume of FHa#sances. Our average volume of certificatesepidit decreased 3.2% to $1.12 bil
for 2011, compared with $1.16 billion for 2010. Tdneerage interest rate paid on certificates of diéplecreased to 1.65% for 2011, comp
with 2.02% for 2010. Our average volume of FHLdB/ances decreased 68.0% to $15.3 million for 2@bipared with $47.8 million fi
2010. The average interest rate paid on FHLB achsdecreased to 3.51% for 2011, compared witl?4 {22 2010. The decrease in cos
funds was the result of the continued re-pricingetificates of deposit at maturity at lower irggtrrates.
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Average Balance Sheets

The following table sets forth the average dailyahaes, the interest earned or paid on such amoantsthe weighted average yield
interest-earning assets and weighted average €asteoestbearing liabilities for the periods indicated. Qiirig income or expense by
average daily balance of assets or liabilitiespeesvely, derives such yields and costs for th@ope presented.

For the Years Ended December 31

2012 2011
Average Interest Average Average Interest Average
Balance Earned/Paid Yield/Cost Balance Earned/Paid  Yield/Cost

(dollars in thousands)
ASSETS
Interes-earning asset:
Loans receivables (1)(

Real estat $ 921,31: $ 46,17¢ 501% $ 1,111,131 $ 59,45( 5.35%
Commercia 64,252 3,51( 5.4¢ 77,09¢ 4,36 5.6€
Consume 22,72( 1,90z 8.3¢ 29,14( 2,42¢ 8.3
Agriculture 24,19¢ 1,30« 5.3¢ 25,17¢ 1,407 5.5¢
Other 83¢ 22 2.65 92t 32 3.4¢€
U.S. Treasury and agenc 6,58¢ 19¢ 3.0z 10,17: 322 3.17
Mortgag-backed securitie 111,63 1,98¢ 1.7¢ 96,22 2,967 3.0¢€
State and political subdivision
securities (3 26,63! 887 5.1Z 29,50¢ 1,12 5.8¢
State and political subdivision
securities 17,368 562 3.2¢ 3,17¢ 17z 5.41
Corporate bonc 8,951 482 5.3¢ 7,46¢ 457 6.0t
FHLB stock 10,07: 447 4.4¢4 10,07: 42¢ 4.2t
Other debt securitie 572 46 8.04 572 46 8.04
Other equity securitie 1,35¢ 57 4.1¢ 1,39 49 3.51
Federal funds sol 3,10¢ 2 0.0¢ 5,72¢ 3 0.0t
Interest-bearing deposits in other
financial institutions 62,121 14z 0.2 127,08 313 0.2t
Total interes-earning
assets 1,281,73! 57,72¢ 4.54% 1,534,87! 73,55¢ 4.85%
Less: Allowance for loan loss (53,489 (37,767
Nor-interest-earning assets 113,31« 162,84t
Total assets $ 1,341,56! $ 1,659,95

LIABILITIES AND
STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY
Interes-bearing liabilities
Certificates of deposit and other

time deposit: $ 912,06. $ 13,82¢ 152% $ 1,120,15 $ 18,46¢ 1.65%
NOW and money market
deposits 153,03: 641 0.4z 171,02¢ 1,451 0.8t
Savings accoun 38,66¢ 154 0.4C 36,51 22¢ 0.6z
Federal funds purchased and
repurchase agreemel 2,08¢ 7 0.34 10,52 44C 4.1¢
FHLB advance 6,32¢ 207 3.27 15,31t 537 3.51
Junior subordinated debentures 32,30¢ 937 2.9C 33,20¢ 91E 2.7¢€
Total interest-bearing
liabilities 1,144,48i 15,77+ 1.38% 1,386,741 22,03¢ 1.5%
Nonr-interes-bearing liabilities
Nor-interes-bearing deposit 113,32! 106,76¢
Other liabilities 8,081 7,01¢
Total liabilities 1,265,88I 1,500,52!
Stockholders’ equity 75,67¢ 159,43«

Total liabilities and
stockholders’
equity $ 1,341,56 $ 1,659,95'

Net interest income $ 41,95¢ $ 51,51¢

Net interest spread 3.16% 3.24%



Net interest margin 3.31%

Ratio of average interes-earning
assets to average interediearing
liabilities 111.9¢%

(1) Includes loan fees in both interest income and#tieulation of yield on loan:
(2) Calculations include ne-accruing loans in average loan amounts outstan
(3) Taxable equivalent yields are calculated assumiBgPéa federal income tax rat
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For the Years Ended December 31

2011 2010
Average Interest Average Average Interest Average
Balance Earned/Paid  Yield/Cost Balance Earned/Paid  Yield/Cost
(dollars in thousands)
ASSETS
Interes-earning asset:
Loans receivables (1)(
Real estat $ 1,111,13¢ $ 59,45( 5.32% $ 1,209,12! 67,96( 5.62%
Commercia 77,09¢ 4,36: 5.6€ 84,841 5,131 6.0t
Consume 29,14( 2,42¢ 8.3 34,34¢ 2,944 8.57
Agriculture 25,17¢ 1,407 5.5¢ 23,87% 1,48: 6.21
Other 92t 32 3.4¢ 1,10( 41 3.7¢
U.S. Treasury and agenc 10,17: 322 3.17 9,67¢ 362 3.74
Mortgagr-backed securitie 96,22! 2,967 3.0¢ 110,71 5,84¢ 5.2¢
State and political subdivision
securities (3 29,50¢ 1,12¢ 5.8¢€ 21,33 854 6.1€
State and political subdivision
securities 3,17¢ 172 5.41 2,947 161 5.4¢€
Corporate bonc 7,46¢€ 452 6.0 12,90¢ 87¢ 6.7¢
FHLB stock 10,07: 42¢ 4.2t 10,07: 441 4.3¢
Other debt securitie 572 46 8.04 694 46 6.62
Other equity securitie 1,397 49 3.51 1,62: 48 2.9¢
Federal funds sol 5,72¢ 3 0.0t 12,63: 16 0.1z
Interest-bearing deposits in other
financial institutions 127,08 313 0.2t 82,64¢ 19¢ 0.24
Total interest-earning
assets 1,534,87! 73,55¢ 4.8°% 1,618,54. 86,401 5.37%
Less: Allowance for loan loss (37,767) (27,83¢)
Nor-interest-earning assets 162,84t 156,94:
Total asset: $ 1,659,95 $ 1,747,64
LIABILITIES AND
STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY
Interes-bearing liabilities
Certificates of deposit and other
time deposit: $ 1,120,15 $ 18,46¢ 1.65% $ 1,156,72. 23,41 2.02%
NOW and money market
deposits 171,02¢ 1,451 0.8t 164,54: 1,71¢ 1.04
Savings accoun 36,511 22¢ 0.6z 35,39 261 0.74
Federal funds purchased and
repurchase agreemel 10,52¢ 44( 4.1¢ 11,73¢ 484 4.1z
FHLB advance 15,31 537 3.51 47,80( 2,01t 4.22
Junior subordinated debentures 33,20¢ 91k 2.7¢ 33,94 95C 2.8C
Total interesi-bearing
liabilities 1,386,74! 22,03¢ 1.5% 1,450,13: 28,84 1.9%
Nonr-interes-bearing liabilities
Nor-interes-bearing deposit 106,76¢ 102,38:
Other liabilities 7,01¢€ 7,115
Total liabilities 1,500,52! 1,559,63.
Stockholders’ equity 159,43« 188,01!
Total liabilities and
stockholders’
equity $ 1,659,95 $ 1,747,64
Net interest income $ 51,51¢ 57,56¢
Net interest spread 3.24% 3.3t%
Net interest margin 3.4(% 3.5¢%

Ratio of average interes-earning
assets to average interediearing



liabilities 110.6&% 111.6%

(1) Includes loan fees in both interest income andc#tieulation of yield on loan:
(2) Calculations include ne-accruing loans in average loan amounts outstan
(3) Taxable equivalent yields are calculated assumiBgPéa federal income tax rat
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Rate/Volume Analysis

The table below sets forth information regardingraes in interest income and interest expensdéopériods indicated. For each categol
interest-earning assets and integesaring liabilities, information is provided on ciges attributable to (1) changes in rate (changeati
multiplied by old volume); (2) changes in volumédages in volume multiplied by old rate); and (Baueges in rateolume (change in ra
multiplied by change in volume). Changes in ratésine are proportionately allocated between ratevatume variance.

Year Ended December 31, 2012 vs. 20 Year Ended December 31, 2011 vs. 20
Increase (decrease Increase (decrease
due to change in due to change in
Net Net
Rate Volume Change Rate Volume Change

(in thousands)
Interest-earning assets

Loan receivable $ (3,829 $ (10,93) $ (14,76) $ (3,782 $ (6,09¢) $ (9,880
U.S. Treasury and agenci (14 (109 (129 (58) 18 (40
Mortgage-backed securitie (1,407 42C (981) (2,190 (689) (2,879
State and political subdivision

securities (243 39¢ 15t (55) 33t 28C
Corporate bond (54) 84 30 (86) (337) (423
FHLB stock 19 — 19 (13 — (13
Other debt securitie — — — 9 9 —
Other equity securitie 9 Q) 8 8 @) 1
Federal funds sol — (@D} QD (6) @) (13
Interest-bearing deposits in other

financial institutions (22) (150 (177) 5 10¢ 114

Total increase (decrease) in interes

income (5,529 (10,29¢) (15,825 (6,16¢) (6,685) (12,857)

Interest-bearing liabilities:
Certificates of deposit and

other time deposit (1,402 (3,239 (4,640 (4,239 (709 (4,949
NOW and money market accoul (670 (140 (810) (329 59 (26%)
Savings accoun (86) 12 (74) (42) 8 (33
Federal funds purchased and
repurchase agreemel (231) (202 (439 7 (57) (44)
FHLB advance: (34) (296) (330 (293 (1,185 (1,47¢)
Junior subordinated debentures 46 (24) 22 (15) (20) (35)
Total increase (decrease) in interes
expense (2,377) (3,88¢) (6,26%) (4,909 (1,89¢) (6,802)
Increase (decrease) in net interes
income $ (3,152) $ (6,408 $ (9,560 $ (1,269 $ (4,787 $ (6,057
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Non-Interest Income— The following table presents for the periods éatitd the major categories of non-interest income:

For the Years Ended
December 31,

2012 2011 2010
(in thousands)

Service charges on deposit accol $ 2,23¢ % 2,60¢ $ 2,98¢
Income from fiduciary activitie 1,177 992 987
Bank card interchange fe 727 66¢ 60€
Other real estate owned rental inca 42C 20C 121
Secondary market brokerage ft 94 21¢ 327
Gain on sales of loans originated for < 33¢ 713 554
Gain on sales of investment securities, 3,23¢ 1,10¢ 5,152
Otherthar-temporary impairment on securiti — (47) (597)
Other 1,35¢ 1,364 1,44¢

Total non-interest income $ 9,59 $ 7,83 $ 11,58:

Nor-interest income increased by $1.8 million to $9.@iom for 2012 compared with $7.8 million for 201This was due primarily

increased gain on sales of investment securiti@&2df million, or 192.1%, due to higher volume afes. This increase was offset partially
decreased service charges on deposit accounts76fCE®, or 14.2%, and decreased gain on salesan$ loriginated for sale of $375,000
52.6%. Fewer service charges on deposit accoantviere the result of lower transaction volume. €ogains on sales of loans originatec

sale were the result of fewer loans originatedside during the year in the USDA and SBA programs.

Nor+-interest income decreased by $3.7 million to $7il8an for 2011 compared with $11.6 million for 201This was due primarily to low
gain on sales of investment securities of $4.0iomlor 78.5%, due to fewer sales. Our rioierest income was also lower due to decre
service charges on deposit accounts of $375,0002@%, and decreased secondary market brokerageofe$108,000, or 33.0%. Fe\
service charges on deposit account fees were st i lower transaction volume. These decreasss wffset partially by increased gains
sales of loans originated for sale of $159,00@87%, and lower other-than-temporary impairmesirgas of $556,000, or 93.1%.

Non-interest Expense -The following table presents the major categorfasom-interest expense:

For the Years Ended
December 31,

2012 2011 2010
(in thousands)

Salary and employee benel $ 16,64¢ $ 15,21¢ % 14,90:
Occupancy and equipme 3,64 3,72¢ 4,09t
Goodwill impairment charg — 23,79« —
Other real estate owned expe 10,54¢ 47,52¢ 16,25¢
FDIC insurance 2,83t 3,47( 2,971
Loan collection expens 2,44 2,50¢ 90¢
State franchise ta 2,17¢ 2,22¢ 2,17z
Professional fee 1,98¢ 1,392 1,067
Communication: 71C 67¢ 737
Borrowing prepayment fee — 48€ —
Postage and delive 454 48t 722
Office supplies 357 352 38¢
Advertising 154 314 40¢
Other 2,34% 2,09: 1,85:

Total non-interest expense $ 4429: $ 104,27.  $ 46,47¢

Nor-interest expense for the year ended December 3P, 20 $44.3 million represented a 57.5% decreesma $104.3 million for the sar
period last year. The decrease in muierest expense was attributable primarily to dased other real estate owned expense due to llosg
on sales of OREO, lower valuation wrilewns, and lower property maintenance expenseseriogs related to other real estate o

include:
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2012 2011
(in thousands)

Net loss on sale $ 167 $ 8,88¢
Provision to allowance for sales strategy che — 25,61
Provision to allowance for declining market vali 7,15¢ 9,261
Operating expens 1,72¢ 3,762

Total $ 10,54¢ $ 47,52¢

During 2012, we recorded approximately $7.2 milladrprovision to allowance for declining market was related to new appraisals rece
for properties in the portfolio during the year.iFbompares with $9.3 million of provision relatednew appraisals received for propertie
the portfolio during 2011.

In 2011, the Company sold, in a single transactih finished condominium property units from condimiom developments held in ¢
OREO portfolio with a carrying value of approximigt&11.0 million, for $5.2 million, resulting in pretax loss of $5.8 million. No simil
transaction occurred in 2012.

Although we were carrying our OREO at fair markelue less estimated cost to sell in 2011, we swlesgty adjusted our valuations for I
development and residential development propehild in OREO that were similar to the properties seéd in 2011. We recorded
allowance totaling approximately $25.6 million &flect our intent to market these properties mggressively to retail and bulk buyers.
similar change in sales strategy was implementemgl2012.

FDIC insurance assessments decreased $635,008,386,1t0 $2.8 million in 2012 from $3.5 million #8011 due to decreased deposit le'
Borrowing prepayment fees decreased $486,000 asudo fees were incurred during 2012. Additionalipninterest expense for 20
included a non-recurring 100% goodwill impairmehage of $23.8 million.

These improvements were offset partially by higsadaries and employee benefits expense of $1.fbmilbr 9.4%, due primarily to additic
to staff in our credit administration and workoitisions, and higher professional fees of $593,@0012.6%, due primarily to increased a
and accounting fees, and loan review fees.

Non-interest Expense Comparison — 2011 to 2010

Nor-interest expense for the year ended December 31, 20 $104.3 million represented a 124.3% incréasm $46.5 million for the san
period last year. The increase in rinterest expense was attributable primarily to acréase in other real estate owned expense
increased losses on sales of OREO, OREO wlntens to reflect declining market values and thpaat of our sales strategy change in re
to certain OREOQ properties, and OREO maintenanpereses. Expenses related to other real estate anclade:

2011 2010
(in thousands)
Net loss on sale $ 8,88¢ $ 565
Provision to allowance for sales strategy che 25,61 —
Provision to allowance for declining market vali 9,261 14,06:
Operating expens 3,76- 1,627
Total $ 47,52 $ 16,25¢

In 2011, management determined, with the concuerefiche Board of Directors, that certain propertield in OREO were not likely to
successfully disposed of in an acceptable firame using routine marketing efforts. It becampaapnt due to weakness in the economy
softness in demand for housing that certain lanegtld@ment and residential condominium projects waeluire extended holding period:
sell the properties at recent appraised valuexowdingly, in June of 2011, the Company sold, irsiagle transaction, 54 finish
condominium property units from condominium devetgmts held in our OREO portfolio with a carryingluea of approximatel
$11.0 million, for $5.2 million, resulting in a ptax loss of $5.8 million.

Although we were carrying our OREO at fair markeiue less estimated cost to sell, we subsequedflysted our valuations for la
development and residential development propehad in OREO similar to the properties we sold D12, We recorded an allowar
totaling approximately $25.6 million to reflect omtent to market these properties more aggressteetetail and bulk buyers. Additional
we recorded approximately $9.3 million of fair valwrite-downs related to new appraisals received for pt@gein the portfolio during 201
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Loan collection expense increased $1.6 million198.3%, to $2.5 million in 2011 from $908,000 inlP0due to settlements of certain le
matters and increased volume of foreclosures. he 011, we settled this litigation for less thae $1,058,000 minimum amount
compensatory and punitive damages awarded in avgngict against PBI Bank, which we recorded in $keond quarter as loan collec
expense. We also recorded approximately $300,008za0f collection expense in 2011 related to a da&dfe County, Kentucky court ruling
uphold a contested mechanics lien on a propertwfach we took a deed in lieu of foreclosure.

FDIC insurance assessments increased $499,008,8%1to $3.5 million in 2011 from $3.0 million 8010 as a result of our ngerforming
asset levels. Salaries and employee benefits egproeased $315,000, or 2.1%, to $15.2 millio2041 from $14.9 million in 2010 due
merit raises and increases in staff primarily ia thedit and problem asset workout areas. Profemisiees increased $325,000, or 30.59
$1.4 million in 2011 from $1.1 million in 2010 due increased accounting and evaluation serviceselIto goodwill impairment a
deferred tax assets, and increased staff recruits@mices and management evaluation services.ndlered borrowing prepayment fee:
$312,000 on the retirement of a $10 million repasghagreement prior to maturity and $174,000 omptbpayment of $5.5 million of FHL
advances prior to maturity. We elected to redeessdhhigher cost borrowings in connection with @se#/liability planning and to lower ¢
cost of funds in future periods. No similar trartgats occurred in 2010.

These increases were offset partially by a decrimasecupancy and equipment expense of $366,008,986, due to reduced depreciatior
equipment expense, and decreased postage andrgdiygense of $237,000, or 32.8%, due to our datigd replace certain thindarty
courier services with in-house personnel.

Goodwill Impairment

The Company evaluates goodwill for impairment atigua the fourth quarter unless events or chanigesircumstances indicate poten
impairment may have occurred between annual assessnGoodwill was reviewed for impairment durihg second quarter of 2011 bece
the market price of our common stock on NASDAQ ohexdd. Our stock trended downward during the fipsarter of 2011 to a low of $7.
per share and continued downward through May ané 2011. The stock closed on June 30, 2011 aB3k® share and has traded
market price less than book value per common sdiace the second quarter of 2010. Our market vallb®ok value ratios are noted below.

The ratio at June 30, 2011 is reflected on a padgdl impairment charge basis.

Market Value to Book Value Ratio:

Market Market to
Book Value Price Per Book
Per Share Share Ratio
12/31/2011 $ 12.7¢ $ 10.31 81%
3/31/201: $ 12.7¢ % 7.8¢ 62%
6/30/201: $ 947 $ 4.9¢ 53%

We evaluated the potential negative impact of sevactors on the value of our common stock, initcigdbeing removed from the Rus:
3000 Index during June 2011; the trend of loweniegs in 2011 compared to historical performance tuthe continuing impact of loan I
provisions, norperforming loans, and foreclosed properties; armdagmeements with regulators. Our goodwill impamtesting complett
during the fourth quarter of 2010 included, amotfieothings, future projections of earnings at Iswexceeding actual results for 2011.
level of loan loss provisions and the cost of ftwsed properties continue to exceed our prior egiens as we work through issues with
non-performing loan levels and other real estateemportfolio.

We determined the fair value utilizing our markepitalization based upon recent common stock pevels. We also considered mal
comparison transactions and control premiums fsiitirtions of a similar size and performance. Base this analysis, we determined

our goodwill was impaired and recorded an impairmoirarge of $23.8 million in the quarter ended JB@e2011. The impairment charge

no impact on the Company’s liquidity, cash flowsregulatory ratios.

Income Tax Expense- Income tax benefit was $65,000 for 2012 compareh $218,000 for 2011. The 2011 income tax benedis affecte
significantly by the establishment of a 100% vahratallowance for our deferred tax asset of $31lillian. Our deferred tax valuatic
allowance increased to $43.9 million at December2®12. Our statutory federal tax rate was 35%ath 2012 and 2011. The effective
rate for 2012 and 2011 is not meaningful due tordduction of income tax benefit as the resulthef establishment of the deferred
valuation allowance.
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The valuation allowance for our deferred tax asdees not have any impact on our liquidity, norgditgyreclude us from using the tax los
tax credits or other timing differences in the fetuTo the extent we generate taxable income iivengjuarter, the valuation allowance r
be reduced to offset fully or partially the corresgding income tax expense. Any remaining defereedatsset valuation allowance may
reversed through income tax expense once we caprdgtrate a sustainable return to profitability aodclude it is more likely than not 1
deferred tax asset will be utilized.

See Note 14, “Income Taxes”, for additional disaus®f our income taxes.

Income tax benefit was $218,000 for 2011 comparitid $3.0 million for 2010. The 2011 income tax bineas affected significantly by tl
establishment of a 100% valuation allowance foraefierred tax asset of $31.7 million. Our statfederal tax rate was 35% in both 2
and 2010. Our effective federal tax rate was 41ii92910. The effective tax rate for 2011 is not megful due to the reduction of income
benefit as the result of the establishment of #ferded tax valuation allowance.

Analysis of Financial Condition

Total assets at December 31, 2012 were $1.2 bilampared with $1.5 billion at December 31, 201deerease of $292.8 million or 20.1
This decrease was attributable primarily to a desgeof $236.9 million in loans. The decrease am$owas attributable to principal reducti
by customers outpacing loan originations and adesnas well as $37.5 million in loan chaafés and the transfer of loan balances tote
$33.5 million to OREO.

PBI Bank’s total risk-based capital was $85.8 miiliat December 31, 2012. PBI Basikonsent order with its primary regulators reqlite
Board of Directors to adopt and implement a planettuce its construction and development loansotanore than 75% of total ridkase:
capital. These loans totaled $70.3 million, or 88P4otal risk-based capital, at December 31, 20itzlso required a plan to reduce non-
owner occupied commercial real estate loans, caectitn and development loans, and multifamily resithl real estate loans as a grou
not more than 250% of total risk based capital.seHeans totaled $311.1 million, or 362% of totsk+based capital, at December 31, 2012.

While we have not yet reduced our balances in thategories to the percentages established inlaar fhe largest decrease in loans wi
our construction loan portfolio, which declinedfigp101.5 million at December 31, 2011 to $70.3iomillat December 31, 2012. Our non-
owner occupied commercial real estate loans detfiren $252.7 million at December 31, 2011 to $888illion at December 31, 2012.

Total assets at December 31, 2011 were $1.5 bilmmpared with $1.7 billion at December 31, 201Qjearease of $268.5 million
15.6%. This decrease was attributable primarilg ecrease of $166.6 million in loans. The dessrea loans was attributable to princ
reductions by customers outpacing loan originatenmd advances, as well as $44.6 million in loarrgiaffs and the transfer of loan balan
totaling $41.9 million to OREO.

Loans Receivable ‘oans receivable decreased $236.9 million, or 20@%ing the year ended December 31, 2012, to $89&dlion. Ou
commercial, commercial real estate and real estatstruction portfolios decreased by an aggrega$d®1.1 million, or 23.4%, during 20
and comprised 58.6% of the total loan portfoli®atember 31, 2012.

Loans receivable decreased $166.6 million, or 12189%1.1 billion at December 31, 2011, compareith WiL.3 billion at December 31, 20
Our commercial, commercial real estate and reatestonstruction portfolios decreased $129.7 mijlior 15.9%, to $687.5 million
December 31, 2011. At December 31, 2011, thesesloamprised 60.5% of the total loan portfolio camgal with 62.7% of the loan portfo
at December 31, 2010.

Loan Portfolio Composition —The following table presents a summary of the Ipartfolio at the dates indicated, net of defermeahl fees
by type. There are no foreign loans in our portf@nd other than the categories noted, there isongentration of loans in any indus
exceeding 10% of total loans.

As of December 31
2012 2011
Amount Percent Amount Percent
(dollars in thousands)

Commercia $ 52,56 5.85% $ 71,21¢ 6.27%
Commercial Real Estat

Constructior 70,28¢ 7.8:2 101,47: 8.9¢

Farmland 80,82¢ 8.9¢ 90,95¢ 8.01

Other 322,68 35.8¢ 423,84 37.31
Residential Real Estat

Multi-family 50,98¢ 5.67 60,41( 5.31

1-4 Family 278,27. 30.9¢ 337,35( 29.7(
Consume 20,38 2.27 26,01 2.2¢
Agriculture 22,317 2.4¢ 23,77( 2.0¢
Other 77C 0.0¢ 992 0.0¢

Total loans $ 899,09: 100.0% $ 1,136,02: 100.0(%
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As of December 31,
2010 2009 2008
Amount Percent Amount Percent Amount Percent
(dollars in thousands)

Commercia $ 90,29( 6.92% $ 89,90:¢ 6.3¢% $ 90,97¢ 6.74%
Commercial Real Estat

Constructior 199,52: 15.32 304,23( 21.5: 371,30: 27.5C

Farmland 85,52 6.5¢ 83,89¢ 5.9¢ 77,50 5.7¢4

Other 441,84 33.97 451,94! 31.9¢ 377,13( 27.9¢
Residential Real Estat

Multi-family 74,91¢ 5.7t 65,04 4.6( 56,35( 4.17

1-4 Family 353,41¢ 27.1: 354,35¢ 25.0¢ 319,73 23.6¢
Consume 31,91 2.4k 36,98¢ 2.62 37,78: 2.8(
Agriculture 24,17, 1.8¢ 25,06¢ 1.77 16,18: 1.2C
Other 1,06( 0.0¢ 1,48¢ 0.11 3,14¢ 0.2¢

Total loans $ 1,302,66! 100.0% $ 1,412,911 100.0096 $ 1,350,101 100.00%

Our lending activities are subject to a varietyesfding limits imposed by state and federal lawl BBnk’s secured legal lending limit tc
single borrower was approximately $20.7 milliorDe&tcember 31, 2012.

At December 31, 2012, we had eight loan relatigrsi@ach with aggregate extensions of credit in &xoé $10 million. Five of the eic
relationships include loans that have been claskidis substandard by the Bankiternal loan review process. In 2011, we hadetén loal
relationships each with aggregate extensions dafitche excess of $10 million. For further discussiof classified loans refer to the a
quality discussion in our “Allowance for Loan Lossection.

Our real estate construction portfolio declined ragpnately $31.2 million from 2011 to 2012 as thesult of construction projects be
completed and sold to end users or refinanced upelenanent financing arrangements, and also laatisis category being transferrec
OREO through the normal progression of collectiwarkout, and ultimate disposition. We continue ¢tiveely work to reduce the size of «
real estate construction portfolio.

As of December 31, 2012, we had $9.4 million otiparations in real estate loans purchased frord, 61.9 million of participations in re
estate loans sold to, other banks. As of Decembe@11, we had $16.4 million of participationsreal estate loans purchased from,
$82.7 million of participations in real estate Isawld to, other banks.

Our loan participation totals include participagan real estate loans purchased from and solddoaffiliate banks, The Peoples Bank,
Washington and The Peoples Bank, Taylorsville. €airman emeritus, J. Chester Porter and his bratie our director, William G. Port
each own a 50% interest in Lake Valley Bancorp,,Itiee parent holding company of The Peoples Baaklorsville, Kentucky. J. Ches
Porter, William G. Porter and our chairman and tharecutive officer, Maria L. Bouvette, serve asedtors of The Peoples Ba
Taylorsville. Our chairman emeritus owns an interek approximately 36.0% and his brother and oueatdbr owns an interest
approximately 3.0% in Crossroads Bancorp, Inc.,pdwent holding company of The Peoples Bank, M&Mashington, Kentucky. J. Ches
Porter and Maria L. Bouvette, serve as director3lué Peoples Bank, Mount Washington. During 201,12 and 2010, we entered i
management services agreements with each of tlaedes.bEach agreement provides that our executiveemployees provide managen
and accounting services to the subject bank, imetudverall responsibility for establishing and igpenting policy and strategic planni
These entities are not consolidated in the findrst&ements of the Company. Maria Bouvette atswes as chief financial officer of eact
the banks. We received a $4,000 monthly fee froma FPhoples Bank, Taylorsville and a $2,000 montaég/ffom The Peoples Bank, Mo
Washington for these services. Beginning in 2048s¢ management services agreements were not iiknewe
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As of December 31, 2012, we had $2.7 million oftipgrations in real estate loans purchased frord, 5 million of participations in re
estate loans sold, to these affiliate banks. ABefember 31, 2011, we had $4.1 million of partitignes in real estate loans purchased f
and $13.2 million of participations in real estltans sold to, these affiliate banks. At Decemider2®12, $1.4 million and $943,000 of I«
participations sold to Peoples Bank, Taylorsviled Peoples Bank, Mt. Washington, respectivelygveer non-accrual.

We have analyzed our relationship with these atB and determined that we do not have the pandiréct the activities of the affiliates
a manner that would significantly impact their eaoric performance nor do we govern their absorptiblosses or the use of their econo
resources. As such, these entities are not calaged in our financial statements.

Loan Maturity Schedule — The following table sets forth information at Dedmn31, 2012, regarding the dollar amount of loaret, o
deferred loan fees, maturing in the loan portfbised on their contractual terms to maturity:

As of December 31, 201

Maturing Maturing Maturing
Within 1 through Over 5 Total
One Year 5 Years Years Loans

(dollars in thousands)
Loans with fixed rates:

Commercia $ 11,17¢  $ 13,61¢ $ 2201 $ 26,99:¢
Commercial Real Estat

Constructior 13,38: 10,68¢ 1,28¢ 25,35¢

Farmland 11,65¢ 22,44; 6,08¢ 40,18¢

Other 99,897 114,42: 8,80¢ 223,12¢
Residential Real Estat

Multi-family 9,92:¢ 31,59¢ 2,857 44,37¢

1-4 Family 53,51 98,41¢ 67,45 219,38:
Consume 4.,44; 12,87¢ 1,82¢ 19,147
Agriculture 3,01« 1,42C 12¢ 4,56:
Other 21¢ — — 21¢

Tota| fixed rate |Oan $ 207,215 $ 305,47- $ 90,65: $ 603,34-
Loans with floating rates:
Commercia $ 14,728 $ 6,33C $ 451¢ % 25,57
Commercial Real Estat

Constructior 22,22 13,74¢ 8,95¢ 44 ,92¢

Farmland 8,68¢ 4,68t 27,27( 40,64(

Other 26,71« 35,32¢ 37,52: 99,56
Residential Real Estat

Multi-family 57¢ 1,29(C 4,741 6,61(

1-4 Family 10,71¢ 14,19: 33,98: 58,89:
Consume 61S 401 222 1,23¢
Agriculture 11,77¢ 5,332 64¢ 17,75¢
Other — 524 27 551

Total floating rate loan $ 96,02¢ $ 81,82¢ $ 117,88¢ $ 295,74!

Non-Performing Assets— Non-jperforming assets consist of certain restructumahd for which interest rate or other terms haver
renegotiated, loans past due 90 days or moreastilaccrual, loans on which interest is no longaraed, real estate acquired thro
foreclosure and repossessed assets. Loans, inglidpaired loans, are placed on rexerual status when they become past due 90 d
more as to principal or interest, unless they alegaately secured and in the process of collectioans are considered impaired if
principal or interest payments are not anticipatedccordance with the contractual loan terms. inggaoans are carried at the present v
of expected future cash flows discounted at the'maffective interest rate or at the fair valuehd## tollateral less cost to sell if the loa
collateral dependent. Loans are reviewed on a aedpalsis and normal collection procedures are impfgéed when a borrower fails to mal
required payment on a loan. If the delinquency omoatgage loan exceeds 90 days and is not curedghrnormal collection procedures o
acceptable arrangement is not worked out with threolver, we institute measures to remedy the defedluding commencing a foreclos
action. Consumer loans generally are charged offrndnloan is deemed uncollectible by managementagdavailable collateral has b
disposed. Commercial business and real estatedielimyuencies are handled on an individual basismbpagement with the advice of le
counsel.
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Interest income on loans is recognized on the atdrasis except for those loans placed on axuorual status. The accrual of interes
impaired loans is discontinued when managemeng\edi after consideration of economic and busioesditions and collection efforts, tl
the borrowers’financial condition is such that collection of irget is doubtful, which typically occurs after thean becomes 90 dc
delinquent. When interest accrual is discontindsting accrued interest is reversed and inténesime is subsequently recognized onl
the extent cash payments are received on well-sddaans.

Real estate acquired as a result of foreclosuteyateed in lieu of foreclosure is classified ad estate owned until such time as it is s
New and used automobiles and other motor vehiadgsieed as a result of foreclosure are classifiedepossessed assets until they are
When such property is acquired it is recordedsataitr market value less cost to sell. Any widigan of the property at the time of acquisi
is charged to the allowance for loan losses. Sulms#qains and losses are included in non-intesgstnse.

The following table sets forth information with pext to non-performing assets as of the datesatetic

As of December 31,

2012 2011 2010 2009 2008
(dollars in thousands)

Past due 90 days or more still on acc $ 86 $ 1,35C $ 594 % 596¢ $ 11,59¢
Loans on non-accrual status 94,517 92,02( 59,79¢ 78,88¢ 9,72¢

Total nor-performing loan: 94,60: 93,37( 60,39 84,85¢ 21,32
Real estate acquired through foreclos 43,67 41,44¢ 67,63t 14,54¢ 7,83¢
Other repossessed assets — 5 52 80 96

Total non-performing assets $ 138,27. $ 13482: $ 128,08( $ 99,48: § 29,25¢
Non-performing loans to total loar 10.52% 8.22% 4.62% 6.0(% 1.5¢%
Non-performing assets to total ass 11.8% 9.2¢% 7.4% 5.42% 1.7¢%
Allowance for no-performing loan: $ 13,25( $ 11,38: % 7971 % 7,266 $ 2,36:
Allowance for non-performing loans to non-perforgin

loans 14.(% 12.2% 13.2% 8.6% 11.1%

A troubled debt restructuring (TDR) is where then@any has agreed to a loan modification in the fofra concession for a borrower wh
experiencing financial difficulty. The majority ¢fie Companys TDRs involve a reduction in interest rate, a deafeof principal for a state
period of time, or an interest only period. All RB are considered impaired, and the Company hasatdid reserves for these loans to re
the present value of the concessionary terms giatatehe customer. If the loan is considered cefldt dependent, it is reported ne
allocated reserves, at the fair value of the cattdtless cost to sell.

We do not have a formal loan modification progr&tather, we work with individual borrower on a cdseease basis to facilitate the orde
collection of our principal and interest beforevari becomes a ngrerforming loan. If a borrower is unable to makatcactual payments, \
review the particular circumstances of that bornowsituation and negotiate a revised payment strimother words, we identify performi
borrowers experiencing financial difficulties, atidtough negotiations, we lower their interest ramst typically on a shoterm basis fc
three to six months. Our goal when restructuringedlit is to afford the borrower a reasonable gkabtime to remedy the issue causing
flow constraints within their business so that tkap return to performing status over time.

Our loan modifications have taken the form of rdthucin interest rate and/or curtailment of scheduprincipal payments for a shaetr
period, usually three to six months, but in somsesauntil maturity of the loan. In some circumstanwe restructure real estate secured
in a bifurcated fashion whereby we have a fully gimimg “A” loan at a market interest rate and aterest-only “B”loan at a reduced inter.
rate. Our restructured loans are all collateralsst loans. If a customer fails to perform under todified terms, we place the loan(s
non-accrual status and begin the process of wonkittgthe customer to liquidate the underlying atdtal to satisfy the debt.

At December 31, 2012, we had 123 restructured Idatsding $117.8 million with borrowers who experied deterioration in financ
condition compared with 114 loans totaling $113illiom at December 31, 2011. In general, these doaare granted interest rate reduct
to provide cash flow relief to borrowers experiegccash flow difficulties. Of these restructuremhns for 2012, five loans totali
approximately $5.2 million were also granted pnuatipayment deferrals until maturity. There werecnacessions made to forgive princ
relative to these loans, although we have recopdetial chargesffs for certain restructured loans. In generagsthloans are secured by -
liens on 14 residential or commercial real estate propertesarmland. Restructured loans also include® $8illion of commercial loar
for 2012. At December 31, 2012, $77.3 million of H®were performing according to their modified term
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In accordance with current guidance, we continueefmort restructured loans as restructured untthsime as the loan is paid in fi
otherwise settled, sold, or charged-off. If therbater fails to perform, we place the loan on ramerual status and seek to liquidate
underlying collateral for these loans. Our non-aatipolicy for restructured loans is identical tor cmonaccrual policy for all loans. O
policy calls for a loan to be reported as ramtrual if it is maintained on a cash basis becafisieterioration in the financial condition of
borrower, payment in full of principal and interéstot expected, or principal or interest has hieestefault for a period of 90 days or m
unless the assets are both well secured and jpraoess of collection. Changes in value for impaintincluding the amount attributed to
passage of time, are recorded entirely within ttoewvigion for loan losses.

We consider any loan that is restructured for adweer experiencing financial difficulties due tobarrowers potential inability to pay
accordance with contractual terms of the loan ta beubled debt restructure. Specifically, wesider a concession involving a modifical
of the loan terms, such as (i) a reduction of théesl interest rate, (ii) reduction or deferrapahcipal, or (iii) reduction or deferral of accd
interest at a stated interest rate lower than tineent market rate for new debt with similar ridkta be troubled debt restructurings. Whe
modification of terms is made for a competitives@a we do not consider that to be a troubled deditucturing. A primary example o
competitive modification would be an interest regduction for a performing customstfoan to a market rate as the result of a mardetirc
in rates.

See Footnote 4, “Loans”, to the financial statersémt additional disclosure related to troubledtdeltructuring.

Interest income that would have been earned onpeoforming loans was $4.9 million, $4.0 million,dafs2.7 million for the years end
December 31, 2012, 2011, and 2010, respectivelierdst income recognized on accruing penforming loans was $460,000, $611,000,
$222,000 for the years ended December 31, 2012, 20 2010, respectively.

Loans more than 90 days past due decreased $1i@nénd nomaccrual loans increased $2.5 million, respectivieym December 31, 20
to December 31, 2012. The $94.6 million in nonperiog loans at December 31, 2012, and $93.4 milabrDecember 31, 2011, w
primarily construction, land development, otherdanommercial real estate, and residential rea@tedbans. The protracted slowdowi
housing unit sales and loss of tenants or inaltititiease vacant office ameltail space has placed inordinate stress on thetemers and the
ability to repay according to the contractual terofighe loans. As such, we have placed these teredi nonaccrual and have begun
appropriate collection actions to resolve them. dgment believes it has established adequatedsandserves for these credits.

Loans past due 30-59 days increased from $17.8omiit December 31, 2011 to $38.2 million at Decengi, 2012. Loans past due &9-
days increased from $3.9 million at December 31,12® $20.3 million at December 31, 2012. Thigespnts a $37.2 million increase ft
December 31, 2011 to December 31, 2012, in loass hee 389 days. These increases were primarily in thestcoction and resident
real estate segments of the portfolio. We coneiiéhis trend in delinquency levels during the eatibn of qualitative trends in the portfc
when establishing the general component of ounaltwe for loan lossesSubsequent to December 31, 2012, loans to two figni
borrowing relationships, which at December 31, 2@&2e past due 30-59 days totaling $23.5 milliod past due 6@9 days totaling $12
million, were placed on non-accrual. These loaasavelassified as impaired and allocated reserf/$4.8 million at December 31, 2012.

Foreclosed Properties- Foreclosed properties at December 31, 2012 were7 $#8lion compared with $41.4 million at Decembt,
2011. See Footnote 6, “Other Real Estate Owntedthe financial statements. During 2012, we aegu$33.5 million of OREO properti
and sold properties totaling approximately $24.Riom. We value foreclosed properties at fair valess estimated costs to sell when acq;
and expect to liquidate these properties to recoueinvestment in the due course of business.

Other real estate owned (OREOQ) is recorded atnfgrket value less estimated cost to sell at timaagfuisition. Any writedown of the
property at the time of acquisition is chargedh®e allowance for loan losses. Subsequent redgctiofair value are recorded as nioteres
expense. To determine the fair value of OREO foalker dollar, single family homes, we consult wittternal real estate sales staff
external realtors, investors, and appraisershdfihternally evaluated market price is below onderlying investment in the property,
record an appropriate write-down.

For larger dollar commercial real estate propertisobtain a new appraisal of the subject propargonnection with the transfer to ORE
In some of these circumstances, an appraisalpsoicess at quarter end and we must make our béshes of the fair value of the underly
collateral based on our internal evaluation ofgiheperty, our review of the most recent appra@atl discussions with the currently enge
appraiser. We obtain updated appraisals on theensary date of ownership unless a sale is imntinen
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The following table presents the major categorfe@REO at the year-ends indicated:

Commercial Real Estat

Constructior 22,327 $ 31,28(
Farmlanc 60z 71E
Other 15,17¢ 6,36¢
Residential Real Estat
Multi -family 19t —
1-4 Family 5,37¢ 3,09(
43,67 $ 41,44¢
Net activity relating to other real estate ownedrmlythe years indicated is as follov
2012 2011
(in thousands)
OREQ Activity
OREO as of January 41,44¢  $ 67,63t
Real estate acquire 33,52¢ 41,91%
Valuation adjustments for sales strategy che — (25,617
Valuation adjustments for declining market val (7,159 (9,26))
Improvements 1 1,65(
Loss on sali (1,672 (8,889
Proceeds from sale of properties (22,487) (25,990
OREO as of December 31 43,67 $ 41,44¢

2012

2011

(in thousands)

Net loss on sales, wr-downs, and operating expenses for OREO totalecb$thilion for the year ended December 31, 2012, marad witt
$47.5 million for the same period of 2011. The 20&4ults were impacted significantly by our deteraion in the 2011 second quarter
certain properties held in other real estate wetdikely to be successfully disposed of in an @table timeframe using routine marketi
efforts. It became apparent that certain condaminprojects were going to require extended holgiagods to sell the properties at tl
most recent appraised values. Accordingly, duduge 2011, the Company sold, in a single transactié finished condominium prope
units from several condominium developments in ©REO portfolio, with a carrying value of approxirat $11.0 million for $5.2 millior
resulting in a preéax loss of $5.8 million. In addition, managememjusted its valuations for similar condominium aresidentic
development properties held in other real estatsutih provision of an allowance of $10.6 million ather real estate held, with the objec
of marketing these properties more aggressively.

Although we were carrying our OREO at fair markefue less estimated cost to sell, we subsequedflysted our valuations for la
development and residential development propehad in OREO similar to the properties we sold D12, We recorded an allowar
totaling approximately $25.6 million during 2011 rieflect our intent to market these properties maamygressively to retail and bulk buy:
No similar change in sales strategy was implemedtsohg 2012

We recorded approximately $7.7 million and $8.3liomil of fair value writeelowns related to new appraisals received for pt@sem the
OREO portfolio during 2012 and 2011 respectivalye were successful in selling OREO totaling $24ifion and $34.9 million durin
2012 and 2011, respectively.

Allowance for Loan Losses -The allowance for loan losses is based on manag&namtinuing review and evaluation of individuahfs

loss experience, current economic conditions, clsi&racteristics of various categories of loans such other factors that, in management’
judgment, require current recognition in estimativan losses
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The following table sets forth an analysis of Ié@ss experience as of and for the periods indicated

As of December 31

2012 2011 2010 2009 2008
(dollars in thousands)

Balances at beginning of period $ 52,57¢ $ 34,28¢ $ 26,39: $ 19,65: $ 16,34
Loans charge-off:

Real estat 31,43} 38,53¢ 19,26: 6,51¢ 2,711

Commercia 3,78¢ 4,197 2,67¢ 301 347

Consume 1,13( 1,07( 49¢ 87t 74¢

Agriculture 1,16¢ 841 29 36 27
Total charge-offs 37,51t 44,64t 22,46 7,731 3,83¢
Recoveries

Real estat 1,04( 184 114 138 14~

Commercia 12¢ 69 28 55 85

Consume 12t 87 104 76 85

Agriculture 72 — 8 7 8
Total recoveries 1,36¢ 34C 254 271 323
Net charg-offs 36,14¢ 44,30¢t 22,207 7,46( 3,511
Provision for loan losse 40,25( 62,60( 30,10( 14,20( 5,40(
Balance acquired in bank acquisition — — — — 1,421
Balance at end of period $ 56,68( $ 52,57¢ $ 34,28° $ 26,39: $ 19,65:
Allowance for loan losses to per-end loan: 6.3(% 4.6% 2.6% 1.87% 1.4€%
Net charg-offs to average loar 3.5(% 3.5¢% 1.64% 0.5% 0.21%
Allowance for loan losses to n-performing loan: 59.91% 56.31% 56.7% 31.1(% 92.1%

Our allowance for loan losses is a reserve estaalishrough charges to earnings in the form ofoaipion for loan losses. The allowance
loan losses is comprised of specific reserves ame@gl reserves. Generally, all loans that have Entified as impaired are reviewed ¢
quarterly basis in order to determine whether acifipeallowance is required. A loan is consideredpaired when based on cur
information;, it is probable that we will not regeiall amounts due in accordance with the conted¢tums of the loan agreement. Once a
has been identified as impaired, management mesasomgairment in accordance with ASC 310.10npairment of a Loan.” Wher
managemeng measured value of the impaired loan is less tiamecorded investment in the loan, the amoutih@impairment is record
as a specific reserve. These specific reservededezmined on an individual loan basis based onagement current evaluation of our Ic
exposure for each credit given the payment stétuemcial condition of the borrower and value offamderlying collateral. Loans for whi
specific reserves have been provided are excluded the general reserve calculations describednbelihanges in specific reserves fi
period to period are the result of changes in ttmimstances of individual loans such as chargs;@fyeffs, changes in collateral values
other factors.

The allowance for loan losses represents managésnesitmate of the amount necessary to providerfomwk and inherent losses in the |
portfolio in the normal course of business. Dug¢hi® uncertainty of risks in the loan portfolio, ragement judgment of the amount of
allowance necessary to absorb loan losses is aippaitex The allowance for loan losses is also suilbgeregulatory examinations and may
adjusted in response to a determination by thelaggy agencies as to its adequacy in comparistim pger institutions.

We make specific allowances for each impaired loased on its type and classification as discusbedea At yearend 2012, our allowan
for loan losses to total non-performing loans iased to 59.9% from 56.3% at yeard 2011. We have assessed these loans fortabilday
and considered, among other things, the borravability to repay, the value of the underlyinglatdral, and other market conditions
ensure that the allowance for loan losses is adedqaabsorb probable incurred losses. We alsotainia general reserve for each loan
in the loan portfolio. In determining the amounttieé general reserve portion of our allowance danllosses, management considers fa
such as our historical loan loss experience, tlavty, composition and diversification of our loaarifolio, current delinquency levels, 1
results of recent regulatory examinations and gdreconomic conditions. Based on these factorsapmy estimated percentages to
various categories of loans, not including any Itizat has a specific allowance allocated to itebagn our historical experience, portfi
trends and economic and industry trends. This métion is used by management to set the generervieportion of the allowance for Ic
losses at a level it deems prudent.

Our portfolio is comprised primarily of loans seediby real estate. A decline in the value of trd estate serving as collateral for our I
may impact our ability to collect those loans.gkmeral, we obtain updated appraisals on propedyrsg our loans when circumstances
warranted such as at the time of renewal or wherke@haonditions have significantly changed. We gasalified licensed appraisers appra
by our Board of Directors. These appraisers pegsesequisite certifications and knowledge ofltioal and regional marketplace.
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Based on an evaluation of the loan portfolio, mamagnt presents a quarterly review of the allowafioceloan losses to our Board
Directors, indicating any change in the allowance lban losses since the last review and any recmdations as to adjustments in
allowance for loan losses.

This evaluation is inherently subjective as it riegm estimates that are susceptible to significamision as more information becor
available or as events change. We increased thwailce for loan losses as a percentage of loastaoding to 6.30% at December 31, Z
from 4.63% at December 31, 2011. The level of flvance is based on estimates and the ultimagefomay vary from these estimates.

We follow a loan grading program designed to evaldlae credit risk in our loan portfolio. Throudtig loan grading process, we maintail
internally classified watch list which helps managat assess the overall quality of the loan paafahd the adequacy of the allowance
loan losses. Loans categorized as watch list lshow warning elements where the present statubiexbine or more deficiencies that req
attention in the shottierm or where pertinent ratios of the loan acctiave weakened to a point where more frequent nrimgtés warrantec
These loans do not have all of the characteristis classified loan (substandard or doubtful) daitshow weakened elements as comg
with those of a satisfactory credit. We review thiEmns to assist in assessing the adequacy afltiveance for loan losses.

In establishing the appropriate classification §mecific assets, management considers, among fabtars, the estimated value of
underlying collateral, the borrower’s ability topagy, the borrowes repayment history and the current delinquenustais a result of th
process, loans are categorized as special mestibstandard or doubtful.

Loans classified as “special mentiodd not have all of the characteristics of substethda doubtful loans. They have one or n
deficiencies which warrant special attention andciitorrective action, such as accelerated cotlagtractices, may remedy.

Loans classified as “substandaaté those loans with clear and defined weaknessdsas a highly leveraged position, unfavorablarfiia
ratios, uncertain repayment sources or poor firsrm@ndition which may jeopardize the repaymenthef debt as contractually agreed. T
are characterized by the distinct possibility thatwill sustain some losses if the deficienciesraecorrected.

Loans classified as “doubtfutire those loans which have characteristics sirtolaubstandard loans but with an increased riskabiéectior
or liquidation in full is highly questionable anaprobable.

Once a loan is deemed impaired or uncollectiblecadractually agreed, the loan is charged-off eiffatially or infull against the allowan:
for loan losses, based upon the expected futute fb@ss discounted at the loankffective interest rate, or the fair value oflaigral les
estimated cost to sell with respect to collateedda loans.

As of December 31, 2012, we had $248.7 millionoains classified as substandard, $396,000 classifietbubtful, $34.7 million classified
special mention and none classified as loss. Tompares with $229.6 million of loans classified sabstandard, $391,000 classifiec
doubtful, $48.9 million classified as special mentand none classified as loss as of December1l,.2The $19.1 million increase in lo
classified as substandard was primarily concerdrateéhe commercial real estate portfolio. As ofcBber 31, 2012, we had allocation
$34.0 million in the allowance for loan losses tetato these classified loans. This comparesloeations of $30.2 million in the allowar
for loan losses related to classified loans at Déw 31, 2011.

We recorded a provision for loan losses of $40.Bonifor the year ended December 31, 2012, comparigh $62.6 million for 2011 ar
$30.1 million for 2010. The total allowance for tobbsses was $56.7 million or 6.30% of total loaatsDecember 31, 2012, compared !
$52.6 million or 4.63% of total loans at Decembgy 2011, and $34.3 million or 2.63% of total loatsDecember 31, 2010he increase
allowance is consistent with the increase in oasgified loans of $39.0 million from December 3012 to December 31, 2012, loan charge-
off trends, and other trends within the portfolioparticular the protracted slowdown in housingt sales and continued weakness in der
for residential land in our markets. Net chagffs-were $36.1 million for the year ended DecenBier2012, compared with $44.3 million
2011 and $22.2 million for 2010. Chargfés for 2012 were concentrated in the loans setbsereal estate category of the portfolio. |
estate charge-offs represents 84% of our net ckaffgdor 2012. These net chargéfs consisted of $18.3 million of commercial restat:
loans, $8.9 million of residential real estate laand $3.2 million of construction and land depetent loans. The continued weakness ii
real estate sector of the market continued to ed@snward pressure on the value of real estaterisgcaur loansWe continue to close
monitor real estate values for property that secote loans to ensure our allowance is adequate.

The following table depicts managemendllocation of the allowance for loan losses anltype. Allowance funding and allocation is bz
on managemerg’ current evaluation of risk in each category, eooic conditions, past loss experience, loan volupast due history a
other factors. Since these factors and managesassumptions are subject to change, the alloca&ioot necessarily predictive of fut
portfolio performance. The allocation is made bwlgtical purposes and is not necessarily indicatizéhe categories in which future los
may occur. The total allowance is available to absosses from any segment of loans.
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Commercia
Commercial Real Estat
Constructior
Farmland
Other
Residential Real Estat
Multi-family
1-4 Family
Consume
Agriculture
Other

Total

Commercia

Commercial Real Estat
Constructior
Farmland
Other

Residential Real Estat
Multi-family
1-4 Family

Consume

Agriculture

Other

Unallocated

Total

As of December 31

2012 2011
Percent of Percent of
Loans to Loans to
Amount of Total Amount of Total
Allowance Loans Allowance Loans
(dollars in thousands)
$ 4,402 5.8/ % $ 4,207 6.27%
5,98¢ 7.8:2 13,92( 8.9¢
2,60( 8.9¢ 2,02¢ 8.01
26,17¢ 35.8¢ 17,08: 37.31
2,46¢ 5.67 1,797 5.31
13,77 30.9¢ 12,42( 29.7(C
857 2.27 792 2.2¢
402 2.4¢ 32t 2.0¢
15 0.0¢ 14 0.0¢
$ 56,68( 100.0% $ 52,57¢ 100.0(%
As of December 31,
2010 2009 2008
Percent of Percent of Percent of
Loans to Loans to Loans to
Amount of Total Amount of Total Amount of Total
Allowance Loans Allowance Loans Allowance Loans
(dollars in thousands)
$ 2,147 6.97% $ 2,04( 6.3¢% $ 1,62 6.74%
11,16« 15.32 8,21t 21.5:¢ 5,907 27.5C
702 6.5¢€ 642 5.94 882 5.74
12,20¢ 33.92 9,26¢ 31.9¢ 6,77(C 27.9¢
517 5.7t 57¢ 4.6( 59C 4.17
6,707 27.1¢ 4,66 25.0¢ 2,271 23.6¢
701 2.4F 53¢ 2.62 603 2.8(
134 1.8¢ 163 1.77 23¢€ 1.2C
4 0.0¢ 5 0.11 26 0.2
— — 282 — 742 —
$ 34,28¢ 100.0% $ 26,39: 100.00% $ 19,65: 100.0(%

Investment Securities— The securities portfolio serves as a source ofdiuand earnings and contributes to the managéwofeinterest rat
risk. We have the authority to invest in varioupdy of liquid assets, including shéerm United States Treasury obligations and seéeard
various federal agencies, obligations of statespitical subdivisions, corporate bonds, certifesaof deposit at insured savings and |
and banks, bankeracceptances and federal funds. We may also investten of our assets in certain commercial paet corporate de
securities. We are also authorized to invest inuaufiunds and stocks whose assets conform to tlestments that we are authorized to n
directly. The investment portfolio increased by $l@nillion, or 12.4%, to $178.5 million at Decemi&r, 2012, compared with $15

million at December 31, 2011.
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The following table sets forth the carrying valdfeoar securities portfolio at the dates indicat€dere were no securities classified as held-to
maturity at either period end.

December 31, 2012 December 31, 2011

Gross Gross Gross Gross
Amortized Unrealized Unrealized Fair Amortized Unrealized Unrealized Fair
Cost Gains Losses Value Cost Gains Losses Value

(dollars in thousands)
Securities availab-for-sale

U.S. Treasury and agenci $ 560 $ 53C $ — $ 6,13t $ 10,49+ $ 1,14¢ $ — $ 11,64
Agency mortgag-backed: residenti 94,29¢ 1,141 (257 95,18: 97,28¢ 2,211 (22) 99,47:
State and municip: 52,48: 2,33t (87) 54,73 35,45¢ 2,61( (4) 38,06
Corporate 18,85: 1,15C (37) 19,96 7,25¢ 31E (242) 7,33:
Other deb 572 4€ — 61¢ 572 34 — 60€
Equity 1,35¢ 487 — 1,84¢ 1,35¢ 35€ — 1,71f

Total $ 173,16( $ 568¢ $ (381) $178,47¢ $ 152,42 $ 6,67¢ $ (26¢) $158,83!

The following table sets forth the contractual nniies, fair values and weighted-average yieldsoiar securities held at December 31, 2012:

After Five
After One Year Years
Due Within But Within But Within After Ten
One Year Five Years Ten Years Years Total
Amount Yield Amount Yield Amount Yield Amount Yield Amount Yield
U.S. Treasury and agenci $ — —% $ 3,52t 25(% $ 2,606 3.3% $ — —% $ 6,13 2.92%
Agency mortgac-backec — — 828 4.7¢ 80z 5.1 93,55 1.6C 95,18: 1.6%
State and municip: 93C 6.51 3,00¢ 5.62 22,72¢  3.9C 28,07( 3.7t 54,73: 3.9¢
Corporate bond — — 7,23t  6.21 1,12 5.14 11,60¢ 2.32 19,96« 3.71
Other debt — — — — — — 61€ 6.5C 61€ 6.5C
Total $ 93C 6.51% $14,59: 5.06% $27,26: 3.94% $133,84¢ 2.12% $176,63( 2.65%
Equity 1,84¢
Total $178,47¢

Average yields in the table above were calculated tax equivalent basis using a federal incomedsexof 35%. Mortgagbacked securiti¢
are securities that have been developed by poalingmber of real estate mortgages. These sesuaitieissued by federal agencies suu
Government National Mortgage Association (“Ginni@ad’l), Fannie Mae and Freddie Mac, as well as aggncy company issuers. Th
securities are deemed to have high credit ratiagg,minimum regular monthly cash flows of principald interest. Cash flows from age
backed mortgage-backed securities are guarantetitbbysuing agencies.

Unlike U.S. Treasury and U.S. government agencyrgées, which have a lump sum payment at matuntgrtgagebacked securities provi
cash flows from regular principal and interest paps and principal prepayments throughout the Infehe securities. Mortgadeacke
securities that are purchased at a premium willegdly suffer decreasing net yields as interestsratrop because home owners ter
refinance their mortgages. Thus, the premium paidtrbe amortized over a shorter period. Theretbiese securities purchased at a disc
will obtain higher net yields in a decreasing iettrrate environment. As interest rates rise, fiposite will generally be true. During a pel
of increasing interest rates, fixed rate mortghgeked securities do not tend to experience hesyayments of principal and conseque
the average life of this security will not be slemtd. If interest rates begin to fall, prepaymaevitsincrease. Non-agency issuer mortgage-
backed securities do not carry a government guaeariVe limit our purchases of these securitielatak qualified issues with high cre
ratings. We regularly monitor the performance aretlit ratings of these securities and evaluatsetisecurities, as we do all of our securi
for other-than-temporary impairment on a quartedgis. At December 31, 2012, 98.4% of the agenaygagebacked securities we held |
contractual final maturities of more than ten yeaith a weighted average life of 24.9 years.

In December 2011, based upon relevant market irdtiom, we determined that our basis in twelve ggsécurities with an unrealized I
position for more the 12 months was not recoverablehe near term. Therefore, during 2011, we r@edran other-thatemporar
impairment charge totaling $41,000 for these s&esrivhich had an adjusted cost basis of $206,000.

The Company held 40 equity securities at Decemhter2812. Management monitors the underlying finalncondition of the issuers a
current market pricing for these equity securitiesnthly. At December 31, 2012, we had one equityustes in our portfolio with a
unrealized loss of less than $500.

Deposits— We attract both short-term and lotegm deposits from the general public by offeringide range of deposit accounts and intt
rates. In recent years, we have been required bienaonditions to rely increasingly on short tod-term certificate accounts and ot



deposit alternatives, including brokered and whadkesleposits, which are more responsive to marketdst rates. We use forecasts bast
interest rate risk simulations to assist managemnemionitoring our use of certificates of depositiather deposit products as funding sot
and the impact of their use on interest income ragtdnterest margin in various rate environmentsDAcember 31, 2012, brokered dep
totaled $15.0 million. We are currently restrictedm accepting, renewing, or rollingver brokered deposits without the prior receipt
waiver on a case-by-case basis from our regulators.
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We primarily rely on our banking office network to rattt and retain deposits in our local markets awdrage our online Ascencia divisior
attract out-ofmarket deposits. Market interest rates and ratedeposit products offered by competing financiatitntions can significant
affect our ability to attract and retain deposidsiring 2012, total deposits decreased $258.7 miliompared with 2011. During 2011, t
deposits decreased $143.9 million compared witt020he decrease in deposits for 2012 and 2011 wasply in certificates of depo:
balances and money market accounts.

To evaluate our funding needs in light of depasihdls resulting from continually changing condifipmanagement and board commit
evaluate simulated performance reports that foteda@nges in margins along with other pertinentneatic data. We continue to of
attractively priced deposit products along our pieidine to allow us to retain deposit customerd seduce interest rate risk during vari
rising and falling interest rate cycles.

We offer savings accounts, NOW accounts, money eta&counts and fixed rate certificates with vagyinaturities. The flow of deposits
influenced significantly by general economic coimtis, changes in interest rates and competition. r@anagement adjusts interest re
maturity terms, service fees and withdrawal peeslbtn our deposit products periodically. The variet deposit products allows us
compete more effectively in obtaining funds anddspond with more flexibility to the flow of fundsvay from depository institutions ir
outside investment alternatives. However, our ghit attract and maintain deposits and the cdstisese funds has been, and will contint
be, significantly affected by market conditions.

The following table sets forth the average daillabhaes and weighted average rates paid for oursitsdor the periods indicated:

For the Years Ended December 31,

2012 2011 2010
Average Average Average Average Average Average
Balance Rate Balance Rate Balance Rate
(dollars in thousands)
Demanc $ 113,32¢ $ 106,76¢ $ 102,38:
Interest Checkin 89,82( 0.37% 89,101 0.72% 83,11: 0.85%
Money Market 63,21: 0.4¢ 81,92t 0.9¢ 81,43( 1.24
Savings 38,66¢ 0.4C 36,51 0.62 35,39: 0.74
Certificates of Deposit 912,06 1.52 1,120,15. 1.6 1,156,72. 2.0z
Total Deposits $ 1,217,08 $ 1,434,46 $ 1,459,04

Weighted Average Ra 1.2(% 1.4% 1.74%

The following table sets forth the average dailyabhees and weighted average rates paid for ouificatés of deposit for the peric
indicated:

For the Years Ended December 31
2012 2011 2010

Average Average Average Average Average Average
Balance Rate Balance Rate Balance Rate

(dollars in thousands)

Certificates of Depos

Less than $100,0C $ 478,50: 14% $ 569,66 15% $ 579,97¢ 2.0%
$100,000 or more 433,55¢ 1.64 550,48 1.71 576,74¢ 2.0¢
Total $ 912,06: 1.52% $ 1,120,15 165 $  1,156,72 2.02%

The following table shows at December 31, 2012atimeunt of our time deposits of $100,000 or moréig remaining until maturity:

Maturity Period Retall Brokered Total
(in thousands)
Three months or les $ 40,77C $ — 3 40,77(
Three months through six mont 38,90( 15,00( 53,90(
Six months through twelve mont 64,76 — 64,76
Over twelve months 160,09! — 160,09!
Total $ 304,52° $ 15,000 $ 319,52
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We strive to maintain competitive pricing on oupdsit products which we believe allows us to retagubstantial percentage of our
customers when their time deposits mature.

Borrowing — Deposits are the primary source of funds for ondieg and investment activities and for our genbtainess purposes. We
also use advances (borrowings) from the FHLB ofc@imati to supplement our pool of lendable fundsgetrdeposit withdrawal requireme
and manage the terms of our liabilities. Advancesfthe FHLB are secured by our stock in the FHE&tain commercial real estate lo
and substantially all of our first mortgage resiimnoans. At December 31, 2012, we had $5.6 amillin advances outstanding from
FHLB and the capacity to increase our borrowingsdditional $23.0 million. The FHLB of Cincinnatirictions as a central reserve t
providing credit for savings banks and other menifimancial institutions. As a member, we are regdito own capital stock in the FHLB ¢
are authorized to apply for advances on the sgcafisuch stock and certain of our home mortgagesaher assets (principally, securi
which are obligations of, or guaranteed by, thetéthBtates) provided that we meet certain standatated to creditworthiness.

The following table sets forth information about &HLB advances as of and for the periods indicated

December 31

2012 2011 2010
(dollars in thousands)

Average balance outstandi $ 6,32t % 1531 $ 47,80(
Maximum amount outstanding at any mc-end during the perio 7,01t 38,93) 110,76:
End of period balanc 5,60¢ 7,11¢ 15,02:
Weighted average interest ra

At end of perioc 3.21% 3.31% 3.81%

During the perioc 3.27% 3.51% 4.22%

Subordinated Capital Note — At December 31, 2012, our bank subsidiary, PBI Bdrdd a subordinated capital note outstanding &
amount of $7.0 million. The note is unsecuredrbaaerest at the BBA thremonth LIBOR floating rate plus 300 basis points] guoalifie:
as Tier 2 capital. Interest only was due quartdttpugh September 30, 2010, at which time quarigrincipal payments of $225,000 p
interest commenced. The note is due July 1, 2@2@ecember 31, 2012, the interest rate on this m@s 3.36%.

Junior Subordinated Debentures— At December 31, 2012, we had four issues of jusidrordinated debentures outstanding totaling ¢
million as shown in the table below.

Liquidation Junior
Amount Subordinated
Trust Optional Debt and
Preferred Prepayment Investment
Description Securities Issuance Date  Date (2) Interest Rate (1) in Trust Maturity Date
(dollars in thousands) (dollars in thousands)
Porter Statutory
Trust Il $ 5,00( 2/13/200: 3/17/200¢  3-month LIBOR +2.85% $ 5,15¢ 2/13/203:
Porter Statutory
Trust Il 3,00(¢ 4/15/200: 6/17/200¢  3-month LIBOR + 2.79% 3,09¢ 4/15/203:
Porter Statutory
Trust IV 14,00( 12/14/200: 3/1/201:  3-month LIBOR + 1.67% 14,43¢ 3/1/203"
Asencia Statutory
Trust | 3,00¢ 2/13/200: 3/17/200¢  3-month LIBOR + 2.85% 3,09t 2/13/203:
$ 25,00( $ 25,77¢

(1) As of December 31, 2012, th-month LIBOR was 0.31%
(2) The debentures are callable on or after the ogtjmegpayment date at their principal amount plusaed interest

The trust preferred securities are subject to miangaedemption, in whole or in part, upon repayimehthe subordinated debenture
maturity or their earlier redemption at the liquida preference. The subordinated debentures, wimnature February 13, 2034, April
2034, and March 1, 2037, are redeemable beform#terity date at our option on or after March 1002, June 17, 2009, and March 1, 2!
respectively, at their principal amount plus acdrirderest. We have the option to defer interegtmEnts on the subordinated debentures
time to time for a period not to exceed 20 conseeuguarters. After such period, we must pay afeded interest and resume quart
interest payments or we will be in default. Effeetiwith the fourth quarter of 2011, we began déigrinterest payments on our jur
subordinated debentures.
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Deferring interest payments on our junior suborgidanotes resulted in the deferral of distributionsour trust preferred securities. We
be prohibited from paying cash dividends on our wmm stock until such time as we have paid all a@etedistributions on our trust prefer
securities.

The trust preferred securities issued by our sudngidrusts are currently included in our Tier Jital for regulatory purposes. On Marcl
2005, the Federal Reserve Board adopted final thktscontinue to allow trust preferred securite$e included in Tier 1 capital, subjec
stricter quantitative and qualitative limits. Curtly, no more than 25% of our Tier 1 capital camsist of trust preferred securities .
qualifying perpetual preferred stock. To the extdr@ amount of our trust preferred securities edsabe 25% limit, the excess would
includable in Tier 2 capital. The new quantitatiimits were effective March 31, 2011. As of DecemB#&, 2012, Porter Bancop'trus
preferred securities totaled 25% of its Tier 1 ta@nd 37% of its Tier 2 capital.

Each of the trusts issuing the trust preferred i$&es holds junior subordinated debentures weadsuith a 30 year maturity. The final ru
provide that in the last five years before the gurdubordinated debentures mature, the associatstdpreferred securities will be exclus
from Tier 1 capital and included in Tier 2 capital.addition, the trust preferred securities durinig fiveyear period would be amortized
of Tier 2 capital by one-fifth each year and exelddrom Tier 2 capital completely during the yeafdse maturity.

Liquidity

Liquidity risk arises from the possibility we mayptrbe able to satisfy current or future financiainenitments, or may become unduly rel
on alternative funding sources. The objective giilility risk management is to ensure that we meetcash flow requirements of deposi
and borrowers, as well as our operating cash nee#dlig into account all on- and dffalance sheet funding demands. Liquidity
management also involves ensuring that we meetash flow needs at a reasonable cost. We maintainvastment and funds managen
policy, which identifies the primary sources ofdidity, establishes procedures for monitoring andasuring liquidity, and establist
minimum liquidity requirements in compliance witbgulatory guidance. Our Asset Liability Committemtinually monitors and reviews ¢
liquidity position.

Funds are available from a number of sources, dietuthe sale of securities in the availabledate portion of the investment portfo
principal pay-downs on loans and mortgdpeked securities, customer deposit inflows, bretedeposits and other wholesale func
During 2012 and 2011, we utilized brokered depdsitsupplement our funding strategy. At December2Bil2, these deposits totaled $:
million compared with $118.4 million at December, 2011. We are currently restricted from acceptiegewing, or rollingaver brokere
deposits without the prior receipt of a waiver oraae-byease basis from our regulators. The following tablews at December 31, 2012,
amount of our brokered certificates of depositimetremaining to maturity (in thousands):

Three months or les $ —
Three months through six mont 15,00(
Six months through twelve mont —
Over twelve month —
Total $ 15,000

Traditionally, we have borrowed from the FHLB tgplement our funding requirements. At December2®12, we had an unused borrow
capacity with the FHLB of $23.0 million.

After December 31, 2011, as a result of our refieancial results, the FHLB changed our collatenahngements from a blanket pledg
residential mortgage loans to a detailed loamlistequirement. Our borrowing capacity under tataited loan listing requirement is ba
on the market value of the underlying pledged laatiser than the unpaid principal balance of tleelgéd loans. The listing requirement
increases the level of collateral required for baings.

We also secured federal funds borrowing lines famrespondent banks totaling $5.0 million on a sedasis. Management believes
sources of liquidity are adequate to meet expect=th needs for the foreseeable future, howeveravhdability of these lines could

affected by our financial position. We are alsojeabto FDIC interest rate restrictions for depasks such, we are permitted to offer up tc
“national rate” plus 75 basis points as publishegkly by the FDIC.
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We use cash to pay dividends on common stock,dfvainen declared by the Board of Directors, andetwise debt. The main sources
funding include dividends paid by PBI Bank, managetrfees received from PBI Bank and affiliated tsaakd financing obtained in f
capital marketsDuring 2011, Porter Bancorp contributed $13.1 wrillto its subsidiary, PBI Bank, which substantiaBcreased its liqu
assets. The contribution was made to strengtheBainé’s capital in an effort to help it comply with itapital ratio requirements under
consent order. Liquid assets decreased from $2Midnmat December 31, 2010, to $4.9 million at Beter 31, 2011, and to $3.5 millior
December 31, 2012. Since the Bank is unlikely tarba position to pay dividends to the parent comypfor the foreseeable future, c
inflows for the parent are limited to earnings amestment securities, sales of investment secsiriied interest on deposits with the B
These cash inflows along with the liquid assets ls#lDecember 31, 2012, are needed to cover ongipeeating expenses of the pa
company which have been reduced and are budget&t Jamillion for 2013. Parent company liquidityutd be improved if a capital rai
was accomplished. See the “Supervision-Porter Baabiavidends” section of Item 1. “Business” and tteividends” section of Item :
“Market for Registrant's Common Equity, Related &tioolder Matters and Issuer Purchases of Equityi@exs” of this Annual Report ¢
Form 10-K.

Capital

In the fourth quarter of 2011, we began deferrimgpayment of regular quarterly cash dividendsumSeries A Preferred Stock issued tc
U.S. Treasury. If we defer dividend payments igrqgiarters, the holder of our Series A Preferraatls (currently the U.S. Treasury) wo
then have the right to appoint representativesutoBoard of Directors. We will continue to accraey deferred dividends, which will
deducted from income to common shareholders fanfifal statement purposes.

In addition, effective with the fourth quarter @221, we began deferring interest payments on auojjisubordinated notes with resulted
deferral of distributions on our trust preferreds@ties, Therefore, we will not be able to paytrcds/idends on our common stock until s
time that we have paid all deferred distributionsoor trust preferred securities.

Stockholdersequity decreased $35.3 million to $47.2 milliorDetcember 31, 2012, compared with $83.8 million at&nmber 31, 2011. T
decrease was due to the 2012 net loss and to dolsdgccrued on our Series A Preferred Stock.

In 2010, we completed a $32 million private placati® accredited investors. Following completidntiee transactions involved, Pol
Bancorp had issued (i) 2,465,569 shares of comnmks(ii) 317,042 shares of Series C PreferredtiSand (iii) warrants to purchase
purchase 1,163,045 shares of non-voting commotk siioa price of $11.50 per share.

The Series C Preferred Stock has no voting rigitsgpt when required by law), has a liquidatiorfgmence over our common stock,

dividend rights equivalent to our common stock. teabare of Series C Preferred Stock automaticalhwerts into 1.05 shares of comn
stock at such time as, after giving effect to theomatic conversion, the holder of the Series Gdred Stock (together with its affiliates ¢
any other persons with which it is acting in conagrwhose holdings would otherwise be requirethdoaggregated for purposes of fed
banking law) beneficially holds, directly or inditdy, less than 9.9% of the number of shares ofrnomstock then issued and outstanding.

The warrants are exercisable into non-voting comistock until they expire on September 16, 2015. fitvevoting common stock has
voting rights (except when required by law), bultestvise has the same dividend and other rightsias@ammon stock. Upon issuance, ¢
share of norvoting common stock automatically converts intoSlsBares of common stock at such time as, aftémgyeffect to the automa
conversion, the holder of the nenting common stock (together with its affiliatasdaany other persons with which it is acting in @am o
whose holdings would otherwise be required to tgregpated for purposes of federal banking law) haliiiectly or indirectly, beneficial
less than 9.9% of the number of shares of comnmrkdhen issued and outstanding.

On November 21, 2008, we issued to the U.S. Trgasuexchange for aggregate consideration of $&illlon, 35,000 shares of our Sel
A Preferred Stock and a warrant to purchase up3®581 shares of our common stock for $15.88 pareshirhe warrant is immediat
exercisable and has a $6ar term. The Series A Preferred Stock quald®Jier 1 capital and pays cumulative cash dividendarterly at €
annual rate of 5% for the first five years, and ®f#reafter. The Series A Preferred Stock is woting (except when required by law) i
after issuance may be redeemed by the Company,@@Gper share plus accrued unpaid dividends. Bndd accrued and unpaid on
Series A Preferred Stock, and interest accrueduapdid on those dividends, totaled $2.5 millioDatember 31, 2012.

Kentucky banking laws limit the amount of dividerttiat may be paid to a holding company by its slibsy banks without prior approv
These laws limit the amount of dividends that mayphid in any calendar year to current ygaet income, as defined in the laws, comk
with the retained net income of the preceding twarg, less any dividends declared during thoseggrDuring 2013, the amount availabl
be paid by PBI Bank to Porter Bancorp would be 28afhings to date. However, PBI Bank has agreell iwgtprimary regulators to obt:
their written consent prior to declaring or payaryy future dividends.
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Each of the federal bank regulatory agencies habléshed risk-based capital requirements for bragnkirganizations. See Item 1. Business
Supervision and Regulation — Porter Bancorp — @hpilequacy Requirements and PBI Bankapital Requirements. In addition, PBI B
has agreed with its primary regulators to maintamtio of total capital to total risk-weighted efss(“total risk-based capital ratiodf at leas
12.0%, and a ratio of Tier 1 capital to total asg¢everage ratio”) of 9.0%.

The following table shows the ratios of Tier 1 ¢apand total capital to riskdjusted assets and the leverage ratios for Fdatecorp and PE
Bank at December 31, 2012:

Minimum
Capital
Ratios
Well- Under
Regulatory Capitalized Consent Porter PBI
Minimums Minimums Order Bancorp Bank
Tier 1 Capital 4.(% 6.C% N/A 6.4€% 7.71%
Total risk-based capite 8.C 10.C 12.(% 9.81 9.8:
Tier 1 leverage rati 4.C 5.C 9.C 4.5 5.37

At December 31, 2012, PBI BarkTier 1 leverage ratio declined to 5.37% whictbésow the 9% minimum capital ratio required by
Consent Order and its total riblased capital ratio declined to 9.82% which is Wwetloe 12% minimum capital ratio required by the €eam
Order.Bank regulatory agencies can exercise discretioanvan institution does not maintain minimum cag#sakls or meet the other ter
of a consent order. The agencies may initiate ghsun management, issue mandatory directives,smpwonetary penalties or refrain fr
formal sanctions, depending on individual circumsts. Any action taken by bank regulatory agenmiesd damage our reputation and t
a material adverse effect on our business.

See Footnote 2, “Going Concern Considerations anar€ Plans”, to the financial statements for addél information.

Off Balance Sheet Arrangements

In the normal course of business, we enter int@uartransactions, which, in accordance with GAAR, not included in our consolida
balance sheets. We enter into these transactionse&t the financing needs of our customers. Thesesdctions include commitments
extend credit and standby letters of credit, whinlolve, to varying degrees, elements of credik asd interest rate risk in excess of
amounts recognized in the consolidated balanceshee

Our commitments associated with outstanding staridtigrs of credit and commitments to extend creditof December 31, 2012
summarized below. Since commitments associated leftars of credit and commitments to extend cretity expire unused, the amot
shown do not necessarily reflect our actual futagh funding requirements:

More than 1 3 years or

One year year but less  more but less 5 years
or less than 3 years than 5 years or more Total
(dollars in thousands)
Commitments to extend cret $ 25,41¢  $ 11,35¢ $ 1,99 % 14,10¢ $ 52,87:
Standby letters of credit 2,261 — — — 2,261
Total $ 27,67¢ $ 11,35¢ $ 1,99 $ 14,10¢ $ 55,13:

Standby Letters of Credit — Standby letters of credit are written conditionalhmnitments we issue to guarantee the performanca
borrower to a third party. If the borrower does petform in accordance with the terms of the agm@mwith the third party, we would
required to fund the commitment. The maximum paé&r@mount of future payments we could be requikednake is represented by
contractual amount of the commitment. If the commeitt is funded, we would be entitled to seek regoW®@m the borrower. Our polici
generally require that standby letter of crediaagements contain security and debt covenantsasitoithose contained in loan agreements.

Commitments to Extend Credit — We enter into contractual commitments to extenddicrenormally with fixed expiration dates
termination clauses, at specified rates and fociipgurposes. Substantially all of our commitneetd extend credit are contingent u
borrowers maintaining specific credit standardshattime of loan funding. We minimize our expostodoss under these commitments
subjecting them to credit approval and monitoringcpdures.
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Contractual Obligations

The following table summarizes our contractual gdgions and other commitments to make future paysresnhof December 31, 2012:

More than 1 3 years or
One year year butless  more but less 5 years or
or less than 3 years than 5 years more Total
(dollars in thousands)
Time deposit: $ 409,59 % 326,02 $ 24,86¢ $ 85 $ 760,57:
FHLB borrowing (1) 1,12¢ 1,39¢ 1,18¢ 1,897 5,60¢
Subordinated capital no 90C 1,80(C 1,80(C 2,47¢ 6,97t
Junior subordinated debentu — — — 25,00( 25,00(
Total $ 411,61¢ $ 329,22 3 27,85: $ 29,457 $ 798,15.

(1) Fixed rate mortgageratched borrowings with rates ranging from 0% t85%, and maturities ranging from 2013 through 2
averaging 3.21%

Impact of Inflation and Changing Prices

The financial statements and related data preseméeein have been prepared in accordance with geS8erally accepted account
principles, which require the measurement of fin@ngosition and operating results in historicalla@® without considering changes in
relative purchasing power of money over time dumfiation.

We have an asset and liability structure that s&esally monetary in nature. As a result, interasés have a more significant impact on
performance than the effects of general levelsfiftion. Periods of high inflation are often acquamied by relatively higher interest ra
and periods of low inflation are accompanied bwtieély lower interest rates. As market interestsaise or fall in relation to the rates eal
on our loans and investments, the value of thesetsisecreases or increases respectively.

ltem 7A. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures About Market Risk

To minimize the volatility of net interest incomedaexposure to economic loss that may result floictifating interest rates, we manage
exposure to adverse changes in interest ratesghrasset and liability management activities witpiridelines established by our As
Liability Committee (“ALCQ"). The ALCO, which is comprised of senior managemeptasentatives, has the responsibility for appg
and ensuring compliance with asset/liability mamaget policies. Interest rate risk is the exposaredverse changes in the net inte
income as a result of market fluctuations in inderates. The ALCO, on an ongoing basis, monitoterést rate and liquidity risk in order
implement appropriate funding and balance shegtegfies. Management considers interest rate ribk tmur most significant market risk.

We utilize an earnings simulation model to analgeeinterest income sensitivity. We then evaluateeptial changes in market interest r
and their subsequent effects on net interest incdime model projects the effect of instantaneousaennts in interest rates of both 100
200 basis points that are sustained for one yessuiptions based on the historical behavior ofdeyosit rates and balances in relatic
changes in interest rates are also incorporatedtive model. These assumptions are inherently taicesind, as a result, the model ca
precisely measure future net interest income ocipety predict the impact of fluctuations in marleterest rates on net interest inco
Actual results will differ from the moded’simulated results due to timing, magnitude aaduency of interest rate changes as well as ch
in market conditions and the application and timifigarious management strategies.

Our interest sensitivity profile was asset sensitat December 31, 2012 and December 31, 2011. Gimeimstantaneous 100 basis p
increase in interest rates our base net interestrie would increase by an estimated 4.0% at Dece®ihe012 compared with an increas
5.8% at December 31, 2011.

The following table indicates the estimated impathnet interest income under various interestgadmarios for the year ended Decembe
2012, as calculated using the static shock modsagh:

Change in Future
Net Interest Income

Change in Interest Rates Dollar Change Percentage Chang
(dollars in thousands)

+ 200 basis point $ 2,88 8.11%

+ 100 basis point 1,46( 411

We did not run a model simulation for decliningergst rates as of December 31, 2012, because tiedr&Reserve effectively lowered
federal funds target rate between 0.00% to 0.25%daoember 2008. Therefore, further sherm rate reductions are not practical. As
implement strategies to mitigate the risk of risinggrest rates in the future, these strategiesle@gsen our forecasted “base caset interes
income in the event of no interest rate changes.
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Our interest sensitivity at any point in time wik affected by a number of factors. These factariside the mix of interest sensitive assets
liabilities as well as their relative pricing sclies. It is also influenced by market interestsatieposit growth, loan growth, decay rates
prepayment speed assumptions.

The following table sets forth the amounts of auteiest-earning assets and intefisaring liabilities outstanding at December 31,2
which we anticipate, based upon certain assumpttongprice or mature in each of the future tireeigeds shown. The projected repricing
assets and liabilities anticipates prepaymentssahdduled rate adjustments, as well as contractatlrities under an interest rate uncha
scenario within the selected time intervals. While believe such assumptions are reasonable, weottassure you that assumed repri
rates will approximate our actual future activity.

Volume Subject to Repricing Within

Non-
0-90 91-181 182- 365 1-5 Over 5 Interest
Days Days Days Years Years Sensitive Total
(dollars in thousands)

Assets:
Federal funds sold and shoetm

investments $ 41,16 $ — 3 — % — % — 8 — $ 4116
Investment securitie 23,60° 7,64 11,29: 56,531 65,45¢ 13,93t 178,47¢
FHLB stock 10,07: — — — — — 10,07:
Loans held for sal 507 — — — — — 507
Loans, net of allowanc 334,55:; 94,14« 120,49¢ 246,67¢ 103,22: (56,68() 842,41
Fixed and other assets — — — — — 90,00: 90,00:

Total assets $ 409,89¢ $ 101,79 $ 131,78 $ 303,21« $ 168,68( $ 47,25¢( $ 1,162,63
Liabilities and Stockholder¢’

Equity
Interest-bearing checking,

savings, and money market

account; $ 190,17¢ $ —  $ — — — ¢ — $ 190,17¢

Certificates of depos 113,00¢ 128,82. 164,87! 352,43 1,43 — 760,57:
Borrowed funds 34,89° 272 45¢ 3,062 1,522 — 40,21
Other liabilities — — — — — 124,47¢ 124,47¢
Stockholders’ equity — — — — — 47,19( 47,19(

Total liabilities and
stockholders’ equity $ 338,08 $ 129,090 $ 165,33« $ 35549t $ 295t $ 171.66¢ $ 1,162,63.

Period gap $ 71810 $ (27,309 $ (3354) $ (52,280 $ 165,72!
Cumulative gap $ 71810 $ 44517 $ 10,966 $ (41,319) $ 124,41
Period gap to total assets 6.18% (2.35%) (2.89%) (4.5(%) 14.25%
Cumulative gap to total assets 6.18% 3.85% 0.94% (3.55%) 10.4(%
Cumulative interest-earning
assets to cumulative
interest-bearing liabilities 121.29% 109.59% 101.79% 95.82% 112.5%%

Our one-year cumulative gap position as of DecerBtheR012 was positive $11.0 million or 0.9% ofedssThis is a onday position that
continually changing and is not necessarily indveabf our position at any other time. Any gap gsa& has inherent shortcomings beci
certain assets and liabilities may not move propoally as interest rates change.
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Item 8. Financial Statements and Supplementary Dat
The following consolidated financial statements aegybrts are included in this section:
Management’s Report on Internal Control Over Finarigeporting
Report of Independent Registered Public AccourfEing
Consolidated Balance Sheets as of December 31,&612011
Consolidated Statements of Operations for the YEaded December 31, 2012, 2011, and 2010
Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive Losthéo¥ears Ended December 31, 2012, 2011, and 2010

Consolidated Statements of Change in Stockholdeysity for the Years Ended
December 31, 2012, 2011, and 2010

Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows for the YEnded December 31, 2012, 2011, and 2010

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
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PBIB

Porter Bancorp, Inc.

MANAGEMENT'S REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANC IAL REPORTING

The Management of Porter Bancorp, Inc. (the “Comgpais responsible for the preparation, integriynd fair presentation of the Compasy’
annual consolidated financial statements. All infation has been prepared in accordance with Urgrghy accepted accounting princig
and, as such, includes certain amounts that apgdlmasManagement's best estimates and judgments.

Management is responsible for establishing and taiaing adequate internal control over financiglaging presented in conformity w
U.S. generally accepted accounting principleserhl control over financial reporting includes gh@olicies and procedures that (1) pe
to the maintenance of records that, in reasonaétaild accurately and fairly reflect the transaaticand dispositions of the assets of
Company; (2) provide reasonable assurance thasdctions are recorded as necessary to permit pitegarof financial statements
accordance with U.S. generally accepted accoumtiimgiples, and that receipts and expenditureshefGompany are being made onl:
accordance with authorizations of management arettdirs of the Company; and (3) provide reasonakserance regarding preventiol
timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, ugedisposition of the Comparg/’assets that could have a material effect onitfandia
statements.

Two of the objectives of internal control are t@myde reasonable assurance to Management and #rel Bb Directors that transactions
properly authorized and recorded in our finanocéords, and that the preparation of the Compafigancial statements and other finar
reporting is done in accordance with U.S. generatiyepted accounting principles.

Management has made its own assessment of théiedfeess of the Comparg/internal control over financial reporting as afdember 3:
2012, in relation to the criteria described in tieeort, Internal Control —ntegrated Framework, issued by the Committee anSpring
Organizations of the Treadway Commission (“COSMased on our assessment, Management concludeastiohtDecember 31, 2012,
Company’s internal control over financial reportisgeffective based on those criteria.

There are inherent limitations in the effectivene$dnternal control, including the possibility dfuman error and the circumvention
overriding of controls. Accordingly, even effectiigernal control can provide only reasonable amst# with respect to reliability of financ
statements. Furthermore, the effectiveness ofriaterontrol can vary with changes in circumstan8ssed on its assessment, Manage
believes that as of December 31, 2012, the Compantigrnal control was effective in achieving tlhgeatives stated above.

/s/ Maria L. Bouvettt /s/ Phillip W. Barnhous
Maria L. Bouvette Phillip W. Barnhouse
Chairman and Chief Financial Officer

Chief Executive Office

February 28, 2013
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Crowe Horwath.

REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

Porter Bancorp, Inc.
Louisville, Kentucky

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balaheets of Porter Bancorp, Inc. as of Decemhe2@12 and 2011, and the rele
consolidated statements of operations, changdedki®lders’equity and comprehensive income, and cash flowsdoh of the three years
the period ended December 31, 2012. These consamdidmancial statements are the responsibilitytref Company's management.
responsibility is to express an opinion on thegesobidated financial statements based on our audits

We conducted our audits in accordance with thedstats of the Public Company Accounting OversighauBlo(United States). Thc
standards require that we plan and perform thet aoidibtain reasonable assurance about whethdindugcial statements are free of mate
misstatement. The Company is not required to haee, were we engaged to perform, an audit of iterirgl control over financi
reporting. Our audit included consideration ofeimtal control over financial reporting as a basis designing audit procedures that
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for thgppse of expressing an opinion on the effectiverméghe Companyg' internal control ov
financial reporting. Accordingly, we express nalswpinion. An audit includes examining, on a tessis, evidence supporting the amo
and disclosures in the financial statements. Aritalso includes assessing the accounting pringipked and significant estimates mad
management, as well as evaluating the overall Gigdustatement presentation. We believe that oditayrovide a reasonable basis for
opinion.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statetaaeferred to above present fairly, in all materégspects, the financial position of Po
Bancorp, Inc. as of December 31, 2012 and 2011 tlmdesults of its operations and its cash floarsefach of the three years in the pe
ended December 31, 2012, in conformity with U.Segally accepted accounting principles.

The accompanying consolidated financial stateméiatgee been prepared assuming the Company will aomtes a going concern.

discussed in Note 2 to the consolidated finandatesents, the Company has incurred substantis¢$oin 2012, 2011 and 2010, largely
result of asset impairments. In addition, the Canys bank subsidiary is not in compliance with a ragpry enforcement order issued by
primary federal regulator requiring, among othéngl, increased minimum regulatory capital rathedditional significant asset impairme
or continued failure to comply with the regulat@gforcement order may result in additional adveeggilatory action. These events r.
substantial doubt about the Company’s ability tottwe as a going concern. Managememqtfans with regard to these matters are
discussed in Note 2 to the consolidated finandatkesments. The consolidated financial statementsaddnclude any adjustments that m
result from the outcome of this uncertainty.

Crowe Horwath, LLP

Louisville, Kentucky
February 28, 2013
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Assets

Cash and due from financial institutic

Federal funds sold

Cash and cash equivalel
Securities available for sa
Mortgage loans held for sa
Loans, net of allowance of $56,680 and $52,57Qeaetsvely

Premises and equipme
Other real estate ownt

Federal Home Loan Bank sto
Bank owned life insuranc
Accrued interest receivable and other assets

Total assets

Liabilities and Stockholders’ Equity

Deposits

Non-interest bearini

Interest bearing

Repurch

Federal Home Loan Bank advanu
Accrued interest payable and other liabilit
Subordinated capital no

Junior subordinated debentures

Total deposit:
ase agreemel

Total liabilities

Commitments and contingent liabilities (Note :

Stockhol

Preferred stock, no par, 1,000,000 shares autht

der’ equity

PORTER BANCORP, INC.
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS

December 31,

(Dollar amounts in thousands except share data)

Series A - 35,000 issued and outstanding; Liquideagireference of

$35 million at December 31, 20

Series C — 317,042 issued and outstanding; Ligigidareference of

$3.6 million at December 31, 20

Common stock, no par, 86,000,000 shares authordlz:€02,421 and

11,824,472 shares issued and outstanding,aaplg
Additional paic-in capital

Retained defici

Accumulated other comprehensive income
Total stockholders' equity
Total liabilities and stockholders’ equity

See accompanying notes.

60

2012 2011
$  4651: $ 104,68
3,06( 1,287
49,57 105,96:
178,47¢ 158,83:
507 694
842,41. 1,083,44:
20,80¢ 21,54
43,67 41,44
10,07: 10,07:
8,39¢ 8,10¢

8,71¢ 25,32

$ 116263 $ 145542
$ 11431 $ 111,11
950,74 1,212,64!
1,065,05! 1,323,76.
2,63¢ 1,73¢

5,60¢ 7,11€
10,16¢ 7,62¢
6,97¢ 7,65(
25,00 25,00
1,115,44. 1,372,89
34,84( 34,66
3,28: 3,28¢
112,23 112,23
20,28: 19,84:
(126,51 (91,65¢)
3,06¢ 4,16¢
47,19( 82,52¢

$ 1,162,63 $ 1,45542




PORTER BANCORP, INC.

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS

Years Ended December 31,

(Dollar amounts in thousands except per share data)

Interest incom:
Loans, including fee
Taxable securitie
Tax exempt securitie
Federal funds sold and other

Interest expens
Deposits
Federal Home Loan Bank advani
Junior subordinated debentu
Subordinated capital no
Federal funds purchased and other

Net interest incom
Provision for loan losses

Net interest income (loss) after provision for ldasses

Nor-interest incoms
Service charges on deposit accol
Income from fiduciary activitie
Bank card interchange fe
Other real estate owned rental incc
Secondary market brokerage fi
Net gain on sales of loans originated for ¢
Net gain on sales of securiti
Other-thar-temporary impairment los
Total impairment los
Loss recognized in other comprehensive income
Net impairment loss recognized in earni
Other

Nor-interest expens
Salaries and employee bene
Occupancy and equipme
Goodwill impairment
Other real estate owned expel
FDIC insurance
Loan collection expens
State franchise te
Professional fee
Communication:
Borrowing prepayment fee
Postage and delive
Advertising
Other

Loss before income tax
Income tax expense (benefit)
Net loss
Less:
Dividends on preferred stor
Accretion on Series A preferred stc
(Earnings) loss allocated to participating secesiti
Net loss attributable to common shareholc

Basic loss per common share
Diluted loss per common share

2012 2011 2010
$ 52916 $  67,67¢ $  77,55¢
3,33: 4,00¢ 7,33¢

887 1,12¢ 854

591 744 65€

57,72¢ 73,55¢ 86,40
14,62: 20,14’ 25,39:

207 537 2,01¢

671 632 63¢

26€ 28 311

7 44C 484

15,77+ 22,03¢ 28,84
41,95¢ 51,51 57,56¢
40,25( 62,60( 30,10¢
1,70¢ (11,08%) 27,46¢

2,23¢ 2,60¢ 2,98¢

1,177 99z 987

727 66¢ 60€

42¢ 20C 121

94 21¢ 327

33¢ 712 554

3,23¢ 1,10¢ 5,15z

— (41) (597)

— (@1) (597)

1,35¢ 1,36/ 1,44¢

9,59( 7.83: 11,58:
16,64¢ 15,21¢ 14,90:
3,642 3,72¢ 4,09t

— 23,79t —

10,54¢ 47 52 16,25¢
2,83t 3,47( 2,971

2,44; 2,50¢ 90¢

2,17¢ 2,22¢ 2,17¢

1,98¢ 1,392 1,067

71C 67¢ 737

— 48€ —

454 48~ 722

154 314 40¢

2,69¢ 2,44E 2,241
44.29. 104,27- 46,478
(32,99)) (107,521 (7,430)

(65) (21€) (3,046)

(32,937 (107,307 (4,382)
(1,750 (1,750 (1,810

(179) (177) (177)

1,42¢ 4,08( 184

$  (3343) $ (10515) $ (6,18)
$ (2.85) $ (8.95) $ (0.60)
$ (2.8 $ (8.9 $ (0.60)




See accompanying notes.
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PORTER BANCORP, INC.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE LOSS
Years Ended December 31,
(in thousands)

2012 2011 2010
Net loss $ (32,93) $ (107,30) $ (4,389
Other comprehensive income (los
Unrealized gain (loss) on securiti
Unrealized gain (loss) arising during theige 1,54t 4,16: 4,55:
Reclassification of other than temporary impant — 41 597
Reclassification of amount realized througles (3,23¢6) (1,10¢) (5,157)
Included in net los (1,697 3,09t 2
Tax effec 592 (1,089 1
Net of ta> (1,099 2,012 (1)
Comprehensive loss $ (34,03) $ (105,29H $ (4,385

See accompanying notes.
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PORTER BANCORP, INC.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY
Years Ended December 31,
(Dollar amounts in thousands except share andhzee glata)

Shares Amount
Accumulated
) Additional Other
Series A Series B Series C Series A SeriesE  geries C Paid-In  Retained Comprehensive

Common Preferred Preferred Preferred Common Preferred Preferred  preferred Capital (Deficit) Income (Loss) Total

Balances,

January 1,

2010 8,756,441 35,00( — — $ 8310¢0$ 3430 $ — $ — $ 1495¢$ 34,811 $ 2,157 $ 169,33«
Issuance of stoc

and warrants

in private

placemen  1,820,53 — 597,000 365,08( 17,42¢ — 6,182 3,78( 3,14¢ — — 30,54(
Conversion of

Series B

preferred to

common 597,00( — (597,000 — 6,182 — (6,1872) — — — — —
Conversion o

Series C

preferred to

common 48,03¢ — — (48,039 497 — — (497 — — — —
Issuance o

unvested

stock 69,18: — — — — — — — — — — —
Forfeited unvested

stock (9,56¢) — — — — — — — — — — —
Stoclk-basec

compensatic

expenst — — — — — — — — 482 — — 482
Net loss — — — — — — — — — (4,389 — (4,389
Changes in

accumulated

other

comprehensiv

income, net

of taxes — — — — — — — — — — Q) 0]
Dividends 5% on

Series A

preferred

stock — — — — — — — — — (1,750 — (2,750
Dividends or

Series B

preferred

stock ($0.10

per share — — — — — — — — — (6C) — (60)
Dividends or

Series C

preferred

stock ($0.10

per share — — — — — — — — — (40) — (40)
Accretion of Serie

A preferred

stock

discount — — — — — 177 — — — a7 — —
Cash dividends

declared

($0.49 per

share; — — — — — — — — — (4,706 — (4,70€)
5% stock divident

declared 564,48 — — — 5,02¢ — — — 84¢ (5,872) — —
Balances,

December 31

2010 11,846,10 35,00( — 317,04 112,23t 34,48¢ — 3,28t 19,43¢ 17,82: 2,15 189,41!
Issuance of

unvested

stock 2,80( — — — — — — — — — — —
Forfeited unveste

stock (24,43Y) — — — — — — — — — — —
Stock-based

compensatic

expense — — — — — — — — 40z — — 402
Net loss — — — — — — — — — (107,30) — (107,30)
Changes it

accumulated

other




comprehensivi
income, net
of taxes
Dividends 5% on
Series A
preferred
stock
Dividends or
Series C
preferred
stock ($0.02
per share
Accretion of Serie
A preferred
stock
discount
Cash dividends
declared
($0.02 per
share)

— 177

(1,750)

@

(177)

(237)

2,012 2,012

— (@750

- U]

— (237)

Balances,
December 31

2011 11,824,47

Issuance o
unvested
stock

Forfeited unveste
stock

Stoclk-basec
compensatic
expenst

Net loss

Changes it
accumulated
other
comprehensiv
income, net
of taxes

Dividends 5% or
Series A
preferred
stock

Accretion of Serie
A preferred
stock
discount

35,00(

317,04:

112,23t 34,66

3,28t

19,84:

44z

(91,65¢)

(32,93)

(1,750

179

4,16¢ 82,52¢

— 44z
— (3293

(1,099 (1,099

— (@750

Balances,
December 31

2012 12,002,42

35,00(

317,04:

$ 112,23t $ 34,84(

$

See accompanying notes.
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3,28¢

$

20,28

$(126,51) $

3,068 $ 47,19(




PORTER BANCORP, INC.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
Years Ended December 31,
(in thousands)

See accompanying notes .
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2012 2011 2010
Cash flows from operating activities
Net loss $ (32,93) $ (107,30) $ (4,389
Adjustments to reconcile net loss to net cash foperating activitie!
Depreciation and amortizatic 2,28¢ 2,38¢ 2,92¢
Provision for loan losse 40,25( 62,60( 30,10(
Net amortization (accretion) on securit 3,33t 1,552 9)
Goodwill impairment charg — 23,79« —
Stocl-based compensation expel 442 43€ 467
Deferred income taxes (bene! — 12,95¢ (7,899
Net gain on sales of loans originated for ¢ (33¢) (719 (5549)
Loans originated for sa (16,365 (24,88) (28,165
Proceeds from sales of loans originated for 16,821 24,64¢ 28,467
Net loss on sales of other real estate ow 1,672 8,88¢ 56&
Net write-down of other real estate own 7,15¢ 34,87+ 14,06:
Net realized gain on sales of investment secul (3,236 (1,067 (4,555
Earnings on bank owned life insurar (292 (307) (29€)
Net change in accrued interest receivable and eibsst: 16,15( (7,062) 3,661
Net change in accrued interest payable and othieitities 791 (575 (48%)
Net cash from operating activiti 35,74¢ 30,23t 33,90¢
Cash flows from investing activities
Purchases of availal-for-sale securitie (162,84() (123,609 (55,750
Sales of availab-for-sale securitie 93,19¢ 50,31¢ 96,80¢
Maturities and prepayments of availe-for-sale securitie 48,80( 23,37¢ 25,917
Proceeds from sale of other real estate ov 21,94( 14,14: 15,28¢
Improvements to other real estate ow Q) (1,650 (1,949
Loan originations and payments, | 167,27. 92,19( 6,16(
Purchases of premises and equipment (511 (339 (369)
Net cash from investing activitit 167,85¢ 54,43 86,10«
Cash flows from financing activities
Net change in deposi (258,709 (143,909 (62,429
Net change in repurchase agreem 89¢ (9,87¢) 99
Repayment of Federal Home Loan Bank adva (1,519 (32,906 (307,959
Advances from Federal Home Loan Be — 25,00( 240,00(
Repayment of subordinated capital n (675) (900) (450
Issuance of preferred stock and warrants — — 11,06¢
Issuance of common stock and warrants, — — 19,47¢
Cash dividends paid on preferred st — (1,319 (1,849
Cash dividends paid on common st — (237 (4,706
Net cash from financing activitie (259,999 (164,14 (106,750
Net change in cash and cash equival (56,390 (79,477 13,26:
Beginning cash and cash equivale 105,96: 185,43! 172,17:
Ending cash and cash equivale $ 49,57 $ 105,96: $ 185,43
Supplemental cash flow informatic
Interest paic $ 15,40: $ 22,216 $ 29,63:
Income taxes paid (refunde (22,726 2,00( 4,85(
Supplemental nc-cash disclosure
Transfer from loans to other real est $ 33,52¢ $ 41917 $ 90,781
Financed sales of other real estate ow 541 11,84¢ 9,73¢
5% Stock divident — — 5,87




PORTER BANCORP, INC. AND SUBSIDIARY
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
December 31, 2012, 2011 and 2010

NOTE 1 — SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Nature of Operations and Principles of Consolidatio — The consolidated financial statements include Pdtncorp, Inc. (Company
PBI) and its subsidiary, PBI Bank (Bank). The Campowns a 100% interest in the Bank.

The Company provides financial services througtoffices in Central Kentucky and Louisville. Itsipary deposit products are check
savings, and term certificate accounts, and itsngry lending products are residential mortgage, mengsial, and real estate loc
Substantially all loans are collateralized by sfiediems of collateral including business assetsnmercial real estate, and residential
estate. Commercial loans are expected to be répait cash flow from operations of businesses. Tlageeno significant concentrations
loans to any one industry or customer. Howevertorusrs’ ability to repay their loans is dependent on tred estate and general econo
conditions in the area. Other financial instrumemlksch potentially represent concentrations of itrédk include deposit accounts in ot
financial institutions and federal funds sold. T@mpany also provides trust services.

Use of Estimates— To prepare financial statements in conformity wittS. generally accepted accounting principles, mpament make
estimates and assumptions based on available iafamm These estimates and assumptions affect nimumts reported in the financ
statements and the disclosures provided, and fugsrdts could differ. The allowance for loan lassgoodwill and other intangible assets,
value of other real estate owned, stock compensatieferred tax assets, and fair values of findne&ruments are particularly subjec
change.

Cash Flows— Cash and cash equivalents include cash, deposfithier financial institutions under 90 days, &ukral funds sold. Net ce
flows are reported for customer and loan depositgactions, interestearing deposits in other financial institutionsdafederal func
purchased and repurchase agreements.

Securities — Debt securities are classified as availableside when they might be sold before maturity. Bgsiecurities with readi
determined fair values are classified as availédnesale. Securities available for sale are carriefhiatvalue, with unrealized holding ga
and losses reported in other comprehensive income.

Interest income includes amortization of purchasenium or discount. Premiums and discounts on #esiare amortized on the lewgkld
method anticipating prepayments on mortgage baskedrities. Gains and losses on sales are recorddw trade date and determined u
the specific identification method.

Management evaluates securities for other-than-oeanp impairment (“OTTI")on at least a quarterly basis, and more frequemtigr
economic or market conditions warrant such an ex@n. For securities in an unrealized loss pmsjtmanagement considers the exten
duration of the unrealized loss, and the financ@addition and neaterm prospects of the issuer. Management alsasssevhether it inten
to sell, or it is more likely than not that it whle required to sell, a security in an unrealizes$ Iposition before recovery of its amortized
basis. If either of the criteria regarding intemtrequirement to sell is met, the entire differetetween amortized cost and fair valu
recognized as impairment through earnings. Fot sleturities that do not meet the aforementiongdria, the amount of impairment is s
into two components as follows: 1) OTTI relatecttedit loss, which must be recognized in the incatagement and 2) other-thtemporar
impairment (OTTI) related to other factors, whishrécognized in other comprehensive income. Thditcloss is defined as the differe
between the present value of the cash flows exgdotde collected and the amortized cost basis.eHaity securities, the entire amoun
impairment is recognized through earnings.

Loans Held for Sale— Mortgage loans originated and intended for salthénsecondary market are carried at the lower gfegate cost
fair value, as determined by outstanding commitsémm investors. Net unrealized losses, if amg,racorded as a valuation allowance
charged to earnings.

Mortgage loans held for sale are generally soldh \wérvicing rights released. If sold with serviciretained, the carrying value of mortg
loans sold is reduced by the amount allocated @cs#hvicing right. Gains and losses on sales atgage loans are based on the differ
between the selling price and the carrying valuthefrelated loan sold.

Mortgage banking derivatives used in the ordinamyrse of business consist of mandatory forwardssa@mtracts and rate lock Ic
commitments. Forward contracts represent futurensitments to deliver loans at a specified price datk and are used to manage int
rate risk on loan commitments and mortgage loaltsfoe sale. Rate lock commitments represent comeiits to fund loans at a specific r
These derivatives involve underlying items, sucimgerest rates, and are designed to transfer $iskstantially all of these instruments ex
within 60 days from the date of issuance. Noticaalounts are amounts on which calculations and patgree based, but which do
represent credit exposure, as credit exposurmitelil to the amounts required to be received at.pai
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We adopted FASB ASC topic 81erivative and Hedging“during the first quarter of 2009. Our commitmetatsleliver loans and our r:
lock loan commitments were insignificant at yead.en

Loans — Loans that management has the intent and abilityotd for the foreseeable future or until matuity payoff are reported at t
principal balance outstanding, net of deferred Ifes and costs, and an allowance for loan lo$stsest income is accrued on the un
principal balance. Loan origination fees, net atae direct origination costs, are deferred artbgmized in interest income using the level-
yield method without anticipating prepayments. Téeorded investment in loans includes the outétangrincipal balance and unamorti:
deferred origination costs and fees.

Interest income on mortgage and commercial loandissontinued at the time the loan is 90 days dekmt unless the loan is w
collateralized and in process of collection. Consumand credit card loans are typically chargednoffater than 90 days past due. Past
status is based on the contractual terms of the loaall cases, loans are placed on aoorual or charged off at an earlier date if caitetof
principal or interest is considered doubtful.

All interest accrued but not received for loanscpth on noreccrual is reversed against interest income. Isteereived on such loans
accounted for on the cash-basis or gesbvery method, until qualifying for return to aual. Loans are returned to accrual status whete
principal and interest amounts contractually deetapught current and future payments are reaspaasured.

Allowance for Loan Losses— The allowance for loan losses is a valuation alloweafor probable incurred credit losses. Loandssar
charged against the allowance when managementéeelibe uncollectibility of a loan balance is comigd. Subsequent recoveries, if :
are credited to the allowance. We estimate thewalhwe balance required using past loan loss exmeriehe nature and volume of
portfolio, information about specific borrower sitions and estimated collateral values, economiditions, and other factors. Allocation:
the allowance may be made for specific loans, lreientire allowance is available for any loan thmgur judgment, should be charged off.

The allowance consists of specific and general aorapts. The specific component relates to loaas dine individually classified

impaired. A loan is impaired when, based on curieformation and events, it is probable that them@any will be unable to collect
amounts due according to the contractual termsheflbpan agreement. Loans for which the terms Hasen modified resulting in
concession, and for which the borrower is experendinancial difficulties, are considered troublddbt restructurings and classifiec
impaired.

Factors considered in determining impairment inelpdyment status, collateral value, and the prdéibabif collecting scheduled princig
and interest payments when due. Loans that exmerigrsignificant payment delays and payment shisttgenerally are not classified
impaired. We determine the significance of paynueiays and payment shortfalls on casezhyge basis, taking into consideration all o
circumstances surrounding the loan and the borraweluding the length of the delay, the reasomgHe delay, the borrowex’prior paymer
record, and the amount of the shortfall in relatiothe principal and interest owed.

If a loan is impaired, a portion of the allowanseallocated so that the loan is reported, neheaptesent value of estimated future cash 1
using the loars existing rate or at the fair value of collatefalepayment is expected solely from the collatedadrge groups of small
balance homogeneous loans, such as consumer addntesd real estate loans, are collectively eviddaor impairment, and according
they are not separately identified for impairmeistibsures. Troubled debt restructurings are seplgridentified for impairment disclosu
and are measured at the present value of estirhatae cash flows using the loanéffective rate at inception. If a troubled dedsttructurin
is considered to be a collateral dependent loanldén is reported, net, at the fair value of tbkateral. For troubled debt restructurings
subsequently default, we determine the amounts#rie in accordance with the accounting policytiierallowance for loan losses.

The general component covers riotpaired loans and is based on historical loss iempee adjusted for current factors. The histdrioss
experience is determined by portfolio segment anthased on our actual loss history experienced thesmost recent three years v
weighting towards the most recent periods. Thisadoss experience is supplemented with othenewic factors based on the risks pre
for each portfolio segment. These economic fadtariside consideration of the following: levelsafd trends in delinquencies and impe
loans; levels of and trends in chamfés and recoveries; trends in volume and termfans; effects of any changes in risk selection
underwriting standards; other changes in lendidizies, procedures, and practices; experienceityaldind depth of lending management
other relevant staff; national and local economénds and conditions; industry conditions; anda#ef changes in credit concentrations
yearend 2010, we increased our emphasis on histoosaléxperience and the qualitative factors discluabeve that we believe are esse
to assessing the general component of the res@veebelieve this added emphasis serves to ensuredgimates affecting the gene
component of the reserve most effectively paralelnging risks in the market in a timely fashion.
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A portfolio segment is defined as the level at vahém entity develops and documents a systematicadelogy to determine its allowance
loan losses. We identified the following portfoiegments: commercial, commercial real estatalewsal real estate, consumer, agricultt
and other.

e Commercial loans are dependent on the strengtthefirndustries of the related borrowers and the esgof their business
Commercial loans are advances for equipment pueshas to provide working capital, or to meet otfieancing needs of busine
enterprises. These loans may be secured by acomagisable, inventory, equipment or other busiressets. Financial informati
is obtained from the borrowers to evaluate theilitalto repay the loans

e Commercial real estate loans are affected by tbal loommercial real estate market and the locah@ty. Commercial real est
loans include loans on properties occupied by tberowers and on properties for commercial purposesnstruction ar
development loans are a component of this segmémse loans are generally secured by land undezla@went or homes a
commercial buildings under construction. Appraisais obtained to support the loan amount. Finareiatmation is obtained fro
the borrowers and/or the individual project to eraté cash flows sufficiency to service the d

e Residential real estate loans are affected bydbal Iresidential real estate market, local econanyg, for variable rate mortgag
movement in indices tied to these loans. For owaceupied residential loans, the borroweepayment ability is evaluated throuc
review of credit scores and debt to income ratlem. nonewner occupied residential loans, such as rentll estate, financi
information is obtained from the borrowers andfoe individual project to evaluate cash flows sudiicy to service the de
Appraisals are obtained to support the loan am«

e Consumer loans are dependent on local economigsu@er loans are generally secured by consumeisabsé may be unsecur
We evaluate the borrow¢ repayment ability through a review of credit scarad an evaluation of debt to income rat

e Agriculture loans are dependent on the industieb tb these loans and are generally secured bgtbek, crops, and/or equipm:e
but may be unsecured. We evaluate the borrowepglyment ability through a review of credit scoaesl an evaluation of debt
income ratios

e Other loans include loans to municipalities, waecured by stock, and overdrafts. For municipahs, we evaluate the borrowers’
revenue streams as well as ability to repay formega funds. For loans secured by stock, we ewaltet market value of the st
securing the loan in relation to the loan amounte@rafts are funded based on pstablished criteria related to the deposit acc
relationship.

We analyze all relevant risk characteristics farheportfolio segment and have determined that ld@esch segment possess similar ge
risk characteristics that are analyzed in connactigth our loan underwriting processes and procesluin determining the alloca
allowance, we utilize weighted average loss ratestfe past three years most heavily weightingctireent year. Commercial real estate I«
are our largest segment and had the highest |éwplalitative adjustments due to trends in our ratwKor underlying collateral values :
risks related to tenant rents and for economicofacsuch as decreased sales demand, elevatedanwdeiels, and declining collate
values. Residential real estate loan considemiiociude macro factors such as unemployment ratag]s in vacancy rates, and home v
trends. The commercial portfolio qualitative adijosnts are related to industry concentrations amm@phical market. Our agricultu
consumer, and other portfolios are less significgarterms of size and risk is assessed based osnthadler dollar size of these loans anc
more geographical areas where the collateral mstéat

Transfers of Financial Assets— Transfers of financial assets are accounted forsales, when control over the assets has
relinquished. Control over transferred asset®&nted to be surrendered when the assets havedudeied from the Company, the transfi
obtains the right (free of conditions that constridifrom taking advantage of that right) to pledgreexchange the transferred assets, ar
Company does not maintain effective control overttansferred assets through an agreement to regme¢chem before their maturity.

Other Real Estate Owned- Assets acquired through or instead of loan forecmsre initially recorded at fair value less estied costs |
sell when acquired, establishing a new cost basisse assets are subsequently accounted for Eivibe of cost or fair value, less estime
costs to sell. If fair value declines subsequenfoteclosure, a valuation allowance is recordedugh expense. Costs after acquisitior
expensed.

Premises and Equipment- Land is carried at cost. Premises and equipmenstated at cost less accumulated depreciationdidgs an
related components are depreciated using the Istdaig method with useful lives ranging from 5 to $8ars. Furniture, fixtures a
equipment are depreciated using the straight-lirecoelerated method with useful lives ranging fidto 7 years.

Federal Home Loan Bank (FHLB) Stock— The Bank is a member of the FHLB system. Membegsr@quired to own a certain amoun
stock based on the level of borrowings and othetofa, andmay invest in additional amounts. FHLB stock isriea at cost, classified a:
restricted security, and periodically evaluatedifopairment. Because this stock is viewed as lammtinvestment, impairment is basec
ultimate recovery of par value. Both cash and sttigcidends are reported as incor
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Goodwill and Intangible Assets— Goodwill resulting from business combinations priorJanuary 1, 2009, represents the excess
purchase price over the fair value of the net asskbusinesses acquired. Goodwill resulting flamsiness combinations after Januai
2009, is generally determined as the excess diihgalue of the consideration transferred, phes fair value of any nonentrolling interest
in the acquiree, over the fair value of the neetsacquired and liabilities assumed as of theisitiqun date. Goodwill and intangible as:
acquired in a purchase business combination aretrdeted to have an indefinite useful life are nwitoatized, but tested for impairmen
least annually. Intangible assets with definitefulskves are amortized over their estimated usdiftds to their estimated residual valt
Intangible assets on our balance sheet, othergbadwill, have defined useful lives. The Companyg kelected November 30th as the da
perform the annual impairment test on goodwill selevents or changes in circumstances indicatenttémpairment may have occur
between annual assessments. We assessed our fdodimpairment during the second quarter of 20dcause our stock, which tra
publicly on the NASDAQ, experienced a significanbgl in value throughout the months of May and J2O&1l. Based on this analysis,
determined that our Goodwill was impaired and rdedran impairment charge of $23.8 million in theder ended June 30, 2011. "
impairment charge had no impact on the Compadiguidity, cash flows, or regulatory capital i (See Note 7 for more spec
disclosure.)

Other intangible assets consist of core deposittarsd account intangible assets arising from wihizElek and branch acquisitions. They
initially measured at fair value and then are aimed on an accelerated or straifjhe basis over their estimated useful lives, whiahge
from 7 to 10 years.

Bank Owned Life Insurance— The Bank has purchased life insurance policiesestain key executivesCompany owned life insurance
recorded at the amount that can be realized uhdansurance contract at the balance sheet daieh vghthe cash surrender value adjuste
other charges or other amounts due that are prellisettiement.

Long-Term Assets— Premises and equipment, other intangible asartspther londgerm assets are reviewed for impairment when e
indicate their carrying amount may not be recovierédom future undiscounted cash flows. If impajréte assets are recorded at fair value.

Repurchase Agreements- Substantially all repurchase agreement liabiliteyresent amounts advanced by various customessrifses arn
pledged to cover these liabilities, which are rmtered by federal deposit insurance.

Benefit Plans— Employee 401(k) and profit sharing plan expens¢hés amount of matching contributions. Deferred cengation an
supplemental retirement plan expense allocatebehefits over years of service.

Stock-Based Compensatior- Compensation cost is recognized for stock option unvested stock awards issued to employees, o
the fair value of these awards at the date of grarBlack-Scholes model is utilized to estimate the fair eatd stock options, while tl
market price of the Corporatiantommon stock at the date of grant is used faricessd stock awards. Compensation cost is receghae
the required service period, generally definedhasvtesting period. For awards with graded vestimgnpensation cost is recognized ¢
straight-line basis over the requisite serviceqaefor the entire award.

Income Taxes— Income tax expense is the total of the current y@@wme tax due or refundable and the change iardef tax assets a
liabilities. Deferred tax assets and liabilitieg #ine expected future tax amounts for the tempatdfgrences between carrying amounts
tax bases of assets and liabilities, computed usiagted tax rates. A valuation allowance, if ndededuces deferred tax assets to the an
expected to be realized.

A tax position is recognized as a benefit onlyt isi"more likely than not" that the tax positiowd be sustained in a tax examination, w
tax examination being presumed to occur. The ameaognized is the largest amount of tax benbkéit ts greater than 50% likely of be
realized on examination. For tax positions noetimg the "more likely than not" test, no tax beénisfrecorded. The Company recogn
interest and/or penalties related to income taxamatn income tax expense.

Loan Commitments and Related Financial Instruments— Financial instruments include dflance sheet credit instruments, suc
commitments to make loans and commercial lettersredlit, issued to meet custonfarancing needs. The face amount for these i
represents the exposure to loss, before considetistpmer collateral or ability to repay. Such fio@l instruments are recorded when -
are funded.

Comprehensive Income— Comprehensive income consists of net income andr atomprehensive income. Other comprehensive in
includes unrealized gains and losses on secuatiagable for sale, which are also recognized separate component of equity.
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Equity — Stock dividends in excess of 20% are reported &ysferring the par value of the stock issued fretained earnings to comrmr
stock. Stock dividends for 20% or less are repobigdtransferring the fair value, as of the aixidend date, of the stock issued from reta
earnings to common stock and additional paid-iritahg-ractional share amounts are paid in cash witeduction in retained earnings.

Preferred Stock —Series A Preferred stock was issued in 2008 and is outstgndinder the United States Department of the Trgasu
Capital Purchase Program. Issued in conjunctidh tiie Preferred Stock were common stock warraBee Note 16 for a discussion of
terms and conditions of that transaction. The @eds received in the offering were allocated oroargta basis to the Preferred Stock an
Warrants based on relative fair values. In estingathe fair value of the Warrants, the Companyizatil the BlackScholes model whic
includes assumptions regarding the Compsutgmmon stock prices, stock price volatility, diemd yield, the risk free interest rate anc
estimated life of the Warrant. The fair value oé tAreferred Stock was determined using a discourdasl flow methodology. The va
assigned to the Preferred Stock will be amortizpdtaithe $35.0 million liquidation value of sucheferred stock, with the cost of si
amortization being reported as additional prefestedk dividends. Dividends are accrued quart@lyarterly cash payment of dividends
deferred effective with the fourth quarter of 20(3ee Note 16 for more specific disclosure.)

Series B and C Preferred stock were issued in 200Series C Preferred stock remains outstandbeg. Note 16 for a discussion of
terms and conditions of this transaction.

Earnings Per Common Share- Basic earnings per common share are net incomé&hbieato common shareholders divided by the weit
average number of common shares outstanding dthgeriod. Diluted earnings per common share deline dilutive effect of additior
potential common shares issuable under stock optom warrants. Earnings and dividends per shareestated for all stock splits ¢
dividends through the date of issue of the findrat@ements.

Earnings (Loss) Allocated to Participating Securites —Our issued and outstanding Series C Preferred $danktomatically convertible in
common stock at such time as the holder togethttr itgi affiliates beneficially own less than 9.9%tle then outstanding common share
the company. We also have issued and outstandiwgsted common shares to employees and directoosigih our stock incenti
plan. Earnings (loss) are allocated to theseqpatiing securities based on their percentagetaf issued and outstanding shares.

Loss Contingencies— Loss contingencies, including claims and legal amti arising in the ordinary course of business,raoerded ¢
liabilities when the likelihood of loss is probatdad an amount or range of loss can be reasonabiyaged. Management does not bel
there now are such matters that will have a mateffiact on the financial statements.

Dividend Restriction — Banking regulations require maintaining certainitdgevels and may limit the dividends paid by tBank to th
Company or by the Company to shareholders. (See Nofor more specific disclosure.)

Fair Value of Financial Instruments — Fair values of financial instruments are estimatsthg relevant market information and o
assumptions, as more fully disclosed in Note 19t Falue estimates involve uncertainties and matter significant judgment regardi
interest rates, credit risk, prepayments, and ofhetors, especially in the absence of broad market particular items. Changes
assumptions or in market conditions could signifiaaffect the estimates.

Reclassifications- Some items in the prior year financial statemerdseweclassified to conform to the current pregemtaReclassificatior
had no effect on prior year net loss or sharehslasyuity.

NOTE 2 — GOING CONCERN CONSIDERATIONS AND FUTURE PLANS

The consolidated financial statements have beepaped on a going concern basis, which contempliesealization of assets and
satisfaction of liabilities in the normal courselnfsiness for the foreseeable future. Howevergthats and circumstances described ir
Note create an uncertainty about the Com’s ability to continue as a going concern.

For the year ended December 31, 2012, we repoekhbss to common shareholders of $33.4 milliohisToss was attributable primarily
$40.3 million of provision for loan losses expemse to continued decline in credit trends in ourtfpbio that resulted in net chargefs of
$36.1 million, OREO expense of $10.5 million reswtfrom fair value writedowns driven by new appraisals and reduced markgtiices
net loss on sales, and ongoing operating expensgealg$ had lower net interest margin due to lowerage loans outstanding, loans re-
pricing at lower rates, and the level of nperforming loans in our portfolio. Net loss to commshareholders of $33.4 million, for the y
ended December 31, 2012, compares with net lossnmnon shareholders of $105.2 million for year enBecember 31, 2011.
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During the year ended December 31, 2011, we redaadeet loss to common shareholders of $105.2anilliThis loss was attributable t
$23.8 million goodwill impairment charge, the edigtiment of a $31.7 million valuation allowance aur deferred tax assets, OREO exp
of $47.5 million related to valuation adjustmerds éur change in strategy related to certain ptigeerfair value writedowns related to ne
appraisals received for properties in the portfaizring 2011, net loss on the sale of OREO propgrtand increase in carrying ct
associated with carrying these higher levels ottassWe also recorded a provision for loan lossemerse of $62.6 million due to i
continued decline in credit trends within our polits.

In June 2011, the Bank entered into a Consent Qvilbrthe FDIC and KDFI in which the Bank agreeohang other things, tomprove ass:
quality, reduce loan concentrations, and maintaimramum Tier 1 leverage ratio of 9% and a minimtatal risk based capital ratio of 12
The Consent Order was included in our Current Repoi8-K filed on June 30, 201lh October 2012, the Bank entered into a new Cd
Order with the FDIC and KDFI again agreeing to neiima minimum Tier 1 leverage ratio of 9% and aimum total risk based capital re
of 12%. The Bank also agreed that if it should behle to reach the required capital levels, ardirécted in writing by the FDIC, then 1
Bank would within 30 days develop, adopt and immaima written plan to sell or merge itself into #res federally insured financ
institution or otherwise immediately obtain a sti#nt capital investment into the Bank to fully rhtes capital requirements.

We expect to continue to work with our regulataward capital ratio compliance as outlined in théten capital plan submitted by the B
in December 2012. The new Consent Order also regjtire Bank to continue to adhere to the planseémehted in response to the June :
Consent Order, and includes the substantive pamgsof the June 2011 Consent Ordére new Consent Order was included in our Cu
Report on 8-K filed on September 19, 2012. As oféaber 31, 2012, the capital ratios required byGbesent Order were not met.

In order to meet these capital requirements, ther@of Directors and management are continuingveduate strategies to achieve
following objectives:

e Increasing capital through a possible public offgror private placement of common stock to new exidting shareholders. \
have engaged Sandler O'Neill & Partners, LP toaacour financial advisor and to assist our Boarthis evaluation antb assist i
evaluating our options for the redemption of ouri€e A preferred stock issued to the US Treasurg@08 under the Capi
Purchase Prograr

e Continuing to operate the Company and Bank in & safd sound manner. This strategy will require¢auseduce our lendir
concentrations, remediate r-performing loans, and reduce other noninterestresgéhrough the disposition of ORE

e Continuing with succession planning and adding weses to the management team. John T. Taylor wased President and Cl
for PBI Bank and appointed to the board of direciorJuly 2012. Additionally, John R. Davis wapainted Chief Credit Officer
PBI Bank in August 2012, with responsibility fortaslishing and executing the credit quality pokiciand overseeing cre
administration for the organizatio

e Evaluating our internal processes and proceddissibution of labor, and worew to ensure we have adequately and appropr
deployed resources in an efficient manner in theeot environment. To this end, we believe the aspmity exists for th
centralization of key processes which will leadnbproved execution and cost savin

e Executing on our commitment to improve credit giyadind reduce loan concentrations and balance skke

0 We have reduced the size of our loan portfolio i§igemtly from $1.3 billion at December 31, 2010 $d4.1 billion a
December 31, 2011, and $899.1 million at Decemier 2912. We have significantly improved our staffing in
commercial lending area which is now led by JohrDRvis, who joined the management team in Augug22énd no\
serves as Chief Credit Office

0 Our Consent Order calls for us to reduceammstruction and development loans to not more #&# of total riskbase!
capital. We were not in compliance at December2812 with construction and development loans regiisg 82% of tot:
risk-based capital. These loans totaled $70.3anjllor 82% of total rislbased capital, at December 31, 2012 and $.
million, or 85% of total ris-based capital, at December 31, 2C
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0 Our Consent Order also requires us to redumeowner occupied commercial real estate loans, cectgin an
development loans, and multi-family residentiall restate loans as a group, to not more than 250%btaf riskbase:
capital. While we have made significant improvetseawver the last year, we were not in compliandd wiis concentratic
limit at December 31, 2012. These loans totaledL&B million, or 362% of total riskased capital, at December 31, 2
compared with $414.6 million, or 349% of total -based capital, at December 31, 2C

0 We are working to reduce non-owner occupm@aroercial real estate loans, construction and dpweént loans, and multi-
family residential real estate loans by curtailimgw construction and development lending and nemtawmer occupie
commercial real estate lending. We are also réggiprincipal reductions from amortizing creditdgmay-downs from ot
customers who sell properties built for resale. Wé&e reduced the construction loan portfolio fré@®9.5 million a
December 31, 2010 to $70.3 million at December281,2. Our norewner occupied commercial real estate loans ded
from $293.3 million at December 31, 2010 to $18%iBion at December 31, 201

e Executing on our commitment to sell other realtestavned and reinvest in quality income producissgts

0 The remediation process for loans secured by rateshas led the Bank to acquire significant wélOREO in 201.
2011, and 2010. The Bank acquired $33.5 milligt,.$ million, and $90.8 million of OREO during 2012011, and 201
respectively

0 We have incurred significant losses in disposin@BEQO. We incurred losses totaling $9.3 million2 84million, and $13.
million in 2012, 2011, and 2010, respectively, freales and fair value writdewns attributable to declining valuations
evidenced by new appraisals and from changes isalas strategie

0 To ensure that we maximize the value we receivenupe sale of OREO, we continue to evaluate sgip®rbunities an
channels. We are targeting multiple sales oppamsnand channels through internal marketing dmel use of broker
auctions, and technology sales platforms. Proc&edsthe sale of OREO totaled $22.5 million durR@l2, $26.0 in 201
and $25.0 million in 201(

0 At December 31, 2011, the OREO portfolio consigsit@5% construction, development, and land ass&tfecember 3.
2012, this concentration had declined to 51%. Thisonsistent with our reduction of constructideyelopment and ott
land loans, which have declined to $70.3 millionDeicember 31, 2012, compared to $101.5 million atdnber 3:
2011. Over the past year, the composition of oREO portfolio has shifted to be more heavily wegghttoward
commercial real estate properties with a cash fipwortunity and 4 family residential properties, which we have fduc
be more liquid than construction, development, Emdl assets. Commercial real estate propertiegsepts 35% of ti
OREO portfolio at December 31, 2012 compared withlat December 31, 2011 41family residential properties repres
12% of the OREO portfolio at December 31, 2012 carag with 7% at December 31, 20

e Evaluating other strategic alternatives, such asttie of assets or branch
Bank regulatory agencies can exercise discretiornwéin institution does not meet the terms of a eunsrder. Based on individi
circumstances, the agencies may issue mandata@gtigies, impose monetary penalties, initiate charigenanagement, or take more ser

adverse actions.

These financial statements do not include any &uists that may result should the Company be urtaldentinue as a going concern.
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NOTE 3 — SECURITIES

The fair value of available for sale securities #mel related gross unrealized gains and lossegmem in accumulated other compreher
income (loss) were as follows:

Gross Gross
Amortized Unrealized Unrealized
Cost Gains Losses Fair Value

(in thousands)
December 31, 201,

U.S. Government and federal agel $ 5,60 $ 53C $ — 3 6,137
Agency mortgag-backed: residentit 94,29¢ 1,141 (257) 95,18:
State and municip: 52,48¢ 2,33t (87) 54,73:
Corporate bond 18,85 1,15C (37 19,96¢
Other debt securities 572 46 — 61€

Total debt securitie 171,80¢ 5,20z (381) 176,63(
Equity 1,35¢ 487 — 1,84¢

Total $ 173,16¢ $ 568¢ $ (38)) $ 178,47t

December 31, 2011

U.S. Government and federal agel $ 10,49¢ $ 1,14¢  $ — 3 11,64
Agency mortgag-backed: residentit 97,28¢ 2,211 (22 99,47¢
State and municip: 35,45¢ 2,61( 4) 38,06:
Corporate bond 7,25¢ 31t (242) 7,332
Other debt securities 572 34 — 60€

Total debt securitie 151,06 6,31¢ (26¢) 157,11¢
Equity 1,35¢ 35€ — 1,71F

Total $ 152,42t $ 6,67 $ (268 $ 158,83:

Sales and calls of available for sale securitieevas follows:

2012 2011 2010
(in thousands)
Proceed: $ 93,19¢ $ 50,31¢ $ 96,80¢
Gross gain: 3,54: 1,10¢ 6,07¢
Gross losse 307 — 927

The tax provision related to these net gains assd®realized on sales were $1.1 million, $388,800,$1.8 million, respectively.

The amortized cost and fair value of our debt sgéearare shown by contractual maturigxpected maturities may differ from act
maturities if borrowers have the right to call eepay obligations with or without call or prepaymeenalties. Securities not due at a si
maturity date, mortgage-backed, are shown sepgratel

December 31, 201.

Amortized Fair
Cost Value
(in thousands)

Maturity
Available-for-sale

Within one yeal $ 12,65¢ $ 12,71

One to five year 14,58: 16,10:

Five to ten year 41,11¢ 43,11

Beyond ten yeat 9,15¢ 9,521
Agency mortgage-backed: residential 94,29¢ 95,18:

Total $ 171,80¢ $ 176,63(

Securities pledged at year-end 2012 and 2011 hagirgavalues of approximately $76.4 million and7$b million, respectively, and were
pledged to secure public deposits and repurchasemgnts.

At yearend 2012 and 2011, there were no holdings of seemef any one issuer, other than the U.S. Goventrand its agencies, in
amount greater than 10% of stockholders’ equity.
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Securities with unrealized losses at yead 2012 and 2011, aggregated by investment categuat length of time that individual securi
have been in a continuous unrealized loss posigianas follows:

Less than 12 Months 12 Months or More Total
Fair Unrealized Fair Unrealized Fair Unrealized
Description of Securities Value Loss Value Loss Value Loss
(in thousands)
2012
Agency mortgag-backed: residentic ~ § 23,37F $ (257 % —  $ — $ 23,37F $ (257)
State and municip: 7,961 (87 — — 7,961 (87)
Corporate bond 3,77 (37 — — 3,771 (37)
Equity securities 2 — — — 2 —
Total temporarily impaired $ 3511¢ $ (380)) $ — $ — 8 3511¢ $ (387)
2011
Agency mortgag-backed: residentic  $ 2,15¢ % (22) % — $ — % 2,15¢ % (22
State and municip: 50¢ 4) — — 50¢ 4
Corporate bonds 2,80¢ (242) — — 2,80¢ (242)
Total temporarily impaired $ 547: $ (268) $ — $ — 8 547 $ (26€)

The Company evaluates securities for other-tieamporary impairment at least on a quarterly basis, more frequently when economir
market concerns warrant such evaluation. Consideré given to the length of time and the extentvhich the fair value has been less
cost, the financial condition and nearm prospects of the issuer, underlying creditlityuaf the issuer, and the intent and ability bE
Company to retain its investment in the issueafgeriod of time sufficient to allow for any anpeated recovery in fair value. In analyzinc
issuers financial condition, the Company may consider tivbethe securities are issued by the federal gawent or its agencies, whet
downgrades by bond rating agencies have occuinedsdctor or industry trends and cycles affectirggissuer, and the results of review
the issuer’s financial condition. In December 20fE recorded an other-thaemporary impairment charge totaling $41,000 foui
securities held in our portfolio with an adjustessichasis of $206,000. The market prices of theksttiad been below our adjusted basi
more than twelve months and after consideratiothefcompanies financial conditions and the likedthdahe market value would recove
our cost basis in a reasonable period of timejrthestment was written down to fair value. As ofcBmber 31, 2012, management doe:
believe any securities in our portfolio with unieatl losses should be classified as other thandeamfy impaired at this time. Managem
currently intends to hold all securities with udieed losses until recovery, which for fixed incosexurities may be at maturity.

NOTE 4 — LOANS

Loans at year-end by class were as follows:

2012 2011
(in thousands)

Commercia $ 52567 $ 71,21¢
Commercial Real Estat

Constructior 70,28¢ 101,47:

Farmlanc 80,82t 90,95¢

Other 322,68’ 423,84
Residential Real Estat

Multi -family 50,98¢ 60,41(

1-4 Family 278,27 337,35(
Consume 20,38: 26,01
Agriculture 22,31, 23,77(
Other 77C 992

Subtotal 899,09: 1,136,02.
Less: Allowance for loan losses (56,68() (52,579

Loans, net $ 842,41. $ 1,083,44
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Activity in the allowance for loan losses for theays indicated was as follows:

Beginning balanc
Provision for loan losse
Loans charge-off

Loan recoveries

Ending balance

2012 2010
(in thousands)
$ 5257¢ $ 34,28 $ 26,39
40,25( 62,60( 30,10(
(37,519 (44,64¢) (22,46))
1,36¢ 34 254
$ 56,680 $ 5257¢ $ 34,28t

The following table presents the activity in thibatance for loan losses by portfolio segment feryear ended December 31, 2012:

Residentia
Commercial Real
Commercial Real Estate Estate Consumel Agriculture Other Total
(in thousands)
Beginning balanc $ 4,207 $ 33,02« $ 14217 $ 792 % 32t $ 14 $ 52,57¢
Provision for loan losse 3,85( 23,27* 10,88t 1,07( 1,17( 1 40,25(
Loans charged o (3,789 (22,36¢) (9,079 (1,130 (1,169 - (37,519
Recoveries 12¢ 83t 20t 12t 72 - 1,36¢
Ending balance $ 4,40z $ 34,76¢ $ 16,23t $ 857 $ 402 $ 15 $ 56,68(

The following table presents the activity in thivatance for loan losses by portfolio segment feryear ended December 31, 2011:

Residentia
Commercial Real
Commercial Real Estate Estate Consumel Agriculture Other Total
(in thousands)
Beginning balanc $ 2,147 $ 24,07F $ 7,22¢ % 701 $ 134 % 4 $ 34,28t
Provision for loan losse 6,18¢ 34,04 20,25! 1,07¢ 1,032 1C 62,60(
Loans charged o (4,197 (25,247 (13,294 (1,070 (841 - (44,64¢)
Recoveries 69 14¢€ 35 87 — — 34(
Ending balance $ 4,207 $ 33,02 $ 1421 $ 79z $ 328 % 14 $ 52,57¢

The following table presents the balance in thevadince for loan losses and the recorded investindains by portfolio segment and ba

on the impairment method as of December 31, 2012:

Residentia
Commercial Real
Commercial Real Estate Estate Consumel Agriculture Other Total
(in thousands)
Allowance for loan losses
Ending allowance balance attributable
to loans:
Individually evaluated for impairme $ 263 % 16,04¢ $ 4641 $ 68 $ 5 % 11 $ 21,03¢
Collectively evaluated for impairme 4,13¢ 18,72: 11,59« 78¢ 39¢ 4 35,64¢
Total ending allowance balance $ 4,40z $ 34,76 $ 16,23 $ 857 $ 403 $ 15 $ 56,68(
Loans:
Loans individually evaluated for
impairment $ 5,29¢ $ 12592 $ 56,79¢ $ 21z % 5t § 524 $ 188,80!
Loans collectively evaluated for
impairment 47,27 347,87: 272,46( 20,17: 22,26 24€ 710,28:
Total ending loans balance $ 52560 $ 473,79t $ 329,25¢ $ 20,38: $ 22,317 $ 77C $ 899,09:
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The following table presents the balance in thevadince for loan losses and the recorded investindains by portfolio segment and ba

on the impairment method as of December 31, 2011:

Residentia
Commercial Real
Commercial Real Estate Estate Consumel Agriculture Other Total
(in thousands)
Allowance for loan losses
Ending allowance balance attributable
to loans:
Individually evaluated for impairme $ 554 $ 9,58( $ 2,172 $ — 3 — ¢ 8 $§ 12,31
Collectively evaluated for impairme 3,65: 23,44« 12,04¢ 792 32E 6 40,26¢
Total ending allowance balance $ 4,207 $ 33,02 $ 1421° $ 79z $ 328 % 14 $ 52,57¢
Loans:
Loans individually evaluated for
impairment $ 5,032 $ 116,67¢ $ 27.84¢ $ — $ 631 $ 54C $ 150,72
Loans collectively evaluated for
impairment 66,18« 499,59¢ 369,91 26,01: 23,13¢ 453 985,29t
Total ending loans balance $ 71,21¢ $ 616,27¢ $ 397,75¢ $ 26,01. $ 23,77C $ 99 $1,136,02:

Impaired Loans

Impaired loans include restructured loans and coriade construction, agriculture, and commercialrestate loans on naecrual o
classified as doubtful, whereby collection of thtat amount is improbable, or loss, whereby ak @ortion of the loan has been written of

a specific allowance for loss had been provided.

Average of impaired loans during the y:
Interest income recognized during impairm
Cash basis interest income recogni

2012 2011 2010
(in thousands)
$ 175,82t $ 95,33 $ 69,167
3,97¢ 2,59/ 1,35¢
35¢E 41z 11¢

The following table presents information relateddans individually evaluated for impairment by sdaof loan as of and for the year er

December 31, 2012:

With No Related Allowance Recorded
Commercial
Commercial real estat

Constructior
Farmland
Other
Residential real estat
Multi-family
1-4 Family
Consume
Agriculture
Other

With An Allowance Recorded:
Commercial
Commercial real estat

Constructior
Farmland
Other
Residential real estat
Multi-family
1-4 Family
Consume

Allowance Cash
Unpaid For Loan Average Interest Basis
Principal Recorded Losses Recorded Income Income
Balance Investmeni Allocated Investmenl Recognizet Recognize:
(in thousands)
$ 1,46 $ 1,23¢ $ — $ 1637 $ 5 % 4
1,15¢ 1,10¢ — 1,74f 2 2
4,44¢ 4,44¢ — 4,70¢ 57 57
2,13¢ 1,89z — 3,43¢ 3 3
64 64: — 91C — —
13,53¢ 13,15¢ — 11,29: 56 56
7C 70 — 21¢ 8 5
45 45 — 36€ 2 —
4,10¢ 4,06z 26° 3,96¢ 16¢ 27
26,64¢ 25,45t 1,54 19,51« 34¢ 5
8,551 6,45¢ 734 5,79¢ 43 2
97,69¢ 86,56 13,76¢ 83,08 2,011 18t
14,90¢ 14,90¢ 1,64 11,18: 46¢ —
31,02: 28,09: 2,99¢ 27,40« 787 9
14z 14z 68 29 — —



Agriculture
Other

Total

1C 10 5 6 —
524 524 11 53¢ 17

$ 207,10t $ 188,80t $ 21,03: $ 17582t $ 3,97¢ $




The following table presents information relateddans individually evaluated for impairment by sdaof loan as of and for the year er
December 31, 2011:

Allowance Cash
Unpaid For Loan Average Interest Basis
Principal Recorded Losses Recorded Income Income
Balance Investment Allocated Investment Recognized  Recognized

(in thousands)
With No Related Allowance

Recorded:
Commercial $ 1,86¢ $ 1,82t $ — 3 1,982 $ 26 % 26
Commercial real estat

Constructior 1,121 1,19¢ — 7,58¢ 7 5

Farmland 3,30z 3,21¢ — 2,21¢ 36 36

Other 6,03¢ 5,64( — 12,11« 16¢ 99
Residential real estat

Multi-family — — — — — —

1-4 Family — — — 1,351 34 —
Consume — — — — — —
Agriculture 637 631 — 258 5 5
Other — — — — — —

With An Allowance Recorded:

Commercial 3,207 3,207 554 2,63( 18¢ a0
Commercial real estat

Constructior 23,17 20,17 4,27 6,09( 14z —

Farmland 7,30¢ 6,86: 574 6,487 322 —

Other 85,53¢ 79,85¢ 4,731 36,58: 89¢ 14¢&
Residential real estat

Multi-family 4,79 4,31¢ 55¢ 2,82¢ 15C —

1-4 Family 26,22 23,26: 1,61¢ 15,10¢ 614 3
Consume — — — —
Agriculture — — — — — —
Other 54C 54C 8 10€ — —
Total $ 163,74 $ 150,727 $ 12,31« $ 95,33, $ 259 $ 417

Troubled Debt Restructuring

A troubled debt restructuring (TDR) is where ther@any has agreed to a loan modification in the fofra concession for a borrower wh
experiencing financial difficulty. The majority ¢fie Companys TDRs involve a reduction in interest rate, a deafeof principal for a state
period of time, or an interest only period. All RB are considered impaired and the Company hasasdid reserves for these loans to re
the present value of the concessionary terms gtdatthe customer.
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The following table presents the types of TDR loawdifications by portfolio segment outstanding &®ecember 31, 2012 and 2011:

TDRs TDRs Not
Performing to Performing to Total
Modified Terms Modified Terms TDRs

(in thousands)
December 31, 2012

Commercia
Rate reductiol $ 197 % — $ 1,972
Principal deferra 887 — 887
Interest only paymen — 95¢ 95¢

Commercial Real Estat
Constructior

Rate reductiol 4,83¢ 4,45¢ 9,29:
Farmlanc
Rate reductiol 15C — 15C
Principal deferra 72t 2,43¢ 3,16:
Other
Rate reductiol 36,51¢ 22,63 59,14¢
Principal deferra 1,19t — 1,19t
Interest only paymen 2,46¢ 2,101 4,57:
Residential Real Estat
Multi -family
Rate reductiol 13,08’ — 13,08’
Interest only paymen 652 — 652
1-4 Family
Rate reductiol 14,32 7,871 22,19«
Consume
Rate reductiol 14 — 14
Other
Rate reductiol 524 — 524
Total TDRs $ 77,34¢  $ 40,46 $ 117,80¢
December 31, 2011
Commercia
Rate reductiol $ 1,231 $ — 3 1,231
Principal deferra 89¢ — 89¢

Commercial Real Estat
Constructior

Rate reductiol 11,15¢ 3,761 14,92

Interest only paymen 1,404 1,404
Farmlanc

Rate reductiol 182 — 18z

Principal deferra 74¢€ 5,101 5,84
Other

Rate reductiol 42,94¢ 20,44¢ 63,39:

Interest only paymen 1,28¢ — 1,28¢

Residential Real Estat

Multi -family

Rate reductiol 2,243 1,41z 3,66(

Interest only paymen 65€ — 65€
1-4 Family

Rate reductiol 12,25t 7,17¢ 19,43:

Principal deferra 247 247
Other

Rate reductiol 54C — 54C
Total TDRs $ 74,14¢  $ 39,55 $ 113,69¢

At December 31, 2012 and 2011, 66% and 65%, rasplct of the Company TDRs were performing according to their modi
terms. The Company allocated $15.1 million and.&Ifillion as of December 31, 2012 and 2011, rebpelg, in reserves to custom
whose loan terms have been modified in TDRs. Toe@any has committed to lend additional amountitay $259,000 and $317,000 a:
December 31, 2012 and 2011, respectively, to custeomith outstanding loans that are classified BRS.



77




The following table presents a summary of the tygfeéBEDR loan modifications by portfolio type thataurred during the twelve months en
December 31, 2012 and 2011:

TDRs TDRs Not
Performing to Performing to Total
Modified Terms Modified Terms TDRs

(in thousands
December 31, 2012

Commercia
Rate reductiol $ 1,972 $ — 3 1,972
Interest only paymen — 95¢ 95¢

Commercial Real Estat
Constructior

Rate reductiol — 831 831
Farmlanc
Rate reductiol 15C — 15C
Other
Rate reductiol 16,46¢ 1,08¢ 17,557
Principal deferra 1,19¢ — 1,19¢
Interest only paymen 2,46¢ 2,101 4,57:
Residential Real Estat
Multi -family
Rate reductiol 12,80¢ — 12,80¢
1-4 Family
Rate reductiol 7,514 — 7,514
Consume
Rate reductiol 14 — 14
Total TDRs $ 4258 $ 498t $ 47 56¢
December 31, 201.
Commercia
Rate reductiol $ 1,231 $ — 3 1,231

Commercial Real Estat
Constructior

Rate reductiol 11,15t 3,367 14,52
Interest only paymen 1,40¢ 1,40¢
Farmlanc
Rate reductiol 182 — 182
Principal deferra 74¢€ — 74¢€
Other
Rate reductiol 41,68: 20,44¢ 62,12¢
Residential Real Estat
Multi -family
Rate reductiol 2,247 — 2,247
Interest only paymen 65€ — 65€
1-4 Family
Rate reductiol 7,96¢ 1,651 9,61¢
Principal deferra — 247 247
Other
Rate reductiol 54C — 54C
Total TDRs $ 66,407 $ 27,11 $ 93,52:

As of December 31, 2012 and 2011, 90% and 71%geotisply, of the Companyg’ TDRs that occurred during 2012 and 2011, respedg|
were performing in accordance with their modifiedits. The Company has allocated $4.8 million &8 #illion, respectively, in resen
to customers whose loan terms have been modifiedgl@012 and 2011, respectively. For modificagi@mecurring during the twelve mon
ended December 31, 2012 and 2011, the post-matififichalances approximate the pre-modification feds.

During 2012 and 2011, approximately $12.0 milliomd&33.2 million of TDRs, respectively, defaulted their restructured loan and
default occurred within the 12 month period follogrithe loan modification. These defaults consisfe$6.6 million in commercial real est
loans, $3.2 million in construction loans, $1.2lioil in 14 family residential real estate loans, and $938j8Gcommercial loans. A defauli
considered to have occurred once the TDR is pas®auwlays or more or it has been placed on nonalccru
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Nonperforming Loans

Nonperforming loans include impaired loans and sndlalance homogeneous loans, such as residemidjage and consumer loans,
are collectively evaluated for impairment.

The following table presents the recorded investniemonaccrual and loans past due 90 days aridostibccrual by class of loan as
December 31, 2012 and 2011:

Loans Past
Due 90 Days
And Over Still
Nonaccrual Accruing
2012 2011 2012 2011
(in thousands)
Commercia $ 24371 $ 290: $ 36 $ 10¢
Commercial Real Estat
Constructior 7,80¢ 13,56¢ — —
Farmland 10,03( 9,15: — 26
Other 46,03¢ 35,15¢ — 91¢
Residential Real Estat
Multi-family 1,51¢ 2,921 — —
1-4 Family 26,50! 27,37*F 50 26E
Consume 13t 32C — —
Agriculture 54 631 — 32
Other — — — —
Total $ 94517 $ 92,02( $ 86 $ 1,35(C

Subsequent to December 31, 2012, loans to twofiigni borrowing relationships included in the éslling table of past due loans, wh
were past due 30-59 days totaling $23.5 million kaahs past due 60-89 days totaling $12.7 milliwere placed on noaecrual. These loa
were classified as impaired at December 31, 2012.

The following table presents the aging of the rdedrinvestment in past due loans by class as ofidker 31, 2012 and 2011

Total
30-59 60 — 89 90 Days Past Due
Days Days And Over And
Past Due Past Due Past Due Non-accrual Non-accrual
(in thousands)
December 31, 201.
Commercia $ 1,27¢  $ 90 $ 36 $ 2437 $ 3,84:
Commercial Real Estat
Constructior 10,51( 5,81¢ — 7,80¢ 24,13:
Farmland 922 58 — 10,03( 11,01(
Other 5,13¢ 13,037 — 46,03¢ 64,21
Residential Real Estat
Multi-family 8,762 — — 1,51¢ 10,27¢
1-4 Family 11,14¢ 1,221 50 26,50: 38,91
Consume 31C 75 — 13t 52C
Agriculture 15z 7 — 54 214
Other — — — — —
Total $ 38,21¢ $ 20,30 % 86 $ 94517 $ 153,12¢
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Total

30-59 60-89 90 Days Past Due
Days Days And Over And
Past Due Past Due Past Due Non-accrual  Non-accrual

(in thousands)
December 31, 2011

Commercia $ 2,792 $ 91 $ 10¢ $ 2,90 $ 5,89¢
Commercial Real Estat
Constructior 20 — — 13,56¢ 13,58¢
Farmland 1,35¢ 30¢& 26 9,15 10,83¢
Other 4,55k 75€ 91¢ 35,15¢ 41,38:
Residential Real Estat
Multi-family 447 13E — 2,921 3,49¢
1-4 Family 7,56¢ 2,511 26E 27,37*F 37,71¢
Consume 598 14¢ — 32C 1,062
Agriculture 23 — 32 631 68€
Other — — — — —
Total $ 17,34¢ $ 3947 $ 1,35C $ 92,02( $ 114,66

Credit Quality Indicators — We categorize loans into risk categories at origimabased upon original underwriting. Subseque
origination, we categorized loans into risk catégpbased on relevant information about the ahiftiorrowers to service their debt sucl
current financial information, historical paymemperience, credit documentation, public informatiand current economic trends, am
other factors. Loans are analyzed individually digssifying the loans as to credit risk. This el includes loans with an outstanc
balance greater than $500,000 and homogeneous loans, such as commercial and comineraleestate loans. This analysis is perfor
on a quarterly basis. We do not have any non-tasats. The following definitions are used for riskings:

Watch — Loans classified as watch are those loans which haverexqped a potentially adverse development whictessitates increas
monitoring.

Special Mention —Loans classified as special mention do not havefdhe characteristics of substandard or doulitfuhs. They have one
more deficiencies which warrant special attentind ahich corrective action, such as acceleratel@édidn practices, may remedy.

Substandard —Loans classified as substandard are those loars cléir and defined weaknesses such as a hightyalged positiol
unfavorable financial ratios, uncertain repaymemirses or poor financial condition which may jeatize the repayment of the debt
contractually agreed. They are characterized byli$tnct possibility that we will sustain somedes if the deficiencies are not corrected.

Doubtful — Loans classified as doubtful are those loans whaye characteristics similar to substandard loansvith an increased risk tt
collection or liquidation in full is highly questiable and improbable.

Loans not meeting the criteria above that are aealyindividually as part of the above describedcess are considered to be “Pasatec
loans. As of December 31, 2012 and 2011, and bais¢de most recent analysis performed, the risggray of loans by class of loans it
follows:

Special
Pass Watch Mention Substandard Doubtful Total

(in thousands)

December 31, 201.

Commercia $ 27,08 % 10,15 $ 6,49t $ 8,772 $ 62 $ 52,561
Commercial Real Estat

Constructior 26,08t 21,718 3,647 18,83¢ — 70,28¢

Farmland 47,017 13,46: 3,532 16,81t — 80,82¢

Other 122,60 66,220 14,95t 118,63! 271 322,68’
Residential Real Estat

Multi-family 18,38’ 14,637 — 17,96: — 50,98¢

1-4 Family 159,97! 47,03( 5,167 66,10: — 278,27
Consume 17,23 2,211 35 842 63 20,38:
Agriculture 19,25¢ 1,467 86¢ 72E — 22,31%
Other 24¢€ 524 — — — 77C

Total $ 437,88t $ 177,41¢ $ 34,70C $ 248,69. $ 39 $ 899,09:
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Special
Pass Watch Mention Substandard Doubtful Total

(in thousands)

December 31, 201.

Commercia $ 53,22 $ 9,357 $ 32371 $ 530C $ 929 % 71,21¢
Commercial Real Estat

Constructior 45,407 13,13 7,777 35,15¢ — 101,47:

Farmland 69,88( 4,95k 2,68¢ 13,23¢ 19¢ 90,95¢

Other 213,40¢ 80,14¢ 30,781 99,50: — 423,84
Residential Real Estat

Multi-family 37,801 4.,61¢ 2,10(¢ 15,88 — 60,41(

1-4 Family 247,42 28,73¢ 2,27¢ 58,89: 26 337,35(
Consume 23,72 1,41¢ 43 762 67 26,01:
Agriculture 22,50: 342 14 911 — 23,77(
Other 455 54C — — — 992

Total $ 713,82: $ 143,247 $ 48,92: $ 229.64. $ 391 $ 1,136,02

NOTE 5 — PREMISES AND EQUIPMENT

Year-end premises and equipment were as follows:

2012 2011
(in thousands)
Land and building: $ 24,86( $ 23,49:
Furniture and equipment 18,07 19,08¢
42,93¢ 42 57¢
Accumulated depreciation (22,129 (21,039

$ 20,80t $ 21,54:

Depreciation expense was $1,165,000, $1,205,006a4¢&0,000 for 2012, 2011 and 2010, respectively.
NOTE 6 — OTHER REAL ESTATE OWNED

Other real estate owned (OREOQ) is real estate sadjais a result of foreclosure or by deed in liefoeclosure. It is classified as real es
owned until such time as it is sold. When propé&tacquired as a result of foreclosure or by dadau of foreclosure, it is recorded at
fair market value less cost to sell. Any writewn of the property at the time of acquisitionclgarged to the allowance for loan loss
Subsequent reductions in fair value are recordetnsnterest expense. To determine the fair value REO for smaller dollar single fam
homes, we consult with internal real estate sabféand external realtors, investors, and apprsaisH the internally evaluated market pric
below our underlying investment in the propertyp@priate write-downs are taken.

For larger dollar residential and commercial resthte properties, we obtain a new appraisal ofsthgect property in connection with
transfer to other real estate owned. We obtairatgutappraisals each year on the anniversary flatgnership unless a sale is imminent.

We continue to explore opportunities to sell OREOpgrties in bulk. In 2011, as a result of adoptingfrategy to more aggressively ma
our OREO properties, we determined that we woulavitling to sell certain OREO properties at an amobelow their individual apprais
values. Accordingly, we adjusted our valuationstfegse properties downward by increasing theiratadn allowances to reflect our m
aggressive disposition strategy. These propertepamarily single and mulfiamily residential land development properties. Toleowing
table presents the major categories of OREO gbé¢hied-ends indicated:

2012 2011
(in thousands)

Commercial Real Estat

Constructior $ 2291: $ 32,53¢

Farmland 61€ 744

Other 15,577 6,62(
Residential Real Estat

Multi-family 20C —

1-4 Family 5,51¢ 3,21¢

44,82t 43,11¢

Valuation allowance (1,159 (1,667

$ 43,671 $ 41,44¢
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2012 2011
(in thousands)

OREOQ Valuation Allowance Activity:

Beginning balanc $ 1,667 $ 70C

Provision to allowanc 7,15¢ 34,874

Write-downs (7,667 (33,907

Ending balance $ 1,15¢ $ 1,66
Activity relating to other real estate owned durthg years indicated is as follows:

2012 2011
(in thousands)

OREQ Activity
OREO as of January $ 43,11¢ $ 68,33:
Real estate acquire 33,52¢ 41,91%
Valuation adjustments for sales strategy che — (25,617
Valuation adjustments for declining market val (7,667 (8,299
Improvement 1 1,65(
Loss on sali (1,672 (8,889
Proceeds from sale of properties (22,487) (25,990
OREO as of December 31 $ 44,828 $ 43,11¢

Expenses related to other real estate owned include

2012 2011 2010
(in thousands)
Net loss on sale $ 1,672 $ 8,88¢ $ 56&
Provision to allowanc 7,15¢ 34,87 14,06
Operating expense 1,728 3,762 1,627
Total $ 10,54¢ $ 47,528 $ 16,25¢
NOTE 7 — GOODWILL AND INTANGIBLE ASSETS
Goodwill
The change in balance of goodwill during the yédscated was as follows:
2012 2011
(in thousands)
Beginning of yea $ — 3 23,79
Acquired goodwill — —
Impairment — (23,799
End of year $ — $ —

The Company evaluated goodwill for impairment ariguia the fourth quarter unless events or changesircumstances indicate poten
impairment may have occurred between annual assessnGGoodwill was reviewed for impairment durihg second quarter of 2011 bec:
our common stock, which trades publicly on the NASD experienced a significant drop in value throughthe months of May and Ju
2011. Our stock trended downward during the figsarter of 2011 and continued downward throughbet months of May and Ju
2011. The stock closed on June 30, 2011 at $488hmre and has traded at a market price lesbti@avalue per common share since
second quarter of 2010.

We evaluated the potential negative impact on @daevof our common stock from being removed from Russell 3000 Index during Ji
2011, the trend of lower earnings in 2011 comparediistorical performance due to the continuing actpon earnings from loan I
provisions, norperforming loans, and foreclosed properties, amgneregulatory agreements entered into by the aompOur goodwi
impairment testing completed during the fourth ¢eraof 2010 included, among other things, futurgjgrtions of earnings at levels exceel
actual results for 2011. The level of loan lossvigions and the cost of foreclosed propertiesinantto exceed our prior expectations a
work through issues with our non-performing loavels and other real estate owned portfolio.
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The fair value was determined utilizing our markapitalization based upon recent common stock peieels. We also considered mal
comparison transactions and control premiums fstititions of a similar size and performance. Base this analysis, we determined
our Goodwill was impaired and recorded an impaimddrarge of $23.8 million in the quarter ended J88e2011. The impairment cha
had no impact on the Company’s liquidity, cash #pwr regulatory ratios.

Acquired Intangible Assets

Acquired intangible assets were as follows as afysnd:

2012 2011
Gross Gross
Carrying Accumulated Carrying Accumulated
Amount Amortization Amount Amortization

(in thousands)
Amortized intangible asset
Core deposit intangible $ 4,18: $ 2,581 $ 4,18: $ 2,12¢
Trust account intangible 10C 53 10C 43

Aggregate amortization expense was $467,000, $86&0d $464,000 for 2012, 2011 and 2010, respéygtive

Estimated aggregate amortization expense for iftténgssets for each of the next five years ioHswvis (in thousands):

2013 $ 437
2014 407
2015 34¢
2016 344
2017 117

NOTE 8 — DEPOSITS

The following table shows deposits by category:

December December
31, 31,
2012 2011
(in thousands)
Non-interest bearin $ 114,31( $ 111,11¢
Interest checkini 87,23¢ 87,65!
Money marke 63,71t 64,30z
Savings 39,22} 36,35:
Certificates of deposit 760,57: 1,024,33.
Total $ 1,065,05 $ 1,323,76.

Time deposits of $100,000 or more were approxirge#8ll9,527,000 and $493,344,000 at year-end 20d2@mh1, respectively.

Scheduled maturities of total time deposits fotheaftthe next five years are as follows (in thowsin

Retall Brokered Total
2013 $ 394,59 % 15,000 $ 409,59:
2014 173,31: — 173,31:
2015 152,71¢ — 152,71¢
2016 13,97« — 13,97«
2017 10,89 — 10,89
Thereafter 85 — 85

$ 745,570 $ 15,00 $ 760,57:

Historically, the Bank has utilized brokered andolgsale deposits to supplement its funding stratdgypecember 31, 2012, and 2011, tt
deposits totaled $15.0 million and $118.4 millisaspectively. As stipulated in the Consent Ord@&| Bank is currently restricted frc
accepting, renewing, or rolling-over brokered déjgosithout the prior receipt of a waiver on a casecase basis from our regulators.
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NOTE 9 — SECURITIES SOLD UNDER AGREEMENTS TO REPURCHASE

Securities sold under agreements to repurchasinareing arrangements that mature within two yeAtsnaturity, the securities underlyi
the agreements are returned to the Company. $esusbdld under agreements to repurchase are sebyragency, mortgageacked, an
municipal securities. Information concerning setbesisold under agreements to repurchase is suredaas follows:

2012 2011
(in thousands)
Balance at ye-end $ 2,63 % 1,73¢
Average daily balance during the yt $ 2,08¢ % 10,45
Average interest rate during the y 0.35% 4.2%
Maximum montl-end balance during the ye $ 2,63¢ % 11,672
Weighted average interest rate at -end 0.27% 2.2¢%
Fair value of securities sold under agreementsganchase at ye-end $ 2,63 % 1,73¢

During 2011, we retired a $10 million repurchaseeagent prior to maturity and incurred a prepaynpemialty of $312,000.
NOTE 10 — ADVANCES FROM FEDERAL HOME LOAN BANK
At year-end, advances from the Federal Home LoarkBaere as follows:

2012 2011
(in thousands)

lonthly amortizing advances with fixed rates frod@%b to 5.25% and maturities ranging from 2013 ubh
2033, averaging 3.21% for 2012 $ 560/ $ 7,11¢€

Total $ 5,60/ $ 7,11¢€

Each advance is payable per terms on agreemehtawtepayment penalty. During 2011, we incurrezpgyment penalties of $174,00C
the prepayments of advances totaling $5.5 milliNin. similar penalty was incurred during 2012. Thevaattes were collateralized
approximately $163.3 million and $411.5 million fifst mortgage loans, under a blanket lien arrarg@nat yeaend 2012 and 201
respectively. Our borrowing capacity is based anrtitarket value of the underlying pledged loanserathan the unpaid principal balanct
the pledged loans. The availability of our borrogvrapacity could be affected by our financial gosiand the FHLB could require additio
collateral or, among other things, exercise ithtggo deny a funding request, at its discretioddifionally, any new advances are limited
one year maturity or less. At December 31, 2012 additional borrowing capacity with the FHLB waa330 million.

Scheduled principal payments on the above duriagéxt five years (in thousands):

Advances

2013 $ 1,12¢
2014 72¢
2015 66¢
2016 634
2017 55C
Thereafter 1,891

$ 5,60¢

At yearend 2012, the Company had approximately $5.0 milbé federal funds lines of credit available fromrrespondent institutior
however, the availability of these lines could ffeced by our financial position.

NOTE 11 — SUBORDINATED CAPITAL NOTE

The subordinated capital note issued by PBI Batiéded $7.0 million at December 31, 2012. The n®tensecured, bears interest at the |
threemonth LIBOR floating rate plus 300 basis pointsy giualifies as Tier 2 capital. Interest only wa® djuarterly through September
2010, at which time quarterly principal payments$g25,000 plus interest commenced. Scheduledipahpayments of $900,000 per y
are due each of the next five years with $2,475@@9thereafter. The note matures July 1, 2020Dektember 31, 2012, the interest rat
this note was 3.36%.
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NOTE 12 — JUNIOR SUBORDINATED DEBENTURES

The junior subordinated debentures are redeemalplar grior to the maturity dates of February 1334 April 15, 2034, and March 1, 20
at the option of the Company as defined within tttust indenture. The Company has the option tordeterest payments on the jur
subordinated debentures from time to time for aopemot to exceed twenty (20) consecutive quarléayments are deferred, the Comg
is prohibited from paying dividends to it®mmon stockholders. Effective with the fourth dearof 2011, we began deferring inte
payments on the junior subordinated notes whichltes in a deferral of distributions on our truseferred securities. Therefore, future ¢
dividends on our common stock are subject to ther grayment of all deferred distributions on ouustr preferred securities. Divider
accrued and unpaid on our junior subordinated debes totaled $871,000 at December 31, 2012. A saamnmof the junior subordinat
debentures is as follows:

Junior
Subordinated
Optional Debt Owed
Issuance Prepayment to Maturity
Description Date Date (2) Interest Rate (1) Trust Date
Porter Statutory Trust 02-13-200¢ 03-17-200¢ 3-month LIBOR + 2.85% $ 5,000,00! 02-13-203¢
Porter Statutory Trust Ii 04-15-200¢ 06-17-200¢ 3-month LIBOR + 2.79¥% 3,000,001 04-15-203¢
Porter Statutory Trust I’ 12-14-200¢ 03-01-201z 3-month LIBOR + 1.67¥% 14,000,00 03-01-2037
Asencia Statutory Trust | 02-13200¢ 03-17200¢ 3-month LIBOR + 2.85% 3,000,00! 02-13203¢
$ 25,000,00

(1) As of December 31, 2012 th-month LIBOR was 0.31¥%
(2) The debentures are callable on or after the ogtjmmegpayment date at their principal amount plusaed interest

NOTE 13 — OTHER BENEFIT PLANS

401(K) Plan— The Company 401(k) Savings Plan allows employeesmtribute up to 15% of their compensation, whghatched equal
50% of the first 4% of compensation contributede Tompany, at its discretion, may make an additionatribution. Total contributior
made by the Company to the plan amounted to appeirly $148,000, $131,000 and $188,000 in 20121 201 2010, respectively.

Supplemental Executive Retirement Plan- During 2004, the Company created a supplementalutixe retirement plan covering cert
executive officers. Under the plan, the Companyspagch participant, or their beneficiary, a spediefined benefit amount over 10 ye
beginning with the individua$ retirement or early termination of service faagens other than cause. A liability is accruectlierobligatiol
under these plans. The expense incurred for thewies $151,000, $49,000 and $264,000 for the yeraded December 31, 2012, 2011
2010, respectively. The related liability was $BB®0, $1,208,000 and $1,161,000 at December 32,2011 and 2010, respectively, ar
included in other liabilities on the balance sheets

The Company purchased life insurance on the ppatits to fund the benefits of these plans. The sagiender value of all insurance polit
was $8,398,000 and $8,106,000 at December 31, 20d2011, respectively. Income earned from the sastender value of life insurar
totaled $292,000, $301,000 and $296,000 for thesyeaded December 31, 2012, 2011 and 2010, regplgctiThe income is recorded
other non-interest income.

NOTE 14 — INCOME TAXES

Income tax expense (benefit) was as follows:

2012 2011 2010
(in thousands)
Current $ (65 $ (12,09) $ 4,85z
Deferred 754 (17,409 (7,899
Net operating los (12,58) (2,439 —
Establishment of valuation allowan — 31,715 —
Change in valuation allowance 11,827 — —
$ (65 $ (218 $ (3,04¢6)
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Effective tax rates differ from federal statutoage of 35% applied to income (loss) before incoaxe$ due to the following.

2012 2011 2010
(in thousands)
Federal statutory rate times financial statemecurime (loss $ (11,549 $ (37,639 % (2,600
Effect of:
Establishment of valuation allowan — 31,717 —
Change in valuation allowan 11,827 — —
Goodwill impairment charg — 6,16¢ —
Tax-exempt incom (3149 (392 (302)
Nontaxable life insurance incor (102 (10%) (1049
Federal tax credit — (45) (45)
Other, ne 73 72 5
Total $ (65 $ (218 $ (3,04¢6)
Year-end deferred tax assets and liabilities weretd the following.
2012 2011
(in thousands)
Deferred tax asset
Allowance for loan losse $ 19,83¢ $ 18,40:
Other real estate owned w-down 10,40¢ 12,90¢
Net operating loss car-forward 15,05 2,47(
New market tax credit car-forward 20¢ 20¢
Alternative minimum tax credit car-forward 692 68t
Net assets from acquisitio 592 54z
Other than temporary impairment on securi 374 374
Amortization of no-compete agreemer 19 27
Other 93€ 827
48,11¢ 36,44
Deferred tax liabilities
Fixed asset 40¢ 44%
Net unrealized gain on securities available foe 1,85¢ 2,24:
FHLB stock dividend: 1,27¢ 1,27¢
Originated mortgage servicing rigt 98 10z
Other 54¢ 65¢
4,19( 4,72¢
Net deferred tax asset before valuation allow: 43,92¢ 31,71,
Valuation allowanct (43,929 (31,71)
Net deferred tax ass $ — 3 —

Our estimate of the realizability of the deferredt fasset is dependent on our estimate of projdotede levels of taxable income as
carryback ability was fully absorbed by our taxslaf $40.1 million for 2011. In analyzing futurexédle income levels, we considerec
evidence currently available, both positive andatizg. Based on our analysis, we established atiatuallowance for all deferred tax as
as of December 31, 2011.

The Company does not have any beginning and engimgcognized tax benefits. The Company does npedaxthe total amount
unrecognized tax benefits to significantly increaselecrease in the next twelve months. There werimterest and penalties recorded ir
income statement or accrued for the year endeddleee31, 2012 related to unrecognized tax benefits.

The Company and its subsidiaries are subject to. fe@eral income tax and the Company is subjecintmme tax in the state
Kentucky. The Company is no longer subject to dération by taxing authorities for years before 2009
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NOTE 15 — RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Loans to principal officers, directors, and thdfiliates in 2012 were as follows (in thousands):

Beginning balanc $ 1,37¢
New loans 30
Repayments a7
Ending balance $ 1,238

Deposits from principal officers, directors, andittraffiliates at year-end 2012 and 2011 were $dildlon and $2.5 million, respectively.

Our loan participation totals include participasan real estate loans purchased from and soldidcaffiliate banks, The Peoples Bank,
Washington and The Peoples Bank, Taylorsville. €harman emeritus, J. Chester Porter and his hratie our director, William G. Port
each own a 50% interest in Lake Valley Bancorp,,Itiee parent holding company of The Peoples Baaklorsville, Kentucky. J. Ches
Porter, William G. Porter and our chairman and tleeecutive officer, Maria L. Bouvette, serve asediors of The Peoples Ba
Taylorsville. Our chairman emeritus, J. Chestertétaswns an interest of approximately 36.0% andbinigher and our director, William
Porter, owns an interest of approximately 3.0% mosSroads Bancorp, Inc., the parent holding compainfhe Peoples Bank, Mot
Washington, Kentucky. J. Chester Porter and MariBduvette, serve as directors of The Peoples Beliokint Washington. We have ente
into management services agreements with each esfetlbanks. Each agreement provides that our exesuéind employees prov
management and accounting services to the subgatt, bncluding overall responsibility for establisth and implementing policy a
strategic planning. Maria Bouvette also serveshasf dinancial officer of each of the banks. Weeaiwed a $4,000 monthly fee from 1
Peoples Bank, Taylorsville and a $2,000 monthlyffeen The Peoples Bank, Mount Washington for theseices. Beginning in 2013, th
management services agreements were not renewed.

As of December 31, 2012, we had $2.7 million oftipgrations in real estate loans purchased frord, $h5 million of participations in re
estate loans sold, to these affiliate banks. ABedember 31, 2011, we had $4.1 million of partitigpss in real estate loans purchased f
and $13.2 million of participations in real esthians sold to, these affiliate banks. At Decemtgr2®12, $1.4 million of loan participatic
sold to Peoples Bank, Taylorsville, and $943,000 smPeoples Bank, Mt. Washington were on non-aicr

NOTE 16 — PREFERRED STOCK AND STOCK PURCHASE WARRANTS

In 2010, we completed a $32 million private placaeii® accredited investors. Following completidntiee transactions involved, Por
Bancorp had issued (i) 2,465,569 shares of commaek,s(ii) 317,042 shares of Series C PreferrectiS@nd (iii) warrants to purche
1,163,045 shares of non-voting common stock aice mf $11.50 per share.

The Series C Preferred Stock has no voting rightsgpt when required by law), has a liquidatiorfgmence over our common stock, divid
rights equivalent to our common stock. Each shaf&eoies C Preferred Stock automatically conventis 1.05 shares of common stock at ¢
time as, after giving effect to the automatic casian, the holder of such Series C Preferred Sftadether with its affiliates and any ot
persons with which it is acting in concert or whasédings would otherwise be required to be aggezhfor purposes of federal banking i
beneficially holds, directly or indirectly, lessatin 9.9% of the number of shares of common stoak igeied and outstanding.

The warrants are exercisable into non-voting comistock until they expire on September 16, 2015. fitvevoting common stock has
voting rights (except when required by law), butestvise has substantially the same rights as aanmn stock. Upon issuance, each sha
nonvoting common stock automatically converts into51€hares of common stock at such time as, aftangieffect to the automa
conversion, the holder of narting common stock (together with its affiliatesdaany other persons with which it is acting in @en o
whose holdings would otherwise be required to lgregated for purposes of federal banking law) haliitectly or indirectly, beneficial
less than 9.9% of the number of shares of comnumrk¢hen issued and outstanding.

On November 21, 2008, we issued to the U.S. Trgasuexchange for aggregate consideration of $&tlllon, 35,000 shares of our Sel
A Preferred Stock and a warrant to purchase up3®5®81 shares of our common stock for $15.88 pareshThe warrant is immediat
exercisable and has a $6ar term. The Series A Preferred Stock quald®Jier 1 capital and pays cumulative cash divideqdarterly at ¢
annual rate of 5% for the first five years, and ®f#reafter. The Series A Preferred Stock is woting (except when required by law) a
beginning on February 15, 2012, may be redeemdlldb€ompany at $1,000 per share plus accrued udpaitends.

In the fourth quarter of 2011, we began deferrimgpayment of regular quarterly cash dividendsumSeries A Preferred Stock issued tc
U.S. Treasury. If we defer dividend payments ifgrqgiarters, the holder of our Series A Preferraatis (currently the U.S. Treasury) wo
then have the right to appoint representativesutoBoard of Directors. We will continue to accraey deferred dividends, which will
deducted from income to common shareholders fanfital statement purposes. Dividends accrued apdidiron our Series A Prefer
Stock, and interest accrued and unpaid on thoseettids, totaled $2.5 million at December 31, 2012.
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NOTE 17 — CAPITAL REQUIREMENTS AND RESTRICTIONS ON RETAINED EARNINGS

Banks and bank holding companies are subject tolatyy capital requirements administered by feldeamking agencies. Capital adequ
guidelines and, additionally for banks, prompt ective action regulations involve quantitative meas of assets, liabilities, and certain off-
balancesheet items calculated under regulatory accounpiregtices. Capital amounts and classifications @se subject to qualitati
judgments by regulators. Failure to meet capitglirements can initiate regulatory actir

On June 24, 2011, PBI Bank entered into a ConseteerQvith the FDIC and the Kentucky Department imfafcial Institutions. The const
order requires the Bank to complete a managemedy sto maintain Tier 1 capital as a percentageiail assets of at least 9% and a total
based capital ratio of at least 12%, to developaa o reduce our risk position in each substandas®t in excess of $1 million, to comp
board review of the adequacy of the allowancedanllosses prior to quarterly Call Report submissido adopt procedures which streng
the loan review function and ensure timely and eateugrading of credit relationships, to chagjfiall assets classified as loss, to devel
plan to reduce concentrations of construction antbpment loans to not more than 75% of total biaked capital and n@mwner occupie
commercial real estate loans to not more than 26Détal risk based capital, to limit asset growdmo more than 5% in any quarter or 1
annually, to not extend additional credit to anyrbwer classified substandard unless the boardrettdrs adopts prior to the extensic
detailed statement giving reasons why the exterisiomthe best interest of the bank, and to notade or pay any dividend without the p
consent of our regulators. We are also restriftech accepting, renewing, or rollingver brokered deposits without the prior receipt
waiver on a case-by-case basis from our regulators.

On September 21, 2011, we entered into a Writtereé&ygent with the Federal Reserve Bank of St. LoBigtrsuant to the Agreement,
made formal commitments to use our financial andagament resources to serve as a source of stramgtie Bank and to assist the B
in addressing weaknesses identified by the FDIC thedKDFI, to pay no dividends without prior writteapproval, to pay no interest
principal on subordinated debentures or trust prefesecurities without prior written approval, @edsubmit an acceptable plan to main
sufficient capital.

In October 2012, the Bank entered into a new Cdrn®eder with the FDIC and KDFI again agreeing taimtein a minimum Tier 1 levera
ratio of 9% and a minimum total risk based capitdio of 12%. The Bank cannot be considered wafitalized while under the Cons
Order. The Bank also agreed that if it should bablsto reach the required capital levels, andrdated in writing by the FDIC, then t
Bank would within 30 days develop, adopt and immaima written plan to sell or merge itself into #mes federally insured financ
institution or otherwise immediately obtain a sti#nt capital investment into the Bank to fully rhdes capital requirements.

The new Consent Order also requires the Bank ttregnto adhere to the plans implemented in resptmshe June 2011 Consent Order,
includes the substantive provisions of the June&lZDdnsent OrdeAs of December 31, 2012, the capital ratios reguing the Consent Orc
were not met.

The following table shows the ratios of Tier 1 ¢apand total capital to riskéjusted assets and the leverage ratios for PBaecorp, Inc
and PBI Bank at the dates indicated:

December 31, 201. December 31, 201.
Minimum
Capital
Ratios
Well- Under
Regulatory  Capitalized Consent Porter PBI Porter PBI
Minimums Minimums Order Bancorp Bank Bancorp Bank
Tier 1 Capital 4.C% 6.C% N/A 6.4€% 7.71% 9.2%% 8.8€%
Total risk-based capite 8.C 10.C 12.(% 9.81 9.8: 11.22 10.8¢
Tier 1 leverage rati 4.C 5.0 9.C 4.5(C 5.37 6.5:2 6.22

At December 31, 2012, PBI BarkTier 1 leverage ratio declined to 5.37% whictbésow the 9% minimum capital ratio required by
Consent Order and its total riblesed capital ratio declined to 9.82% which is Wwetloe 12% minimum capital ratio required by the Seam
Order. Failure to meet minimum capital requiremenats initiate certain mandatory and possibly adddl discretionary actions by regula
that, if undertaken, could have a materially adeef§ect on our financial condition.
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Kentucky banking laws limit the amount of divideritist may be paid to a holding company by its sliasy banks without prior approv
These laws limit the amount of dividends that mayphid in any calendar year to current ygaet income, as defined in the laws, comk
with the retained net income of the preceding twarg, less any dividends declared during thoseg®riPBI Bank has agreed with
primary regulators to obtain their written conspnior to declaring or paying any future dividends. a practical matter, PBI Bank cannot
dividends for the foreseeable future.

NOTE 18 — LOAN COMMITMENTS AND OTHER RELATED ACTIVI TIES

Some financial instruments, such as loan commitmdinies of credit and letters of credit are issteetheet customdinancing needs. The
are agreements to provide credit or to supportctbdit of others, as long as conditions establishatie contract are met, and usually t
expiration dates. Commitments may expire withouhdpaused. Off-balanceheet risk to credit loss exists up to the face lamof thes
instruments, although material losses are not igatied. The same credit policies are used to makk sommitments as are used for lo
including obtaining collateral at exercise of tlognenitment.

The Company holds instruments, in the normal coofskusiness, with clients that are consideredniingl guarantees. Standby letter:
credit guarantees are issued in connection witkeagents made by clients to counterparties. Stafettgrs of credit are contingent ug
failure of the client to perform the terms of thederlying contract. The Company evaluates eachtamglest of its customers in accorde
with established lending policies. Based on thessluations and the underlying policies, the amoohtequired collateral (if any)
established. Collateral held varies but may inclndgotiable instruments, accounts receivable, itorgnproperty, plant and equipme
income producing properties, residential real estahd vehicles. The Compaayaccess to these collateral items is generalgbbshe
through the maintenance of recorded liens or, é@dhse of negotiable instruments, possession. atdity is currently established for t
standby letters of credit.

The contractual amounts of financial instrumenthwif-balance-sheet risk at year end were asvi@io

2012 2011
Fixed Variable Fixed Variable
Rate Rate Rate Rate
(in thousands)
Commitments to make loal $ 249 $ 3,54¢ $ 441 % 9,45¢
Unused lines of cred 11,91( 34,92¢ 13,48t 49,31
Standby letters of crec 1,08t 1,17¢ 74¢€ 2,707

Commitments to make loans are generally made fooge of one year or less.
NOTE 19 — FAIR VALUES

Fair value is the exchange price that would beivedefor an asset or paid to transfer a liabiligxif price) in the principal or mc
advantageous market for the asset or liabilityriroederly transaction between market participamtshe measurement date. We use va
valuation techniques to determine fair value, idolg market, income and cost approaches. Therthege levels of inputs that may be L
to measure fair values:

Level 1: Quoted prices (unadjusted) for identical asset&@bilities in active markets that an entity hase #bility to access as of
measurement date, or observable inputs.

Level 2: Significant other observable inputs other than lLdverices, such as quoted prices for similar aseetiabilities, quote
prices in markets that are not active, and othgutsthat are observable or can be corroboratexbbgrvable market data.

Level 3: Significant unobservable inputs that reflect anitgrg own assumptions about the assumptions that maggétipant
would use in pricing an asset or liability.

In certain cases, the inputs used to measure dhievmay fall into different levels of the fair wal hierarchy. When that occurs, we clas
the fair value hierarchy on the lowest level oftuhphat is significant to the fair value measuretmai'e used the following methods
significant assumptions to estimate fair value.

Securities: The fair values of securities available for sale determined by obtaining quoted prices on natipnacognize:
securities exchanges, if available. This valuatioethod is classified as Level 1 in the fair vahierarchy. For securities whe
qguoted prices are not available, fair values adeutazted on market prices of similar securities, neatrix pricing, which is
mathematical technique used widely in the industryalue debt securities without relying exclusywein quoted prices for t
specific securities but rather by relying on thewsiies’ relationship to other benchmark quoted securitiatrix pricing relies o
the securitiestelationship to similarly traded securities, benahkncurves, and the benchmarking of like securitiatrix pricinc
utilizes observable market inputs such as benchryiatéds, reported trades, broker/dealer quotesieisspreads, tweided market
benchmark securities, bids, offers, reference datd,industry and economic events. In instancesevbiker quotes are used, tt
guotes are obtained from market makers or brdkalers recognized to be market participants. Flisation method is classified
Level 2 in the fair value hierarchyFor securities where quoted prices or market prafesmilar securities are not available,
values are calculated using discounted cash flovasher market indicators This valuation method is classified as Level 3hia fail



value hierarchyDiscounted cash flows are calculated using spreaivap and LIBOR curves that are updated to incatpdos
severities, volatility, credit spread and optiotyalDuring times when trading is more liquid, brokpiotes are used (if available’

validate the modeRating agency and industry research reports asasalefaults and deferrals on individual securiiesreviewe
and incorporated into the calculations.
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Impaired Loans: An impaired loan is evaluated at the time the lisaidentified as impaired and is recorded at faiue less costs
sell. Fair value is measured based on the valuthefcollateral securing the loan and is classifisdLevel 3 in the fair val
hierarchy. Fair value is determined using sevemthads. Generally, the fair value of real estaei®rmined based on appraisal
qualified licensed appraisers. These appraisals mtilige a single valuation approach or a combovatof approaches includi
comparable sales and the income approach.

Adjustments are routinely made in the appraisat@se by the appraisers to adjust for differencésdsn the comparable sales
income data available. These routine adjustmeetsrade to adjust the value of a specific propesigtive to comparable propert
for variations in qualities such as location, saed income production capacity relative to theestttproperty of the appraisal. St
adjustments are typically significant and resulaibevel 3 classification of the inputs for detaning fair value.

We routinely apply an internal discount to the ealof appraisals used in the fair value evaluatibrowr impaired loans. Tl
deductions to the appraisal take into account dngrigusiness factors and market conditions, as agefiotential value impairment
cases where our appraisal date predates a likaggehin market conditions. These deductions rdraye 10% for routine re
estate collateral to 25% for real estate that isrdeined (1) to have a thin trading market or (2bé specialized collateral. This it
addition to estimated discounts for cost to selligfto ten percent.

We also apply discounts to the expected fair valueollateral for impaired loans where the likegsolution involves litigation
foreclosure. Resolution of this nature generallguts in receiving lower values for real estatdatetal in a more aggressive si
environment. We have utilized discounts rangingnfrt0% to 33% in our impairment evaluations whenliagple.

Impaired loans are evaluated quarterly for add#iempairment. We obtain updated appraisals ongna@s securing our loans wt
circumstances are warranted such as at the timenefval or when market conditions have signifiganolianged. This determinati
is made on a property-lgyroperty basis in light of circumstances in theadker economic climate and our assessment of dettoic
of real estate values in the market in which thepprty is located. The first stage of our assessrime/olves managemest’
inspection of the property in question. Managenzsd engages in conversations with local reategteofessionals, investors, :
market makers to determine the likely marketingetiand value range for the property. The secorgkstavolves an assessmen
current trends in the regional market. After thaylo consideration of these factors, managementeitier internally evaluate fi
value or order a new appraisal.

Other Real Estate Owned (OREO): OREO is evaluated at the time of acquisition amcbrded at fair value as determinec
independent appraisal or internal market evaludées cost to sell. Our quarterly evaluations for impairment are driven
property type. For smaller dollar single familynes, we consult with internal real estate sald$ atal external realtors, investc
and appraisers. Based on these consultations,etezntine asking prices for OREO properties we aagketing for sale. If tF
internally evaluated fair value is below our re@ddnvestment in the property, appropriate write«ds are taken.

For larger dollar commercial real estate propertiasobtain a new appraisal of the subject propargonnection with the transfer
other real estate owned. In some of these ciramass, an appraisal is in process at quarter eddya must make our best estin
of the fair value of the underlying collateral basen our internal evaluation of the property, rewief the most recent appraisal, .
discussions with the currently engaged appraigée. obtain updated appraisals on the anniversag afabwnership unless a sal:
imminent.
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We routinely apply an internal discount to the eati appraisals used in the fair value evaluatioouo OREO. The deductions to
appraisal take into account changing businessraetod market conditions, as well as potential @@tpairment in cases where
appraisal date predates a likely change in marteditions. These deductions range from 10% fatine real estate collateral
25% for real estate that is determined (1) to hawkin trading market or (2) to be specialized ateifal. This is in addition
estimated discounts for cost to sell of six toggencent.

In 2011, management, with concurrence of the Bo&fdirectors, determined that certain propertielsl re other real estate were
likely to be successfully disposed of in an acdejetaimeframe using routine marketing efforts. It becanppaaent that certa
properties were going to require extended holdiegogs to sell the properties at recent appraisddes. These properties
primarily single and multi-family residential loadtevelopment properties. Given our change in gjyate reduce nomerforming
assets in an accelerated manner, management adjdstenward the valuations for single and mtatiily residential loa
development properties in our OREO portfolio to amts below their individual appraised values.

Financial assets measured at fair value on a nmumiag basis are summarized below:

Description
Available-for-sale securitie

U.S. Government an
federal agenc
Agency mortgag-backed: residentit
State and municip:
Corporate bond
Other debt securitie
Equity securitie:
Total

Description
Available-for-sale securitie

U.S. Government an
federal agenc
Agency mortgag-backed: residenti:
State and municip:
Corporate bond
Other debt securitie
Equity securitie:
Total

Fair Value Measurements at December 31, 2012 Usil

Quoted Prices In

(in thousands)

Active Markets  Significant Other Significant
for Observable Unobservable
Carrying Identical Assets Inputs Inputs
Value (Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3)
$ 6,137 $ — 6,13: —
95,18: — 95,18: —
54,73: — 54,73: —
19,96¢ — 19,96¢ —
61¢ — — 61¢
1,84¢ 1,84¢ — —
$ 178,47t $ 1,84¢ 176,01: 61€
Fair Value Measurements at December 31, 2011 Usil
(in thousands)
Quoted Prices In
Active Markets  Significant Other Significant
for Observable Unobservable
Carrying Identical Assets Inputs Inputs
Value (Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3)
$ 11,64 % — 11,64 —
99,47¢ — 99,47* —
38,06: — 36,88¢ 1,17:
7,33 — 7,33 —
60€ — — 60€
1,71¢ 1,71¢ — —
$ 158,83 $ 1,71t 155,33¢ 1,77¢

There were no transfers between Level 1 and Ledeirihg 2012 or 2011.
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The table below presents a reconciliation of adleés measured at fair value on a recurring basig) ssgnificant unobservable inputs (Le
3) for the periods ended December 31, 2012 and:2011

State and Municipal Other Debt
Securities Securities
2012 2011 2012 2011
(in thousands)
Balances of recurring Level 3 assets at Janui $ 1,17:  $ — 60€ $ 572
Total gain (loss) for the perio

Included in other comprehensive income (I — — 12 34
Transfers into Level — 1,17¢ — —
Sales 1.179 — — —
Balance of recurring Level 3 assets at Septemb: $ — $ 117§ 61 $ 60€

The fair value for five municipal securities withif values of $1.2 million as of December 31, 2@&te transferred out of Level 2 and i
Level 3 because of a lack of observable market fdatdnese investments due to a decrease in madtieity for these securities. Our policy
to recognize transfers as of the end of the remprperiod. As a result, the fair value for thesenitipal securities was transferred
December 31, 2011.

Level 3 state and municipal securities valuations supported by analysis prepared by an indepenitiénat party. Their approach

determining fair value involves using recently exted transactions for similar securities and markeaitations for similar securities.

securities of this type are not rated by the ratiggncies and trading volumes are thin, it wasrdeted that these were valued using Le\
inputs. We sold our Level 3 municipal securitieshia second quarter of 2012 and had no securitiftgsonature at December 31, 2012.

Our other debt security valuation is determinedrimlly by calculating discounted cash flows udimg securitys coupon rate of 6.5% and
estimated current market rate of 10.0% based upencurrent yield curve plus spreads that adjust violatility, credit risk, an
optionality. We also consider the issuer(s) puplfited financial information as well as assumpisoregarding the likelihood of deferrals
defaults.

Financial assets measured at fair value on a nmumiag basis are summarized below:
Fair Value Measurements at December 31,

2012 Using
(in thousands)

Quoted
Prices In
Active Significant
Markets for Other Significant
Identical Observable  Unobservable
Carrying Assets Inputs Inputs
Description Value (Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3)
Impaired loans:
Commercial $ 3,79¢ $ — % — % 3,79¢
Commercial real estat
Constructior 23,91 — — 23,91
Farmland 5,72 — — 5,72
Other 72,79: — — 72,79¢
Residential real estat
Multi-family 13,26: — — 13,26:
1-4 Family 25,09 — — 25,09
Consume 74 — — 74
Agriculture 5 — — 5
Other 51z — — 51z
Other real estate owned, net
Commercial real estat
Constructior 22,32 — — 22,32
Farmland 602 — — 602
Other 15,17¢ — — 15,17¢
Residential real estat
Multi-family 19t — — 19t
1-4 Family 5,37¢ — — 5,37¢
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Fair Value Measurements at December 31,
2011 Using

(in thousands)

Quoted
Prices In
Active Significant
Markets for Other Significant
Identical Observable  Unobservable
Carrying Assets Inputs Inputs
Description Value (Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3)
Impaired loans:
Commercial $ 2,65: $ — % — % 2,65¢
Commercial real estat
Constructior 15,89¢ — — 15,89¢
Farmland 6,28¢ — — 6,28¢
Other 75,12¢ — — 75,12¢
Residential real estat
Multi-family 3,75¢ — — 3,75¢
1-4 Family 21,64¢ — — 21,64¢
Other 532 — — 532
Other real estate owned, net:
Commercial real estat
Constructior 31,28( — — 31,28(
Farmland 71E — — 71E
Other 6,36¢ — — 6,36¢
Residential real estat
1-4 Family 3,09( — — 3,09(

Impaired loans, which are measured for impairmaimgithe fair value of the collateral for collatedapendent loans, had a carrying am
of $152.2 million, with a valuation allowance of®%@ million, at December 31, 2012, resulting inaafditional provision for loan losses
$13.1 million for the year ended December 31, 20A2December 31, 2011, impaired loans had a aagrgimount of $138.2 million, with
valuation allowance of $12.3 million, resulting am additional provision for loan losses of $10.1liani for the year ended December
2011.

Other real estate owned, which is measured abtherlof carrying or fair value less costs to dadld a net carrying amount of $43.7 millior
of December 31, 2012, compared with $41.4 millibDacember 31, 2011. Wrigswns of $7.2 million and $34.9 million were receddor
other real estate owned for the years ended Deaedih@012 and 2011, respectively.

The following table presents qualitative informati@bout level 3 fair value measurements for finalnicistruments measured at fair value
non-recurring basis at December 31, 2012:

Valuation Range (Weighted
Fair Value Technique(s) Unobservable Input(s) Average)
(in thousands
Impaired loans — C ommercial $ 3,79¢ Market value approach Adjustment for receivables al 16% - 32% (24%)

inventory discount

Impaired loans €ommercial rea $ 89,46 Sales comparison appro: Adjustment for differences 0% - 69% (19%)
estate between the comparable
sales
Impaired loans — Residential real$ 38,357 Sales comparison appro: Adjustment for differences 0% - 38% (15%)
estate between the comparable
sales
Other real estate owned — $ 38,10( Sales comparison appro: Adjustment for differences 3% - 50% (18%)
Commercial real estate Income approach between the comparable 9% - 16% (12%)
sales

Discount or capitalization ra

Other real estate owned — $ 5,571 Sales comparison appro:¢ Adjustment for differences 0% - 30% (9%)
Residential real estate between the comparable
sales
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Carrying amount and estimated fair values of fimaniostruments were as follows at year-end 2012:

Fair Value Measurements at December 31, 2012 Usil

Carrying
Amount Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
(in thousands
Financial assel
Cash and cash equivalel $ 4957 $ 41,93t $ 7,63 $ — 3 49,57:
Securities available for sa 178,47¢ 1,84¢ 176,01: 61€ 178,47¢
Federal Home Loan Bank sto 10,07z N/A N/A N/A N/A
Mortgage loans held for sa 507 — 507 — 507
Loans, ne 842,41. — — 853,99¢ 853,99¢
Accrued interest receivab 5,13¢ — 1,15( 3,98¢ 5,13¢
Financial liabilities
Deposits $ 1,06505 $ 114,31 $ 955,21t $ — $ 1,069,52
Securities sold under agreements to repurc 2,63¢ — 2,63¢ — 2,63¢
Federal Home Loan Bank advant 5,60¢ — 5,607 — 5,607
Subordinated capital not 6,97¢ — — 6,59¢ 6,59¢
Junior subordinated debentu 25,00( — — 13,82 13,82
Accrued interest payab 2,10¢ — 1,17: 931 2,10¢

Carrying amount and estimated fair values of fimanostruments were as follows at year-end 2011:

Fair Value Measurements at December 31, 2011 Usil

Carrying
Amount Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
(in thousands
Financial assel
Cash and cash equivalel $ 105,96: $ 93,877 $ 12,08 $ — % 105,96:
Securities available for sa 158,83 1,71¢ 155,33¢ 1,77¢ 158,83
Federal Home Loan Bank sto 10,07: N/A N/A N/A N/A
Mortgage loans held for sa 694 — 694 — 694
Loans, ne 1,083,44. — — 1,093,45 1,093,45i
Accrued interest receivab 6,68: — 97C 5,712 6,68:
Financial liabilities
Deposits $ 1,323,76 $ 111,11t $ 1,221,01' $ — $ 1,332,13
Securities sold under agreements to repurc 1,73¢ — 1,73¢ — 1,73¢
Federal Home Loan Bank advant 7,11¢ — 7,01t — 7,01t
Subordinated capital not 7,65( — — 7,11C 7,11(
Junior subordinated debentu 25,00( — — 19,76¢ 19,76¢
Accrued interest payab 1,732 — 1,51C 222 1,732

The methods and assumptions used to estimatediaie are described as follows:

(a) Cash and Cash Equivalents
The carrying amounts of cash and shertn instruments approximate fair values and aessified as either Level 1 or Level
Noninterest bearing deposits are Level 1 wherdasdst bearing due from bank accounts and fed faaldsare Level 2.

(b) FHLB Stock
It is not practical to determine the fair value=biLB stock due to restrictions placed on its transbility.
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(c) Loans, Net

Fair values of loans, excluding loans held for sake estimated as follows: For variable rate $otimat reprice frequently and with
significant change in credit risk, fair values besed on carrying values resulting in a Level 3gification. Fair values for other loans
estimated using discounted cash flow analysesgusierest rates currently being offered for loanth similar terms to borrowers
similar credit quality resulting in a Level 3 cld&stion. Impaired loans are valued at the lowércost or fair value as descrit
previously. The methods utilized to estimate thevalue of loans do not necessarily represenbarpece.

(d) Mortgage Loans Held for Sale
The fair value of loans held for sale is estimdieded upon binding contracts and quotes from frartly investors resulting in a Leve
classification.

(e) Deposits

The fair values disclosed for namterest bearing deposits are, by definition, eqoaahe amount payable on demand at the reportitg
resulting in a Level 1 classification. The carryiagounts of variable rate interest bearing depagitfgroximate their fair values at
reporting date resulting in a Level 2 classificatid=air values for fixed rate interest bearingat#s are estimated using a discounted
flows calculation that applies interest rates auifyebeing offered on certificates to a schedulagdregated expected monthly matur
on time deposits resulting in a Level 2 classifmat

(f) Securities Sold Under Agreements to Repurchase
The carrying amounts of borrowings under repurcl@geements approximate their fair values resultirggLevel 2 classification.

( g) Other Borrowings
The fair values of the ComparsyFHLB advances are estimated using discountedftaglanalyses based on the current borrowing
resulting in a Level 2 classification.

The fair values of the Comparsysubordinated capital notes and junior subordihd&bentures are estimated using discounted cas
analyses based on the current borrowing ratesrfolas types of borrowing arrangements resultingibevel 3 classification.

(h) Accrued Interest Receivable/Payable
The carrying amounts of accrued interest approxanfigt value resulting in a Level 2 or Level 3 dlifisation based on the level of -
asset or liability with which the accrual is assted.

NOTE 20 — STOCK PLANS AND STOCK BASED COMPENSATION

The Company has a stock option plan and a sto@nthe plan. On February 23, 2006, the Company t&diofne Porter Bancorp, Inc. 2(
Stock Incentive Plan. The 2006 Plan permits theasse of up to 400,000 shares of the Commangmmon stock upon the exercise of s
options or upon the grant of stock awards. As e¢@&@nber 31, 2012, the Company had granted 1533ddsted shares net of forfeitures
vesting under the stock incentive plan. Shareeissinder the plan vest annually on the anniverdatg of the grant over two to ten ye
The Company has 142,663 shares remaining availablesue under the plan. All shares issued utiteabove mentioned plans came f
authorized and unissued shares.

On May 15, 2006, the Board of Directors approvesl Rorter Bancorp, Inc. 2006 N&@mployee Directors Stock Ownership Incentive F
which was approved by holders of the Companygting common stock on June 8, 2006. On May2PR8, shareholders voted to amenc
plan to change the form of incentive award frontitoptions to unvested shares. Under the termiseoplan, 100,000 shares are reserve
issuance to noemployee directors upon the exercise of stock aptar upon the grant of unvested stock awards egdamider the plan. Pri

to the amendment, options were granted automaticaliier the plan at fair market value on the détgrant. The options vest over a three-

year period and have a five year term. Unvestedeshare granted automatically under the planiatrfarket value on the date of grant
vest semi-annually on the anniversary date of thatgpver three years.

On May 16, 2012, holders of the Company’s votinmown stock voted to further amend the 2006 [Romployee Directors Stock Owners
Incentive Plan to award restricted shares havif@ramarket value of $25,000 annually to each eamployee director, and to increase

number of shares issuable under the Directors’ fftam 100,000 shares to 400,000 shares. Sharesdigswder the amended plan vest semi-

annually on the anniversary date of the grant tivexe years.
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To date, the Company has issued 80,078 unvestedssttanoremployee directors. At December 31, 2012, 295, Til2es remain availat
for issuance under this plan.

The fair value of the 2012 unvested shares issne@rtain employees was $169,000, or $1.74 perhtesiigaverage share. The fair value
the 2012 unvested shares issued to employee directors was $155,000, or $1.65 per shidme Company recorded $442,000 and $43¢
of stockbased compensation during 2012 and 2011, resphrtice salaries and employee benefits. There wasignificant impact ¢
compensation expense resulting from forfeited qiring shares. We expect substantially all of theasted shares outstanding at the el
the period will vest according to the vesting saliledA deferred tax benefit of $0 and $153,000peetively, was recognized related to
expense.

The following table summarizes unvested share iicts of and for the year indicated:

December 31, 201;

Weighted
Average
Unvested Grant
Shares Price
Outstanding, beginnin 100,22¢ $ 13.21
Grantec 191,14( 1.6¢
Vested (44,78 8.8¢
Forfeited (13,19) 15.22
Outstanding, ending 233,39 ¢ 4.4¢

As of December 31, 2012, all stock options issueeddnemployee directors had expired and none were esestaluring their grant ter
When granted, stock options have an exercise phatas equal to or greater than the fair markétevaf the Companyg’ stock on the date t
options were granted. Options granted generalpive fully exercisable at the end of three yearsooitinued employment. Options ha\
life of five years.

The following table summarizes stock option acyivs of and for the year indicated:

December 31, 201.

Weighted

Average

Exercise

Options Price

Outstanding, beginnin 29,53 $ 19.8¢
Forfeited — —
Expired (29,530) 19.8¢
Outstanding, ending — 3 —

No options were exercised during 2012. The Compangrded no stock option compensation expensagitine year ended December
2012. No options were modified during the peridd of December 31, 2012, no stock options issuethb Company had been exerci:
and all granted options had expired.

Unrecognized stock based compensation expensedétatinvested shares for 2013 and beyond is @stinas follows (in thousands):

2013 $ 40C
2014 30C
2015 157
2016 57
2017 & thereafte 22
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NOTE 21 — EARNINGS (LOSS) PER SHARE

The factors used in the basic and diluted earniegshare computation follow:

2012 2011 2010
(in thousands, except share and per share da
Net loss $ (32,93) $ (107,30) $ (4,389
Less:
Preferred stock dividenc (1,750 (1,750 (1,810
Accretion of Series A preferred stock disco (179 (77 (177
Loss attributable to unvested sha 482 1,092 81
Loss attributable to Series C preferred 947 2,98¢ 10z
Net loss attributable to common shareholders cleasi diluted $ (33,43) $ (105,159 $ (6,187)
Basic
Weighted average common shares including unvesteanon shares and Series C
Preferred outstandir 12,248,93 12,169,98 10,640,87
Less: Weighted average unvested common sl (169,32) (121,63) (135,75)
Less: Weighted average Series C preferred shares (332,899 (332,89:) (171,619
Weighted average common shares outstanding 11,746,71 11,715,46 10,333,49
Basic loss per common share $ (2.85 $ (8.9 $ (0.60)
Diluted
Add: Dilutive effects of assumed exercises of comrand Preferred Series C stock
warrants — — —
Weighted average common shares and potential consivemes 11,746,71 11,715,46 10,333,49
Diluted loss per common share $ (2.8 $ (8.9 $ (0.60)

Stock options for 29,530 shares of common stock@idrl, and 86,469 shares of common stock for 2@&0e not considered in comput
diluted earnings per common share because they aveirdilutive. The Company had no outstanding stockamgtiat December 31, 20
Additionally, a warrant for the purchase of 330,5bkres of the Comparsytommon stock at an exercise price of $15.88 wiéstanding ¢
December 31, 2012, 2011 and 2010 but was not iedlud the diluted earnings per share computatiomession would have been anti-
dilutive. Finally, warrants for the purchase of 8037 shares of nomting common stock at an exercise price of $1h&0share we
outstanding at December 31, 2012, 2011, and 2QitOwbre not included in the diluted earnings pearshcomputation as inclusion wo
have been anti-dilutive.

NOTE 22 — PARENT COMPANY ONLY CONDENSED FINANCIAL | NFORMATION
Condensed financial information of Porter Bancarp Is presented as follows:
CONDENSED BALANCE SHEETS

December 31,

2012 2011
(in thousands)

ASSETS

Cash and cash equivale $ 99t $ 2,56¢
Securities availab-for-sale 2,46¢ 2,321
Investment in banking subsidia 71,71 103,08:
Investment in and advances to other subsidii 77¢€ 77¢€
Other assets 53E 55C
Total assets $ 76,48, $ 109,29

LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS ’ EQUITY

Debt $ 25,778 $ 25,77¢
Accrued expenses and other liabilit 3,51¢ 99C
Shareholders’ equity 47,19( 82,52¢
Total liabilities and shareholders’ equity $ 76,48, $ 109,29:
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CONDENSED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS

Years ended December 31,

Interest incomt

Dividends from subsidiarie

Other income

Interest expens

Other expense

Income (loss) before income tax and undistributdzbiliary income
Income tax expense (bene!

Equity in undistributed subsidiary income (loss)

Net income (loss

CONDENSED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
Years ended December 31,

Cash flows from operating activities

Net income (loss

Adjustments
Equity in undistributed subsidiary (income) Ic
Income tax valuation allowanq
Loss on sale of asse
Change in other asse
Change in other liabilitie
Other

Net cash (used in) from operating activit

Cash flows from investing activities
Investments in subsidiari
Purchase of securitit
Sales of securities

Net cash used in investing activiti

Cash flows from financing activities
Proceeds from sale of preferred stock,
Proceeds from sale of common stock,
Repurchase of common stock,
Dividends paid on preferred sto
Dividends paid on common stock
Net cash from (used in) financing activities

Net change in cash and cash equival

Beginning cash and cash equivalents
Ending cash and cash equivalents
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2012 2011 2010
(in thousands)

$ 114  $ 21 $ 60¢

21 20 20

72 1,272 1,787

(692) (652) (659)

(1,459 (3,619 (3,420

(1,939 (2,759 (1,669

864 46¢ (592

(30,130 (104,08() (3,319

$ (32,93) $ (107,30) $ (4,389
2012 2011 2010

(in thousands)

$ (32,93) $ (107,30) $ (4,389

30,13( 104,08( 3,31z

— 1,09t —

— — 84

(21 157 (219

T7€ (279 22¢

47¢ 1,40/ 44E

(1,569 (849 (53¢)

— (13,100 (21,000

— — (519

— — 6,117

— (13,100 (15,39Y)

— — 11,06«

— — 19,47¢

— (1,319 (1,847%

— (237) (4,706

— (1,556 23,981

(1,569 (15,500 8,05¢

2,56¢ 18,06« 10,01(

$ 99t $ 2,56¢ $ 18,06¢




NOTE 23 — QUARTERLY FINANCIAL DATA (UNAUDITED)

Earnings (Loss)
Per Common Share

Provision Net
Interest Net Interest For OREO Income
Income Income Loan Losses Expense (Loss) Basic Diluted
(in thousands, except per share data)
2012
First quartel $ 15,75 $ 11,45 $ 3,75 $ 1257 $ 1,502 $ 0.0¢ $ 0.0¢
Second quarte 14,81: 10,79: 4,00( 1,20¢ 151 (0.09) (0.09)
Third quartel 13,98" 10,13: 25,50( 5,20¢ (27,739 (1) (2.29) (2.29
Fourth quarte 13,17¢ 9,57¢ 7,00( 2,88: (6,857 (0.59) (0.59
2011
First quartel $ 19,61¢ $ 13,76¢ $ 5,10 $ 1,367 $ 79¢ $ 0.0z $ 0.0z
Second quarte 19,19¢ 13,44 13,70( 22,10¢ (39,989 (2) (3.39) (3.39)
Third quartel 18,10: 12,65¢ 8,00( 17,02¢ (12,162) (3) (1.049) (1.0
Fourth quarte 16,63" 11,65: 35,80( 7,02( (55,95 (4) (4.64) (4.64)

(1) Third quarter net income was lower than theviptes quarter due to increased provision for lamsés expense during the quarter as a
result of the continued decline in credit trendsum portfolio. The provision was also negativehpacted by a strategy change related to
classified loans which we expected to more quicklpediate by litigation or foreclosul

(2) Second quarter net income was lower than teeipus quarter due to increased provision for lloases expense during the quarter, hit
fair value write-down adjustments on OREO, and a goodwill impairnohairge of $23.8 millior

(3) Third quarter net income was affected by ORE@e-downs to prepare for a bulk sale of ORE

(4) Fourth quarter net income was lower than previguarters due to increased provision for loasde&xpense during the quarter and the
establishment of a deferred tax asset valuatiawalhce of $31.7 millior

NOTE 24 — CONTINGENCIES

In 2010, the Company sold common shares, convertiléferred shares and warrants to purchase corsh@as to accredited investors
$32 million in a private placement. In the placetm&BAV LP, an affiliate of Clinton Group, Inc.§GI") purchased 456,524 common sh
and warrants to purchase 228,262 common sharégl 93 per share for $5,000,016. The numbers areshand the warrant exercise [
have been adjusted to reflect the Company’s 5% stividend in November 2010.

On July 11, 2011, CGI sent a letter to the Comparhjch was also attached as an exhibit to a SckelRID CGI filed with the Securities ¢
Exchange Commission on the same date. In ity I[Ef& set forth concerns about the Compangxecutive leadership team and its abilit
properly manage the Bank's operations, compliante @AAP, financial disclosures and relationshipgthwegulators, referencing the cons
order PBI Bank entered into with the FDIC and tH2RK on June 24, 2011. CGl listed a number of stepslieved the Company must taki
maximize shareholder value and comply with the eahsrder. In addition, CGI allegeth@t it is likely that a number of representatiamns
warranties made when the CGI affiliate entered @moagreement to purchase shares were fadse]’demanded that the Company
immediate steps to “redress such breaches and @@kand the other purchasers whole.”

On July 20, 2011, the Compasyboard of directors established a new Risk Padiog Oversight Committee comprised of indeper
directors, to lead the Boasloversight of the assessment and management aiskseof Porter Bancorp and PBI Bank. During thied
quarter, the Oversight Committee undertook an itigason of the allegations raised in the CGI 13Dewaluate their merit and to ascer
the reasonableness of the Bank’s allowance for llosses and OREO valuations at the time of Clirgamestment.

The Oversight Committee reported its conclusionhéoCompanys board of directors in October 2011. While redoigig opportunities fc
procedural improvements existed in the Bank’s legdind norperforming asset administration, the Oversight @uttee concluded that tt
did not rise to a level that would result in thedficial statements, or representations and waeganiith respect to the financial stateme
being misleading to investors in the 2010 privdee@ment offering of the Compaisystock. The Oversight Committee further concluithex
investors were afforded ample opportunity and acte@nformation for their due diligence, includidgcumentation involving asset valual
estimates, osite management discussions and additional inguitiging visits to the Company headquarters, andsacto loan files of the
choosing and the appraisals contained thereintlaidhe Company’s disclosures were adequate matkrial respects.
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On January 30, 2012, CGI delivered a demand tcettsihe Companyg’ records pursuant to the Kentucky Business Cotipor#ct. The
Company provided records to CGl in accordance Wehtucky law.

On December 17, 2012, SBAV LP filed a lawsuit agaiforter Bancorp, PBI Bank, J. Chester PorterMada L. Bouvette in New Yol
state court. The proceeding was removed to Nevk Yaxleral district court on January 16, 208BAV LP v. Porter Bancorp, et. alCiv.
Action 13 Civ. 0372 (S.D.N.Y). The complaint aleeggviolation of the Kentucky Securities Act, neghi¢) misrepresentation and, age
defendants Porter Bancorp and Bouvette, breachoofract. The plaintiff seeks damages in an amaurgxcess of $4,500,000, or
difference between the $5,000,016 purchase pricetla value of the securities when sold by thenpildi plus interest at the applical
statutory rate, costs and reasonable attorrfegs. The defendants have filed motions to disthisssuit or, in the alternative, to transfer
federal district court in Kentucky. We dispute thaterial factual allegations made in the complaimd intend to defend the plaintgfclaim:
vigorously. We have not accrued liability relatedhis matter as we believe we have meritoriafemnkes.

On June 18, 2010, three real estate developmenpamies filed suit in Kentucky state court againBi Bank and Managed Assets
Kentucky (“MAKY™”). Signature Point Condominiums LLC, et al. v. PBI Bagt al., Jefferson Circuit Court, Case No 10@1295. Th
plaintiffs had borrowed funds from PBI Bank to fitt a real estate development project in Jeffe@mmty, Kentucky. In March 2010, F
agreed to release the plaintiffs and the guarardorthe loans related to the project, and in exghahe plaintiffs conveyed the real es
securing the loans to PBI Bank. PBI Bank also grdithe plaintiffs a right of first refusal to repbase a +/30 acre tract of land within t
project. In May 2010, PBI Bank submitted to plidfetthe required notice of its intent to sell taad subject to the right of first refusal. Al
plaintiffs declined to exercise their right of firefusal, PBI Bank sold the land to MAKY in Jun@l® for $3.8 million.

Plaintiffs filed suit shortly before the closing tife sale and recorded a lis pendens claiming tmeist in the land, effectively prevent
MAKY from taking clear title. Plaintiffs have assed claims of fraud, breach of fiduciary duty, dch of the duty of good faith and 1
dealing, tortuous interference with prospectiveifess advantage and conspiracy to commit fraudjgesge, and conspiracy against
Bank and MAKY. Plaintiffs are seeking to rescime tagreement conveying the project to PBI Bank,only with respect to the +B0 acr
tract of land. PBI has filed a counterclaim agathe plaintiffs and a third party complaint agaititsee guarantors, asserting claims of fri
MAKY has asserted claims against the plaintiffs $tander of title and interference with businespasfunities. PBIS position is that if tt
conveyance agreement is rescinded, thensPBdtes, mortgages, and guarantees as well asbligatmns of the plaintiffs and guarant
under the loans, which total more than $26 milliewguld all be reinstated. PBI would then seek tdoece its rights under su
instruments. The matter is scheduled for triaDuty 2013. The preliminary motions on proceduraktera have been submitted and ni
on. We have not accrued liability related to thigtter as we believe we have meritorious claimsdaidnses.

In the normal course of operations, we are defetsdemvarious legal proceedings. We record comrtmdiabilities resulting from clain
against us when a loss is assessed to be probathl¢ha amount of the loss is reasonably estimakdsessing probability of loss &
estimating probable losses requires analysis ofipheilfactors, including in some cases judgmenisualthe potential actions of third pe
claimants and courts. Recorded contingent liabgitare based on the best information availableaatubl losses in any future period
inherently uncertain. Currently, we do not beligkiat any of our pending legal proceedings or caimill have a material impact on ¢
financial position or results of operations.

Item 9 . Changes in and Disagreements With Acantants on Accounting and Financial Disclosure
None
Item 9A . Controls and Procedures

Management is responsible for establishing and taiaimg effective disclosure controls and proceduas defined under Rules 1Bafe) ani
15d-15(e) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934. ABetember 31, 2012, an evaluation was performeénuhe supervision and with 1
participation of management, including the Chiefe&ixtive Officer and Chief Financial Officer, of tledfectiveness of the design
operation of our disclosure controls and procedures

As a result of regulatory examination and auditcpsses applied to our loan grading activities shdefore and after year end 2011,
determined that our internal process for assigitioag grades did not always establish an accurateegfor credit risk. Our internal cont
processes surrounding loan grades, which consiat @dmbination of internal and external loan reviastivities, identified and correct
grades for the majority of loans that were notiaflif graded correctly. However, our loan reviemadmot sufficiently covered all loans sub
to potential grading error throughout the 2011dise@ar. In preparing our annual report on ForrKl@ve identified the extent to which ¢
loan review controls did not operate and expantedstope to cover the remainder of the portfolid atdjusted our allowance for loan los
to take the additional findings into consideratigkccordingly, we determined the controls regardimg determination of loan grades were
operating effectively as of December 31, 2011. @anagement, overseen by the Audit Committee, vebtkeoughout 2012 to impleme
steps to remediate the control weaknesses fordoaing discovered in the closing process for teryand quarter ended December 31, Z
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These enhanced procedures and process improvementie:

e Completion of additional independent internal amtemal loan reviews of the portfolio to ensure wmate grading froi
March 2012 through December 20

e Review of the portfolio by assigned loan officer fwoper grading

Analytical review of the portfolio by managemensbd upon payment performan

e Retention of John R. Davis to serve as Chief Cr&dffiicer overseeing credit administration and cregliality policy an
procedures

e Implementation of a centralized loan administratioil analysis team within the credit departmeminsure more timely a
regular review of grading, performance metricsaficial information, and collater:

In addition to those procedures, management impiéedethe following controls to ensure the accuraonsistency, and timeliness of I
grades:

e Implemented reporting on risk rating changes toBhek's loan committee weekly and to the Board of Direstaonthly.

Ensured the risk rating assessment is a commousdigm during the adjudication of any committeesldwan reques

e Grade changes arising from specific file reviewshmse recommended by the loan officer are routethé loan revie
department manager to ensure accurate, consiatehtimely update

During 2012, we took steps to resolve the matevigdkness by changing our procedures for loan ggadis discussed above. Based or
evaluation, management, including our Chief Exeeutfficer and our Chief Financial Officer, conchetthat our disclosure controls i
procedures were effective as of the end of theoperovered by this report. There were no other gearin our internal control over financ
reporting that occurred during the year ended Déezr81, 2012 that have materially affected, orrassonably likely to materially affect, ¢
internal control over financial reporting.

Item 9B . Other Information
None

PART III
Iltem 10 . Directors, Executive Officers and Corpmate Governance.
We have adopted a code of ethics applicable taChief Executive Officer and our senior financialiodrs, which is posted on our websit
http://www.pbibank.com If we amend or waive any of the provisions of @ede of Ethics applicable to our Chief Executiviig@r or senio
financial officers, we intend to disclose the antaedt or waiver on our website. We will provide tygerson without charge, upon reqt

a copy of this Code of Ethics. You can request@yday contacting Porter Bancorp, Inc., Chief Finah©fficer, 2500 Eastpoint Parkwi
Louisville, Kentucky, 40223, (telephone) 502-499a83

Additional information required by this Item 10amitted because we are filing a definitive proxgtsient pursuant to Regulation 14A o
before April 30, 2013, which includes the requiiatbrmation. The required information containedauar proxy statement is incorpora
herein by reference.

ltem 11 . Executive Compensation.
The information required by this Item 11 is omitteetause we are filing a definitive proxy statenmnsuant to Regulation 14A on or bef

April 30, 2013, which includes the required infotina. The required information contained in ourxyatatement is incorporated hereir
reference.
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Item 12 . Security Ownership of Certain BeneficiaDwners and Management and Related Stockholder Matts

The information required by this Item 12 is omitteetause we are filing a definitive proxy statenmnsuant to Regulation 14A on or bef
April 30, 2013, which includes the required infotina. The required information contained in ouryyratatement is incorporated hereir
reference.

Item 13 . Certain Relationships and Related Transdmns, and Director Independence.

The information required by this Item 13 is omitteetause we are filing a definitive proxy statenmnsuant to Regulation 14A on or bef
April 30, 2013, which includes the required infotina. The required information contained in ouryyratatement is incorporated hereir
reference.

Item 14 . Principal Accounting Fees and Services.

The information required by this Item 14 is omitteetause we are filing a definitive proxy statenmnsuant to Regulation 14A on or bef
April 30, 2013, which includes the required infotina. The required information contained in ourxyratatement is incorporated hereir
reference.
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PART IV
Item 15 . Exhibits and Financial Statement Schedaebk

(a) 1The following financial statements are includedhis Form 1-K:
Consolidated Balance Sheets as of December 31,&012011
Consolidated Statements of Operations for the YEaded December 31, 2012, 2011, and 2
Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive Losh&¥ears Ended December 31, 2012, 2011 and
Consolidated Statements of Change in Stockhc Equity for the Years Ended December 31, 2012, 2aad,201(
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows for the YEaded December 31, 2012, 2011, and
Notes to Consolidated Financial Stateme
Report of Independent Registered Public Accounfing

(a) 2List of Financial Statement Schedu
Financial statement schedules are omitted bechasaformation is not applicabl

(a) 3List of Exhibits

The Exhibit Index of this report is incorporatedigjerence. The compensatory plans or arrangeragotred to be filed as exhibits
this Form 1+K pursuant to Item 15(c) are noted with an astdriske Exhibit Index
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SIGNATURES
Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 16{dhe Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the Corgpaas duly caused this report ta
signed on its behalf by the undersigned, theredatyp authorized.
PORTER BANCORP, INC.
February 28, 2013 By:/s/ Maria L. Bouvett

Maria L. Bouvette
Chairman & Chief Executive Office

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities &xgh Act of 1934, this report has been signed bélpithe following persons on behall
the registrant and in the capacities indicated.

/s/ Maria L. Bouvetts Chairman and Chief Executive Officer February 2813
Maria L. Bouvette

/s/ John T. Taylo President February 28, 2013
John T. Taylol

/s/ Phillip W. Barnhous Chief Financial Officer February 28, 2013
Phillip W. Barnhous:t

/s/ David L. Hawkins Director February 28, 2013
David L. Hawkins

/s/ W. Glenn Hoga Director February 28, 2013
W. Glenn Hogat

/sl Sidney L. Monrot Director February 28, 2013
Sidney L. Monroe

/s/ William G. Porte Director February 28, 2013
William G. Porter

/s/ Stephen A. William Director February 28, 2013
Stephen A. William:

/sl W. Kirk Wycoff Director February 28, 2013
W. Kirk Wycoff
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Exhibit No. (1)

EXHIBIT INDEX

Description

3.1

3.2

3.3

3.4

3.5

3.6

4.1

4.2

4.3

4.4

10.1+

10.2+

10.3+

10.4+

10.5+

10.6+

10.7+

10.8

10.9

Amended and Restated Articles of Incorporation afgiRtrant, dated December 7, 2005. Exhibit 3.1 tnFS4
Registration Statement (Reg. No. -133198) filed April 11, 2006 is hereby incorporatsdreference

Articles of Amendment to the Amended and Restatetitl&s of Incorporation, dated November 18, 20&&hibit 3.1 tc
Form &K filed November 24, 2008 is hereby incorporateddfgrence

Articles of Amendment to the Amended and Restatetitlas of Incorporation, dated June 29, 2010. Bih3.1 to th
Registrar’s Current Report on Forn-K filed with the SEC on July 7, 2010 is hereby immrated by referenc

Articles of Amendment to the Amended and Restatetitlads of Incorporation, dated June 30, 2010. Bih3.2 to th
Registrar’s Current Report on Forn-K filed with the SEC on July 7, 2010 is hereby immrated by referenc

Articles of Amendment to the Amended and Restateiiclas of Incorporation, dated October 22, 201@higit 4.8 tc
Form $-3 Registration Statement (Reg. No. -170678) filed November 18, 2010 is hereby incorfetdy reference

Bylaws of the Registrant, dated November 30, 2@83%ibit 3.2 to Form S-1 Registration Statement (Rég. 333133198
filed April 11, 2006 is hereby incorporated by refece.

Warrant to purchase up to 299,829 shares. Exhifitto Form & filed November 24, 2008 is hereby incorporatet
reference

Securities Purchase Agreement between the Redistndrthe Purchasers thereto, dated as of Jurk030, Exhibit 10.1 1
the Registrar's Current Report on Forn-K filed with the SEC on July 7, 2010 is hereby irmrated by referenc

Registration Rights Agreement between the Registrad the Purchasers thereto, dated as of JurZ030, Exhibit 10.2 1
the Registrar's Current Report on Forn-K filed with the SEC on July 7, 2010 is hereby irpmrated by referenc

Letter Agreement between the Registrant and SBAYdd®ed as of July 23, 2010. Exhibit 10 to the iRegnt’s Curren
Report on Form-K filed with the SEC on July 29, 2010 is herebyamorated by referenc

Porter Bancorp, Inc. Amended and Restated 2006kStmentive Plan. Exhibit 10.2 to FormiSRegistration Stateme
(Reg. No. 33-133198) filed April 11, 2006 is hereby incorporatedreference

Form of Porter Bancorp, Inc. Stock Option Award égment. Exhibit 10.3 to Form B-Registration Statement (R
No. 33%-133198) filed April 11, 2006 is hereby incorporatgdreference

Form of Porter Bancorp, Inc. Restricted Stock AwaAgteement. Exhibit 10.4 to FormBRegistration Statement (R
No. 33:-133198) filed April 11, 2006 is hereby incorporatadreference

Form of Ascencia Bank (now known as PBI Bank) Sapmntal Executive Retirement Plan. Exhibit 10.59~tom S4
Registration Statement (Reg. No. -133198) filed April 11, 2006 is hereby incorporatsdreference

Form of Amendment to PBI Bank Supplemental ExeeuRetirement Plat

Porter Bancorp, Inc. 2006 Ndfmployee Directors Stock Ownership Incentive PEmamended May 22, 2008. Anne
Definitive Proxy Statement filed April 17, 2008hsreby incorporated by referen

Amendment to Porter Bancorp, Inc. 2006 Nemployee Directors Stock Ownership Incentive PEsmamended May :
2008.

Promissory Installment Note of Maria L. Bouvettedah Chester Porter, as borrowers, to David L. Hasykas lende
Exhibit 10.7 to Form S-1/A Registration StatemeReq. No. 333t33198) filed May 24, 2006 is hereby incorporate
reference

Letter Agreement, dated November 21, 2008 includimwgSecurities Purchase Agreemefitandard Terms incorporated

reference therein, between the Company and the Tiéasury. Exhibit 10.1 to Form 8-filed November 24, 2008
hereby incorporated by referen
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Exhibit No. (1) Description

10.10

10.11+

10.12

211

23.1

311

31.2

32.1

32.2

99.1

99.2

101

Form of Waiver of Senior Executive Officers. Exhib0.2 to Form & filed November 24, 2008 is hereby incorporate
reference

Porter Bancorp, Inc. 2011 Incentive CompensationuBoPlan (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4Gd 2011 Forr
10K).

Consent with Federal Deposit Insurance Corporasind Kentucky Department of Financial Institutioretedi June 2
2011. Exhibit 99.1 to Form-K filed June 30, 2011

List of Subsidiaries of Porter Bancorp, |i

Consent of Crowe Horwath LLP, Independent Regist@eblic Accounting Firn

Certification of Chief Executive Officer pursuantExchange Act Rules 1-14 or 15+14

Certification of Chief Financial Officer pursuant Exchange Act Rules 1-14 or 15+14
Certification of Chief Executive Officer pursuantExchange Act Rules 1-14(b) or 15-14(b) and 18 U.S.C. Section 13
Certification of Chief Financial Officer pursuaot Exchange Act Rules 1-14(b) or 15+14(b) and U.S.C. Section 13

Certification of Principal Executive Officpursuant to Section 30.15 of the U.S. Treasuitgterim Final Rule on TAR
Standards for Compensation and Corporate Govern

Certification of Principal Executive Officpursuant to Section 30.15 of the U.S. Treasuitgterim Final Rule on TAR
Standards for Compensation and Corporate Govern

The following financial statements from tbempanys Annual Report on Form 10K for the year ended bdxsr 31, 201:
formatted in XBRL: (i) Consolidated Balance Shedfi$, Consolidated Statements of Operations, ({ipnsolidate
Statements of Comprehensive Income, (iv) Consddi@tatements of Changes in Stockhold&ity, (v) Consolidate
Statements of Cash Flows, (vi) Notes to Consolii&ieancial Statement

+  Management contract or compensatory plan or arraage
(1) The Company has other long-term debt agreesrtbat meet the exclusion set forth in Section B§4{(iii))(A) of Regulation SK. The
Company hereby agrees to furnish a copy of suokeagents to the Securities and Exchange Commisgiom request
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Exhibit 21.1

SUBSIDIARIES OF PORTER BANCORP, INC.

Direct Subsidiary Jurisdiction of Organization Does Business A
PBI Bank Kentucky PBI Bank
Asencia Statutory Trust Connecticu Asencia Statutory Trust
Porter Statutory Trust Connecticu Porter Statutory Trust
Porter Statutory Trust Il Connecticu Porter Statutory Trust ||
Porter Statutory Trust I' Connecticu Porter Statutory Trust I'
PBIB Corporation, Inc Kentucky PBIB Corporation, Inc
Indirect Subsidiary Jurisdiction of Organization Does Business A Parent Entity
PBI Title Services, LLC Kentucky PBI Title Services, LLC PBI Bank
Durham-Mudd Insurance Kentucky Durham-Mudd Insurance  PBI Bank
Agency, Inc Agency, Inc.



Exhibit 23.1
CONSENT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

We consent to the incorporation by reference iniRegjion Statement Nos. 333-143676 and 333-1438Y&orm S8 and Registratic
Statement No. 333-156281 and 333-170678 on Fo@noSPorter Bancorp, Inc. of our report dated Fabyu28, 2013 with respect to

consolidated financial statements of Porter Bandor@, which report appears in this Annual Report~orm 10K of Porter Bancorp, Inc. fi
the year ended December 31, 2012.

Crowemdath LLP

Louisville, Kentucky
February 28, 2013



Exhibit 31.1

PORTER BANCORP, INC .
RULE 13A-14(A) CERTIFICATION OF CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFF ICER

I, Maria L. Bouvette, Chief Executive Officer of fer Bancorp, Inc. (the “Company”), certify that:
1. I have reviewed this Annual Report on Form 16fkhe Company;

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does notaiordany untrue statement of a material fact or dmistate a material fact necessar
make the statements made, in light of the circunt&ta under which such statements were made, nt#adisg with respect to the per
covered by this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statemeans, other financial information included in thisport, fairly present in all mater
respects the financial condition, results of operatand cash flows of the registrant as of, amgtf@ periods presented in this report;

4. The registrang other certifying officer(s) and | are responsifide establishing and maintaining disclosure cdst@nd procedures {
defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15@&))%nd internal control over financial reportiras (defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-
15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the registrant and have:

(a) Designed such disclosure controls and procsdarecaused such disclosure controls and procedarbe designed under
supervision, to ensure that material informatidatieg to the registrant, including its consolidatibsidiaries, is made known to us by ot
within those entities, particularly during the etiin which this report is being prepared;

(b) Designed such internal control over financigpbarting, or caused such internal control overrfaial reporting to be design
under our supervision, to provide reasonable asseraegarding the reliability of financial repodirand the preparation of financ
statements for external purposes in accordancegeitierally accepted accounting principles;

(c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrafisslosure controls and procedures and presenttsi report our conclusions ab
the effectiveness of the disclosure controls andguiures, as of the end of the period coveredibyéport based on such evaluation; and

(d) Disclosed in this report any change in thestgnt's internal control over financial reportithgit occurred during the registra
most recent fiscal quarter (the registrant's fotigbal quarter in the case of an annual repod} tras materially affected, or is reason
likely to materially affect, the registrant's intat control over financial reporting; and

5. The registrant's other certifying officer(s) ahttave disclosed, based on our most recent evatuaf internal control over financ
reporting, to the registrant's auditors and theitacmimmittee of the registrant's board of direct@s persons performing the equival
functions):

(a) All significant deficiencies and material weakses in the design or operation of internal cbwver financial reporting whic
are reasonably likely to adversely affect the regrg's ability to record, process, summarize apdrt financial information; and

(b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that invedvmanagement or other employees who have a signiifiole in the registrar
internal control over financial reporting.

Dated: February 28, 20: /s/ Maria L. Bouvettt
Maria L.
Bouvette
Chief Executive Office




Exhibit 31.2

PORTER BANCORP, INC .
RULE 13A-14(A) CERTIFICATION OF CHIEF FINANCIAL OFF ICER

[, Phillip W. Barnhouse, Chief Financial Officer Bbrter Bancorp, Inc. (the “Company”), certify that
1. | have reviewed this Annual Report on Form 16fkhe Company;

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does notaiordany untrue statement of a material fact or dmistate a material fact necessar
make the statements made, in light of the circunt&ta under which such statements were made, nt#adisg with respect to the per
covered by this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statemeans, other financial information included in thisport, fairly present in all mater
respects the financial condition, results of operatand cash flows of the registrant as of, amgtfe@ periods presented in this report;

4. The registrang other certifying officer(s) and | are responsifile establishing and maintaining disclosure cdst@nd procedures |
defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15@&))%nd internal control over financial reportiras ([defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-
15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the registrant and have:

(a) Designed such disclosure controls and procsdarecaused such disclosure controls and procedarbe designed under
supervision, to ensure that material informatidatieg to the registrant, including its consolidatibsidiaries, is made known to us by ot
within those entities, particularly during the etiin which this report is being prepared;

(b) Designed such internal control over financigpbarting, or caused such internal control overrfaial reporting to be design
under our supervision, to provide reasonable asseraegarding the reliability of financial repodirand the preparation of financ
statements for external purposes in accordancegeitierally accepted accounting principles;

(c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrafisslosure controls and procedures and presenttsi report our conclusions ab
the effectiveness of the disclosure controls andguiures, as of the end of the period coveredibyéport based on such evaluation; and

(d) Disclosed in this report any change in thestgnt's internal control over financial reportithgit occurred during the registra
most recent fiscal quarter (the registrant's fotigbal quarter in the case of an annual repod} tras materially affected, or is reason
likely to materially affect, the registrant's intat control over financial reporting; and

5. The registrant's other certifying officer(s) ahttave disclosed, based on our most recent evatuaf internal control over financ
reporting, to the registrant's auditors and theitacmimmittee of the registrant's board of direct@ws persons performing the equival
functions):

(a) All significant deficiencies and material weakses in the design or operation of internal cbwver financial reporting whic
are reasonably likely to adversely affect the regig's ability to record, process, summarize @pdrt financial information; and

(b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that invedvmanagement or other employees who have a sigmiifiole in the registrar
internal control over financial reporting.

Dated: February 28, 20: /s/ Phillip W. Barnhous
Phillip W.
Barnhouse
Chief Financial Office




Exhibit 32.1
SECTION 906 CERTIFICATION

In connection with the Annual Report on Form 104#KPorter Bancorp, Inc. (the “Companyfgr the annual period ended Decembe!
2012, as filed with the Securities and Exchange @msion on the date hereof (the “Report;)Maria L. Bouvette, Chief Executive Offic
of the Company, do hereby certify, in accordanai dB U.S.C. Section 1350, as adopted pursuanéttidd 906 of the Sarban&sxley Act
of 2002, that:

(1) The Report fully complies with the requirementsSafction 13(a) or 15(d), as applicable, of the SgearExchange Act of 193
as amended; ar

(2) The information contained in the Report fairly pmets, in all material respects, the financial ctaodiand results of operations
the Company
PORTER BANCORP, INC
Dated: February 28, 2013 By: /s/ Maria L. Bouvettt

Maria L. Bouvette
Chief Executive Office




Exhibit 32.2
SECTION 906 CERTIFICATION

In connection with the Annual Report on Form 104#KPorter Bancorp, Inc. (the “Companyfgr the annual period ended Decembe!
2012, as filed with the Securities and Exchange @@sion on the date hereof (the “ReportRhillip W. Barnhouse, Chief Financial Offic
of the Company, do hereby certify, in accordanai dB U.S.C. Section 1350, as adopted pursuanéttidd 906 of the Sarban&sxley Act
of 2002, that:

(1) The Report fully complies with the requirementsSefction 13(a) or 15(d), as applicable, of the S&earExchange Act of 192
as amended; ar

(2) The information contained in the Report fairly gmets, in all material respects, the financial ctodiand results of operations
the Company
PORTER BANCORP, INC
Dated: February 28, 2013 By: /s/ Phillip W. Barnhous

Phillip W. Barnhous:t
Chief Financial Office




Exhibit 99.1
PORTER BANCORP, INC .
TARP CERTIFICATION OF CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

I, Maria L. Bouvette, Chief Executive Officer of fer Bancorp, Inc. (the “Company”), certify that:

(1) The compensation committee (the “Compensatiom@@ittee”) of the Board of Directors (the “Boardi) the Company has met at le
every six months during the prior fiscal year witle senior risk officers of the Company to discars evaluate senior executive offi
compensation plans and employee compensation atahthe risks these plans pose to the Company;

(2) The Compensation Committee has identified amitdd the features in the senior executive officempensation plans that could |
senior executive officers to take unnecessary andssive risks that could threaten the value ofGhepany, has identified any feature
the employee compensation plans that pose riskh@doCompany, and has limited those features torenthat the Company is t
unnecessarily exposed to risks;

(3) The Compensation Committee has reviewed at Ba=y six months the terms of each employee cosgi®n plan and identified a
limited the features in the plan that could encgarthe manipulation of reported earnings of the Gamy to enhance the compensation ¢
employee;

(4) The Compensation Committee will certify to thesviews;

(5) The Compensation Committee will provide a n@readescription of how it limited the features(insenior executive officer compensat
plans that could lead senior executive officerdaice unnecessary and excessive risks that couddtthn the value of the Company,
employee compensation plans to ensure that the @wmynis not unnecessarily exposed to risks, angdifiployee compensation plans
could encourage the manipulation of reported egsof the Company to enhance the compensation efmgrhoyee;

(6) The Company has required that all bonusesntieteawards, and incentive compensation of théosexecutive officers and next twe
most highly compensated employees be subject tawspon for recovery or “clawbackby the Company if the payments were base
materially inaccurate financial statements or atimeomaterially inaccurate performance metric date

(7) The Company has prohibited any golden paracpajenent to the senior executive officers and tixet five most highly compensai
employees. For this purpose, a golden parachwenguat is any payment triggered by involuntary teration with or without caus
bankruptcy, insolvency or receivership of the Compar a change in control of the Company;

(8) The Company has limited bonuses, retention dsyaand incentive compensation paid to or accryedrbployees to whom the boi
payment limitation applies;

(9) The Company will permit a ndsinding shareholder resolution on the senior exeeutfficer compensation disclosures provided urite
Federal securities laws in accordance with anyangd, rules, and regulations promulgated by the; SEC

(10) The Company and its employees have compligtl thie excessive or luxury expenditures policy,dafined in the regulations a
guidance established under section 111 of EESAaagdexpenses that, pursuant to the policy, redwdpmproval of the Board of Directors
committee of the Board of Directors, a senior exgeuofficer, or an executive officer with a similkevel of responsibility were prope
approved;

(11) The Company will disclose the amount, natare] justification for the offering of any perquéstwhose total value exceeds $25,00
each of the employees subject to the bonus payingtetions;

(12) The Company will disclose whether the Compahg Board, or the Compensation Committee hasgatga compensation consulti
and the services the compensation consultant oafiitigte provided;

(13) The Company has prohibited any tax gnags-on compensation to the senior executive offierd the next twenty most hig
compensated employees;

(14) The Company has substantially complied witih @ampensation requirements set forth in the agee¢rmetween the Company and
Treasury, as may have been amended;

(15) The Company has submitted to Treasury a camplad accurate list of the senior executive officand the twenty next most hig
compensated employees for the current fiscal yatr the nonsenior executive officers ranked in descending roafelevel of annu:
compensation, and with the name, title, and emplofeach senior executive officer and most higtdynpensated employee identified; and,
(16) The officer certifying understands that a kirayvand willful false or fraudulent statement madeonnection with the certification m
be punished by fine, imprisonment or both.

Dated: February 28, 20: By: /s/ Maria L. Bouvette




Maria L. Bouvette
Chief Executive Office



Exhibit 99.2

PORTER BANCORP, INC .
TARP CERTIFICATION OF CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER

[, Phillip W. Barnhouse, Chief Financial Officer Bbrter Bancorp, Inc. (the “Company”), certify that

(1) The compensation committee (the “Compensatiom@ittee”) of the Board of Directors (the “Boardj) the Company has met at le
every six months during the prior fiscal year witle senior risk officers of the Company to discard evaluate senior executive offi
compensation plans and employee compensation ptahthe risks these plans pose to the Company;

(2) The Compensation Committee has identified amitdd the features in the senior executive officempensation plans that could |
senior executive officers to take unnecessary andssive risks that could threaten the value ofGhepany, has identified any feature
the employee compensation plans that pose riskdheoCompany, and has limited those features torenthat the Company is t
unnecessarily exposed to risks;

(3) The Compensation Committee has reviewed at Ba=y six months the terms of each employee cosgi®n plan and identified a
limited the features in the plan that could encgarthe manipulation of reported earnings of the @amy to enhance the compensation ¢
employee;

(4) The Compensation Committee will certify to thesviews;

(5) The Compensation Committee will provide a n@readescription of how it limited the features(insenior executive officer compensat
plans that could lead senior executive officerdaice unnecessary and excessive risks that coudctthn the value of the Company,
employee compensation plans to ensure that the @wmynis not unnecessarily exposed to risks, angdifiployee compensation plans
could encourage the manipulation of reported egmof the Company to enhance the compensation efrgrioyee;

(6) The Company has required that all bonusesntieteawards, and incentive compensation of théosexecutive officers and next twe
most highly compensated employees be subject tawspon for recovery or “clawbackby the Company if the payments were base
materially inaccurate financial statements or atiyeomaterially inaccurate performance metric date

(7) The Company has prohibited any golden paracpajenent to the senior executive officers and tixet five most highly compensai
employees. For this purpose, a golden parachwenguat is any payment triggered by involuntary teration with or without caus
bankruptcy, insolvency or receivership of the Compar a change in control of the Company;

(8) The Company has limited bonuses, retention dsyaand incentive compensation paid to or accryedrbployees to whom the boi
payment limitation applies;

(9) The Company will permit a ndsinding shareholder resolution on the senior exeeutfficer compensation disclosures provided urite
Federal securities laws in accordance with anyangd, rules, and regulations promulgated by the; SEC

(10) The Company and its employees have compligtl thie excessive or luxury expenditures policy,dafined in the regulations a
guidance established under section 111 of EESAaagdexpenses that, pursuant to the policy, redwdpmproval of the Board of Directors
committee of the Board of Directors, a senior exgeuofficer, or an executive officer with a similkevel of responsibility were prope
approved;

(11) The Company will disclose the amount, natarg] justification for the offering of any perquéstwhose total value exceeds $25,00
each of the employees subject to the bonus payiingtetions;

(12) The Company will disclose whether the Compdhg Board, or the Compensation Committee hasgatha compensation consulti
and the services the compensation consultant oafiitigte provided;

(13) The Company has prohibited any tax gnggs-on compensation to the senior executive offierd the next twenty most hig
compensated employees;

(14) The Company has substantially complied witih @ampensation requirements set forth in the agee¢rmetween the Company and
Treasury, as may have been amended;

(15) The Company has submitted to Treasury a campled accurate list of the senior executive officand the twenty next most hig
compensated employees for the current fiscal yeih the nonsenior executive officers ranked in descending oafelevel of annu:
compensation, and with the name, title, and emplofeach senior executive officer and most higtdynpensated employee identified; and,

(16) The officer certifying understands that a kirayvand willful false or fraudulent statement madeonnection with the certification m

be punished by fine, imprisonment or both.

Dated: February 28, 20: By: /s/Phillip W. Barnhouse
Phillip W. Barnhous:t




Chief Financial Office



